BBVA

BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

and

BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

€20,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

Under this €20,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme (the Programme), each of BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal (BSF) and BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal (BSC, and together with BSF, the Issuers) may from time to time issue notes (the Notes) denominated in any currency agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer (as defined below).

The payments of all amounts due in respect of the Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. (the Guarantor).

Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form (respectively Bearer Notes and Registered Notes). The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed €20,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described herein), subject to increase as described in this Offering Circular.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under "Summary of the Programme" and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuers (each a Dealer and together the Dealers), which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References in this Offering Circular to the relevant Dealer shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers agreeing to subscribe such Notes.

Application has been made to the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent authority under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the UK Listing Authority) for Notes issued under the Programme during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular to be admitted to the official list maintained by the UK Listing Authority (the Official List) and to the London Stock Exchange plc (the London Stock Exchange) for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities. Admission to the Official List together with admission to the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities constitute official listing on the London Stock Exchange. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the Luxembourg Stock Exchange) for the Notes to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. This Offering Circular is valid for a period of 12 months from the date hereof.

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and any other terms and conditions not contained herein which are applicable to each Tranche (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") of Notes will be set out in a pricing supplement (the Pricing Supplement) which, with respect to Notes to be admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading by the London Stock Exchange (London Listed Notes), will be delivered to the UK Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange and, with respect to Notes issued under the Programme to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (Luxembourg Listed Notes), will be delivered to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, in each case on or before the date of issue of the Notes of such Tranche. The Programme provides that Notes may be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor and the relevant Dealer.

Application may also be made to have certain Series of Notes accepted for trading in the Private Offerings, Resales and Trading through Automated Linkages System (PORTAL) of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), or any U.S. state securities laws and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) unless an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act is available and in accordance with all applicable securities laws of any state of the United States and any other jurisdiction. See "Form of the Notes" for a description of the manner and form in which Notes will be issued. Registered Notes are subject to certain restrictions on transfer, see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

Potential investors should note the statements on page 92 regarding the tax treatment in Spain of income obtained in respect of the Notes and the disclosure requirements imposed by Law 19/2003 of 4th July, 2003 on the Guarantor relating to the identity of holders of the Notes. In particular, interest may be subject to Spanish withholding tax if certain information regarding holders is not received by the Guarantor in a timely manner.

The Issuers and the Guarantor may agree with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes herein, in which event (in the case of Notes admitted to the Official List) supplementary listing particulars or further listing particulars, if appropriate, will be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in relation to such Notes.

Arranger UBS Investment Bank

Dealers ABN AMRO Barclays Capital Citigroup Deutsche Bank Goldman Sachs International JPMorgan Merrill Lynch International Nomura International

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. BNP PARIBAS Credit Suisse First Boston Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein HSBC Lehman Brothers Morgan Stanley UBS Investment Bank

The date of this Offering Circular is 18th January, 2005.

The Issuers and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Offering Circular. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuers and the Guarantor (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. Any reference in this Offering Circular to Listing Particulars means this Offering Circular excluding all information incorporated by reference. The Issuers and the Guarantor have confirmed that any information incorporated by reference, including any such information to which readers of this document are expressly referred, has not been and does not need to be included in the Listing Particulars to satisfy the requirements of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 or the listing rules of the UK Listing Authority. The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that none of the information incorporated in this Offering Circular by reference conflicts in any material respect with the information included in the Listing Particulars.

A copy of this Offering Circular, which comprises the listing particulars approved by the UK Listing Authority as required by the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 as amended (the Listing Particulars) in relation to Notes admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange and issued during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular, has been delivered for registration to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales as required by section 83 of that Act. Copies of each Pricing Supplement (in the case of Notes to be admitted to the Official List) will be available from FT Business Research Centre, operated by FT Interactive Data at Fitzroy House, 13-17 Epworth Street, London EC2A 4DL and from the specified office set out below of each of the Paying Agents (as defined below).

This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference"). This Offering Circular shall, save as specified herein, be read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form part of this Offering Circular but not part of the Listing Particulars.

The Dealers have not independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is accepted by the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or incorporated in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuers or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme. No Dealer accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuer or the Guarantor in connection with connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantor to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor or any of the Dealers.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor or any of the Dealers that any recipient of this Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuers and/or the Guarantor. Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers or the Guarantor or any of the Dealers to any person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuers and/or the Guarantor is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuers or

the Guarantor during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor in the Notes of any information coming to their attention. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published documents incorporated by reference into this Offering Circular when deciding whether or not to purchase any Notes.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers do not represent that this Offering Circular may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Dealers (save for the approval of this Offering Circular as listing particulars by the UK Listing Authority and delivery of a copy of this Offering Circular to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales) which would permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this Offering Circular in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Offering Circular or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes in Spain, Japan, the United Kingdom and the United States see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuers and the Guarantor and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits and risks involved. The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United States, nor have the foregoing authorities approved this Offering Circular or confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of the information contained in this Offering Circular. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Dealers makes any representation to any investor in the Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any applicable laws. Any investor in the Notes should be able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Notes for an indefinite period of time.

SPANISH TAX RULES

Under Spanish law, income and interest in respect of the Notes will be subject to withholding tax in Spain, currently at the rate of 15 per cent., in the case of: (a) individual holders who are resident in Spain; and (b) holders who receive payments through a Tax Haven (as defined in Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5th July, 1991). The Guarantor is required pursuant to Spanish law to submit to the Spanish tax authorities certain details relating to holders of the Notes. Holders in respect of whom such information is not provided in accordance with procedures described herein to the Guarantor will receive payments subject to Spanish withholding, currently at the rate of 15 per cent. Neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor will gross up payments in respect of any such withholding tax in any of the above cases (see Condition 8 of the Notes and *"Taxation – Disclosure of Noteholder Information in connection with Interest Payments"*)

Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream, Luxembourg and, together with Euroclear, the European Clearing Systems) are expected to follow certain procedures to facilitate the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor and the Principal Paying Agent (as defined on page 27) in the collection of the details referred to above from holders of the Notes. If any European Clearing System is, in the future, unable to facilitate the collection of such information, it may decline to allow any or all Series of the Notes to be cleared through such European Clearing System and this may affect the liquidity of such Notes. Provisions have been made for the Notes, in such a case, to be represented by definitive Notes (see "Form of the Notes"). The procedures agreed and described in the Agency Agreement may, in the future, be amended to comply with Spanish law and regulations and operational procedures of the European Clearing Systems.

At the date of this Offering Circular, the European Clearing Systems are in discussions to harmonise the procedures for the provision of information as required by Spanish laws and regulations. The procedure described in this Offering Circular is a summary only and is subject to such discussions as well as to further clarification from the Spanish tax authorities regarding such laws and regulations. Holders of Notes must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure correct tax treatment of their Notes. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers, the Paying Agents or the European Clearing Systems assume any responsibility therefor.

U.S. INFORMATION

This Offering Circular is being submitted in the United States to a limited number of QIBs and Institutional Accredited Investors (each as defined under "*Form of the Notes*") for informational use solely in connection with the consideration of the purchase of the Notes being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the United States is not authorised.

Neither the Notes nor the Guarantee have been or will be registered under the Securities Act. Subject to certain exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons.

The Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Registered Notes may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs or to Institutional Accredited Investors, in either case in transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Each U.S. purchaser of Registered Notes is hereby notified that the offer and sale of any Registered Notes to it may be being made in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A under the Securities Act (Rule 144A).

Purchasers of Definitive IAI Registered Notes (as defined under "Form of the Notes – Registered Notes") will be required to execute and deliver an IAI Investment Letter (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"). Each purchaser or holder of Definitive IAI Registered Notes, Notes represented by a Rule 144A Global Note or any Notes issued in registered form in exchange or substitution therefor (together Legended Notes) will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of any such Legended Notes, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict the resale or other transfer of such Notes as set out in "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions". Unless otherwise stated, terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them in "Form of the Notes".

NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON, SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

To permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Notes that are "restricted securities" within the meaning of the Securities Act, the Issuers and the Guarantor have each undertaken in a deed poll dated 18th January, 2005 (the Deed Poll) to furnish, upon the request of a holder of such Notes or any beneficial interest therein, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by him, the information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request, any of the Notes remain outstanding as "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) of the Securities Act and the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

SERVICE OF PROCESS AND ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Issuers and the Guarantor are corporations organised under the laws of Spain. All or most of the officers and directors of the Issuers and the Guarantor named herein reside outside the United States and all or a substantial portion of the assets of the Issuers and the Guarantor and of such officers and directors are located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process outside Spain upon the Issuers and the Guarantor or such persons, or to enforce judgments against them obtained in courts outside Spain predicated upon civil liabilities of the Issuers and the Guarantor or such directors and officers under laws other than the laws of Spain, including any judgment predicated upon United States federal securities laws.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

The Issuers and the Guarantor maintain their financial books and records and prepare their financial statements in euro in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain.

All references in this document to "U.S. dollars", "U.S.\$" and "\$" refer to United States dollars. In addition, references to "Sterling" and "£" refer to pounds sterling and references to "euro" and " \notin " refer to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended.

CONTENTS

Documents Incorporated by Reference	7	Desc
General Description of the Programme	8	A
Summary of the Programme	9	Capi
Form of the Notes	15	A
Form of the Applicable Pricing Supplement	19	Sum
Terms and Conditions of the Notes	27	In
Use of Proceeds	61	Con
Description of BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal	62	Bool
Capitalisation of BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal	63	Taxa Spar
Description of BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal	64	Subs ar
Capitalisation of BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal.	65	Gen

Description of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.	66
Capitalisation of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.	85
Summary of Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Statistical Data	86
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account	87
Book-Entry Clearance Systems	88
Taxation	92
Spanish Insolvency Law	101
Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions	105
General Information	111

In connection with the issue and distribution of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer (if any) disclosed as the stabilising manager in the applicable Pricing Supplement or any person acting for him may over-allot or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes of the Series (as defined below) of which such Tranche forms part at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period. However, there may be no obligation on the stabilising manager or any agent of his to do this. Such stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time and must be brought to an end after a limited period. Such stabilising may include the purchase of Notes to stabilise their market price, the purchase of Notes to cover some or all of a short position in the Notes maintained by the stabilising manager and the imposition of penalty bids. For a description of these activities, see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents published or issued from time to time after the date hereof shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular (provided, however, that such incorporated documents do not form a part of the Listing Particulars):

- (a) the most recently published audited annual financial statements and, if published later, the most recently published interim financial statements (if any) of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor, see "General Information" for a description of the financial statements currently published by each of the Issuer and the Guarantor; and
- (b) all supplements or amendments to this Offering Circular circulated by the Issuers and/or the Guarantor from time to time,

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Offering Circular (but not the Listing Particulars) to the extent that a statement contained in any such subsequent document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular.

The Issuers and the Guarantor will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Offering Circular has been delivered, upon the request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents deemed to be incorporated herein by reference unless such documents have been modified or superseded as specified above. Requests for such documents should be directed either to the Issuers or the Guarantor at their respective offices set out at the end of this Offering Circular. In addition, such documents will be available from the principal office in Luxembourg of Deutsche Bank Luxembourg, S.A. (the Luxembourg Listing Agent) free of charge for Notes listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and at the principal office in England of UBS Limited for Notes admitted to the Official List.

The Issuers and the Guarantor have undertaken to the Dealers in the Programme Agreement (as defined in *"Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions"*) to comply with sections 81 and 83 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under the Programme, the Issuers may from time to time issue Notes denominated in any currency, subject as set out herein. A summary of the terms and conditions of the Programme and the Notes appears below. The applicable terms of any Notes will be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer prior to the issue of the Notes and will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes endorsed on, attached to, or incorporated by reference into, the Notes, as modified and supplemented by the applicable Pricing Supplement attached to, or endorsed on, such Notes, as more fully described under "Form of the Notes".

This Offering Circular and any supplement will only be valid for listing Notes on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange and/or the Luxembourg Stock Exchange during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular in an aggregate nominal amount which, when added to the aggregate nominal amount then outstanding of all Notes previously or simultaneously issued under the Programme, does not exceed &20,000,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencies. For the purpose of calculating the euro equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes issued under the Programme from time to time:

- (a) the euro equivalent of Notes denominated in another Specified Currency (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to the Notes, described under "Form of the Notes") shall be determined, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer, either as of the date on which agreement is reached for the issue of Notes or on the preceding day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in London, in each case on the basis of the spot rate for the sale of euro against the purchase of such Specified Currency in the London foreign exchange market quoted by any leading international bank selected by the Issuer on the relevant day of calculation;
- (b) the euro equivalent of Dual Currency Notes, Index Linked Notes and Partly Paid Notes (each as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to the Notes, described under "Form of the Notes") shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the original nominal amount on issue of such Notes (in the case of Partly Paid Notes regardless of the subscription price paid); and
- (c) the euro equivalent of Zero Coupon Notes (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to the Notes, described under "Form of the Notes") and other Notes issued at a discount or a premium shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the net proceeds received by the relevant Issuer for the relevant issue.

The Guarantor will have the option at any time to increase the amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the Programme Agreement (as defined in "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions").

Subordinated Notes and Subordinated Guarantee

The payment of all amounts in respect of the Subordinated Notes has been guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the Subordinated Guarantee, as more fully described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes – Status of the Notes and the Guarantees – Status of the Subordinated Guarantee". Noteholders are advised that payments in respect of the Subordinated Notes will be made by the Guarantor pursuant to the Subordinated Guarantee only in accordance with the subordination provisions described therein and, in the event of insolvency, the provisions of law 22/2003 of 9th July, 2004 (the Insolvency Law), see "Spanish Insolvency Law".

SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" below shall have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers:	BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal (Senior Notes only) BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal (Subordinated Notes only)
Guarantor:	Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
Description:	Global Medium Term Note Programme
Arranger:	UBS Limited
Dealers:	ABN AMRO Bank N.V. Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Barclays Bank PLC BNP Paribas Citigroup Global Markets Limited Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited Deutsche Bank AG London Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft Goldman Sachs International HSBC Bank plc J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. Lehman Brothers International (Europe) Merrill Lynch International Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited Nomura International plc UBS Limited
	and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Programme Agreement.
Certain Restrictions:	Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from time to time (see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions").
	Notes with a maturity of less than one year
	Notes having a maturity of less than one year will, if the proceeds of the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits contained in section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 unless they are issued to a limited class of professional investors and have a denomination of at least £100,000 or its equivalent, see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".
Issuing and Principal Paying Agent:	Deutsche Bank AG
Registrar:	Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas

Programme Size:	Up to €20,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described in the Programme Agreement) outstanding at any time. The Guarantor may increase the amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the Programme Agreement.	
Distribution:	Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement, subject to the restrictions set out under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions" below, and in each case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.	
Currencies:	Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, any currency agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.	
Redenomination:	The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that certain Notes may be redenominated in euro. The relevant provisions applicable to any such redenomination are contained in Condition 4.	
Maturities:	Any maturity greater than one month in the case of Senior Notes and a minimum maturity of five years in the case of Subordinated Notes, as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement or such other minimum or maximum maturity as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency.	
Issue Price:	Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par.	
Form of Notes:	The Notes will be issued in bearer or registered form as described in <i>"Form of the Notes"</i> . Registered Notes will not be exchangeable for Bearer Notes and vice versa.	
Fixed Rate Notes:	Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on redemption and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.	
Floating Rate Notes:	Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:	
	 (a) on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency governed by an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions (as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes of the relevant Series); or 	
	(b) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen page of a commercial quotation service; or	
	(c) on such other basis as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.	
	The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each Series of Floating Rate Notes.	

Index Linked Notes:	Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked Redemption Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes will be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes in the prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.
Other provisions in relation to Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest:	Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes may also have a maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.
	Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes in respect of each Interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction, as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.
Dual Currency Notes:	Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.
Zero Coupon Notes:	Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal amount and will not bear interest.
Redemption:	The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate either that the relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or following an Event of Default) or that such Notes will be redeemable at the option of the relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving notice to the Noteholders or the relevant Issuer, as the case may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at a price or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.
	Subordinated Notes may not be redeemed (other than following an Event of Default) prior to their original maturity without the consent of <i>Banco de España</i> which consent would not, under current <i>Banco de España</i> rules, be expected to be forthcoming for an early redemption occurring less than five years from the relevant issue date.
	The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that Notes may be redeemable in two or more instalments of such amounts and on such dates as are indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
	Notes having a maturity of less than one year may be subject to restrictions on their denomination and distribution, see "Certain Restrictions: – Notes with a maturity of less than one year" above.
Denomination of Notes:	Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency see "Certain Restrictions: — Notes with a maturity of less than one year" above.

	Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the minimum denomination of each Definitive IAI Registered Note will be U.S.\$500,000 or its approximate equivalent in other Specified Currencies.
Taxation:	Save as set out below, all payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by Spain, subject as provided in Condition 8. In the event that any such deduction is made, the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will, save in certain limited circumstances provided in Condition 8, be required to pay additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.
	Payments in respect of the Notes and under the Guarantee will be subject to Spanish withholding tax in the circumstances described below. In such circumstances, neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor will be required to pay additional amounts in respect of such withholding tax.
	Under Spanish law income in respect of the Notes will be subject to withholding tax in Spain, currently at the rate of 15 per cent., in the case of (a) individual holders who are resident in Spain and (b) holders who receive payments through a Tax Haven (as defined in Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5th July, 1991). In addition, holders who fail to provide information regarding their identity and tax residence will also receive payments subject to Spanish withholding tax, see Condition 8 of the Notes.
Disclosure of Identity of Holders:	Under Spanish law the Guarantor is obliged to disclose to the Spanish tax and supervisory authorities the identity of holders of the Notes.
	The European Clearing Systems are expected to follow certain procedures to facilitate the Principal Paying Agent in the collection of the information referred to above from Noteholders. If the European Clearing Systems are, in the future, unable to follow these procedures, they may refuse to clear all or any Series of the Notes and this will affect the liquidity of the relevant Notes. In such a case, Global Notes will be exchanged for Notes in definitive form, see "Form of the Notes".
	At the date of this Offering Circular the European Clearing Systems are in discussions to harmonise the procedures for the provision of information as required by Spanish laws and regulations. The procedure described in this Offering Circular is a summary only and is subject to such discussions as well as to further clarification from the Spanish tax authorities regarding such laws and regulations. Holders of Notes must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure correct tax treatment of their Notes. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers, the Paying Agents or the European Clearing Systems assume any responsibility therefor.
	For further details, see "Taxation" below.
Cross Default:	The terms of the Notes will contain a cross default provision as further described in Condition 10.
1	

Negative Pledge:	The terms of the Notes will not contain a Negative Pledge provision.
Status of the Notes:	Notes may be either Senior Notes or Subordinated Notes as more fully described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes – Status of the Notes and the Guarantees". Perpetual Subordinated Notes may also be issued under the Programme and the terms and conditions applicable to such Notes will be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
Status of the Guarantees:	The Senior Notes will be guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the Senior Guarantee and the Subordinated Notes will be guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the Subordinated Guarantee, all as more fully described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes – Status of the Notes and the Guarantees".
Substitution:	The Terms and Conditions of the Notes will contain provisions allowing for the substitution of the relevant Issuer as principal debtor and/or the Guarantor as Guarantor of the obligations of the relevant Issuer under the Notes, as more fully described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes – Substitution".
Noteholder Representative and Meetings:	Spanish company law requires that a representative (Comisario) of the Noteholders is appointed and that a syndicate of Noteholders is established in relation to each Series of Notes issued under the Programme. By purchasing a Note of any Series, the holder thereof will be deemed to have agreed to (i) the appointment of the representative for that Series named in the applicable Pricing Supplement, (ii) become a member of the syndicate of Noteholders of that Series and (iii) accept the syndicate regulations referred to in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
Listing:	Application has been made for Notes issued under the Programme to be admitted to the Official List and to trade on the London Stock Exchange, and to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Notes may also be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer in relation to each Series.
	Unlisted Notes will not be issued under the Programme.
	The applicable Pricing Supplement will state whether or not the relevant Notes are to be listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s).
Governing Law:	The Conditions of the Notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law, except that the provisions of Condition 3 will be, and each Guarantee is, governed by, and will be construed in accordance with, Spanish law. In addition, the provisions of Condition 15 relating to the appointment of a Noteholder representative and meetings of Noteholders will be governed by Spanish law. The Notes will be issued in accordance with the formalities prescribed by Spanish company law.
Selling Restrictions:	There are restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes in Spain, Japan, the United Kingdom and the United States and such other restrictions as may be required in connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche of

Ratings:

Notes, see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

The Programme is rated by Moody's Investors Service Limited, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. and Fitch Ratings Ltd. Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where an issue of Notes is rated, its rating will not necessarily be the same as the rating applicable to the Programme. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, change or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be in either bearer form, with or without interest coupons attached, or registered form, without interest coupons attached. Bearer Notes will be issued outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act (Regulation S) and Registered Notes will be issued both outside the United States in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Regulation S and within the United States in reliance on Rule 144A or Regulation D under the Securities Act.

Bearer Notes

Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will be initially issued in the form of either a temporary bearer global note (a Temporary Bearer Global Note) or a permanent bearer global note (a Permanent Bearer Global Note) as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, which, in either case, will be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary (the Common Depositary) for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Whilst any Bearer Note is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Note only to the extent that certification (in a form provided in the Agency Agreement (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes")) of non-U.S. beneficial ownership or certification to the effect that the holder is a U.S. person who purchased in a transaction that did not require registration under the Securities Act and to the effect that such holder is not a United States person, or is a United States person that purchased by or through certain United States financial institutions or is a financial institution purchasing for resale during the restricted period to persons other than United States persons or persons within the United States or its possessions as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

On and after the date (the Exchange Date) which is 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global Note is issued, interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described therein either for (a) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Note of the same Series or (b) for definitive Bearer Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and subject, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless such certification has already been given, provided that purchasers in the United States and certain U.S. persons will not be able to receive definitive Bearer Notes. The holder of a Temporary Bearer Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Bearer Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Bearer Global Note or for definitive Bearer Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be made through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of the Permanent Bearer Global Note without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Bearer Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon either (a) not less than 60 days' written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) to the Principal Paying Agent as described therein or (b) only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that (i) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10) has occurred and is continuing, (ii) the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system is available, (iii) the relevant Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Permanent Bearer Global Note in definitive form or (iv) the Notes are required to be removed from both

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and no alternative clearing system is available. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (iii) above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange and, in the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Bearer Notes which have an original maturity of more than 365 days and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Notes:

"ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE."

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to deduct any loss on Bearer Notes, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of such Notes, receipts or interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Bearer Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

Registered Notes

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S, which will be sold to non-U.S. persons outside the United States, will initially be represented by a global note in registered form (a Regulation S Global Note). Prior to expiry of the distribution compliance period (as defined in Regulation S) applicable to each Tranche of Notes, beneficial interests in a Regulation S Global Note may not be offered or sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person save as otherwise provided in Condition 2 and may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and such Regulation S Global Note will bear a legend describing such restrictions on transfer.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche may only be offered and sold in the United States or to U.S. persons in private transactions (a) to "qualified institutional buyers" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (QIBs) or (b) to "accredited investors" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) under the Securities Act that are institutions (Institutional Accredited Investors) who agree to purchase the Notes for their own account and not with a view to the distribution thereof. The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to QIBs will be represented by a global note in registered form (a Rule 144A Global Note and, together with a Regulation S Global Note, the Registered Global Notes).

Registered Global Notes will either (a) be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a nominee of, DTC for the accounts of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or (b) be deposited with a common depositary for, and registered in the name of a common nominee of, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Persons holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be entitled or required, as the case may be, under the circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully registered form.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to Institutional Accredited Investors will be in definitive form, registered in the name of the holder thereof (Definitive IAI Registered Notes). Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable Pricing Supplement, Definitive IAI Registered Notes will be issued only in minimum denominations of U.S.\$500,000 and integral multiples of U.S.\$1,000 in excess thereof (or the approximate equivalents in the applicable Specified Currency). Definitive IAI Registered Notes will be subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear the restrictive legend described under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions". Institutional Accredited Investors that hold Definitive IAI Registered Notes may elect to hold such Notes through DTC, but transferees acquiring the Notes in

transactions exempt from Securities Act registration pursuant to Regulation S or Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if available) may do so upon satisfaction of the requirements applicable to such transfer as described under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions". The Rule 144A Global Note and the Definitive IAI Registered Notes will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions.

Payments of principal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Notes will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the person shown on the Register (as defined in Condition 6(d)) as the registered holder of the Registered Global Notes. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, any Paying Agent or the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of the Registered Notes in definitive form will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the persons shown on the Register on the relevant Record Date (as defined in Condition 6(d)) immediately preceding the due date for payment in the manner provided in that Condition.

Interests in a Registered Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Registered Notes without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that (a) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, (b) the relevant Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Registered Global Note in definitive form, (c) in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, no successor clearing system is available, (d) in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for DTC, either DTC has notified the relevant Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to act as depository for the Notes and no alternative clearing system is available or DTC has ceased to constitute a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act or (e) the Notes are required to be removed from (in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg) both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or (in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for DTC) DTC and, in either case, no alternative clearing system is available. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, DTC, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Registered Global Note) may give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (b) above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 60 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Registrar.

Transfer of Interests

Interests in a Registered Global Note may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such interest in another Registered Global Note or in the form of a Definitive IAI Registered Note and Definitive IAI Registered Notes may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such Notes in the form of an interest in a Registered Global Note. No beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Note will be able to transfer such interest, except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the extent applicable, in each case. Registered Notes are also subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions, see "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

General

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under "*Terms and Conditions of the Notes*"), the Principal Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a common code, and ISIN and, where applicable, a CUSIP and CINS number which are different from the common code and ISIN, CUSIP and CINS assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of the same Series until at least the expiry of the distribution compliance period applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC or its nominee each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg or of DTC as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuers, the Guarantor and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes and, in the case of DTC or its nominee, voting, giving consents or making requests, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions Noteholder and holder of Notes and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or as may otherwise be approved by the Issuers and the Principal Paying Agent. A Note may be accelerated by the holder thereof in certain circumstances described in Condition 10. In such circumstances, where any Note is still represented by a Global Note and the Global Note (or any part thereof) has become due and repayable in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of such Notes and payment in full of the amount due has not been made in accordance with the provisions of the Global Note within a period of 15 days from the giving of a notice by a holder with Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg of such Notes so represented and credited to its securities account that it wishes to accelerate such Notes, then holders of interests in such Global Note credited to their accounts with Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, will become entitled to proceed directly against the relevant Issuer on the basis of statements of account provided by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC on and subject to the terms of (in the case of BSF) a deed of covenant dated 18th January, 2005 and executed by BSF, and (in the case of BSC) a deed of covenant dated 18th January, 2005 and executed by BSC (each a Deed of Covenant). In addition, holders of interests in such Global Note credited to their accounts with DTC may require DTC to deliver Definitive Notes in registered form in exchange for their interest in such Global Note in accordance with DTC's standard operating procedures.

FORM OF APPLICABLE PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme.

[Date]

[BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal/BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes] Guaranteed by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. under the €20,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the conditions set forth in the Offering Circular dated 18th January, 2005. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular.

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under an Offering Circular with an earlier date:

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the Conditions) set forth in the Offering Circular dated [original date]. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular dated [current date], save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the Offering Circular dated [original date] and are attached hereto.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable" (N/A). Note that the numbering should remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from their date of issue and the proceeds of issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, the minimum denomination may need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1.	(a)	Issuer:	[BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal/] BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal]
	(b)	Guarantor:	Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
2.	(a)	Series Number:	[]
	(b)	Tranche Number:	[] (If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series, including the date on which the Notes become fungible)
3.	Spec	ified Currency or Currencies:	[]
4.	Agg	regate Nominal Amount:	
	(a)	Series:	[]
	(b)	Tranche:	[]
5.	(a)	Issue Price of Tranche:	[] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued interest from [insert date]] (in the case of fungible issues only, if applicable)
	(b)	Net Proceeds:	[]

FORM OF APPLICABLE PRICING SUPPLEMENT

6.	Regi	ified Denominations: (in the case of stered Notes, this means the minimum gral amount in which transfers can be e)	[][][]
7.	(a)	Issue Date:	[]]
	(b)	Interest Commencement Date:	[]]
8.	Mat	urity Date:	Pa	iyn	xed rate — specify date/Floating rate — Interest yment Date falling in or nearest to [specify month d year]]
9.	Inter	rest Basis:	[Z [I] [I] [<i>s</i>]	LIE Cero nde Dua pec] per cent. Fixed Rate] IBOR/EURIBOR] +/- [] per cent. Floating Rate] ero Coupon] dex Linked Interest] ual Currency Interest] ecify other] rther particulars specified below)
10.	Red	emption/Payment Basis:	[] [] [] []	nde Dua Part nst	edemption at par] dex Linked Redemption] ual Currency Redemption] artly Paid] stalment] ecify other]
11.		nge of Interest Basis or Redemption/ nent Basis:	in	to	ecify details of any provision for change of Notes o another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment sis]
12.	Put/	Call Options:	[]	ssu	vestor Put] suer Call] arther particulars specified below)]
13.	(a)	Status of the Notes:	U	nip	nior (if the Issuer is BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. ipersonal B.V.)/Subordinated (if the Issuer is BBVA pordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal)]
	(b)	Status of the Guarantee:	Ū	nip	nior (if the Issuer is BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. ipersonal)/Subordinated (if the Issuer is BBVA pordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal)]
	(c)	[Date [Board] approval for issuance of Notes [and Guarantee] obtained:	a	N.E uth] [and [], respectively]] .B. Only relevant where Board (or similar) thorisation is required for the particular tranche of otes or related Guarantee)
14.	Listi	ing:	L	ono	ndon/Luxembourg[/specify other]
15.	Met	hod of distribution:	[5	yn	ndicated/Non-syndicated]
PRO	visio	ONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) F	PAYA	BL	3LE
16.	Fixe	d Rate Note Provisions	[4	Apr	pplicable/Not Applicable]

	(a)	Rate(s) of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi- annually/quarterly] in arrear] (If payable other than annually, consider amending Condition 5.)
	(b)	Interest Payment Date(s):	[[] in each year up to and including the Maturity Date]/[specify other]] (N.B. This will need to be amended in the case of long or short coupons)
	(c)	Fixed Coupon Amount(s):	[] per [] in nominal amount
	(d)	Broken Amount(s):	[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest amounts which do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount]
	(e)	Day Count Fraction:	[30/360 or 30/360 (ISDA) or Actual/Actual (ISMA) or Actual/Actual (ISDA) or <i>specify other</i>]
			(See Condition 5 for alternatives. Note that if interest is not payable on a regular basis (for example, if there are Broken Amounts specified) Actual/Actual (ISMA) may not be a suitable Day Count Fraction).
	(f)	Determination Date(s):	 [] in each year [Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon. N.B. This will need to be amended in the case of regular interest payment dates which are not of equal duration. N.B. Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual (ISMA)]
	(g)	Other terms relating to the method of calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:	[None/Give details]
17.	Floa	nting Rate Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub- paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	[]
	(b)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/ [specify other]]
	(c)	Additional Business Centre(s):	[] (Note that this item relates to the Interest Period end dates and not the place of payment to which item 26 relates).
	(d)	Manner in which the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount is to be determined:	[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify other]

	(e)	Party responsible for calculating the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount (if not the Principal Paying Agent):	[]
	(f)	Screen Rate Determination:	[Applicable/Not Applicable]
		- Reference Rate:	[] (Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional information is required if other – including fallback provisions in the Agency Agreement)
		- Interest Determination Date(s):	[] (Second London business day prior to the start of each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if Sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the TARGET System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)
		- Relevant Screen Page:	[] (In the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate Page 248 ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback provisions appropriately)
	(g)	ISDA Determination:	[Applicable/Not Applicable]
		Floating Rate Option:Designated Maturity:Reset Date:	[] []
	(h)	Margin(s):	[+/-] [] per cent. per annum
	(i)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(j)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(k)	Day Count Fraction:	[Actual/365 or Actual/Actual Actual/365 (Fixed) Actual/365 (Sterling) Actual/360 30/360 30E/360 Other] (See Condition 5 for alternatives)
	(1)	Fall back provisions, rounding provisions and any other terms relating to the method of calculating interest on Floating Rate Notes, if different from those set out in the Conditions:	[]
18.	Zero	Coupon Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub- paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Accrual Yield:	[] per cent. per annum
	(b)	Reference Price:	[]

	(c)	Any other formula/basis of determining amount payable:	[]
	(d)	Day Count Fraction in relation to Early Redemption Amounts and late payment:	[Conditions 7(e)(iii) and 7(j) apply/specify other] (Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S. dollar denominated)
19.	Inde	x Linked Interest Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub- paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Index/Formula:	[give or annex details]
	(b)	Any Calculation Agent responsible for calculating the interest due:	[]
	(c)	Provisions for determining Coupon where calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula is impossible or impracticable:	[]
	(d)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	[]
	(e)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/ specify other]
	(f)	Additional Business Centre(s):	[]
	(g)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(h)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(i)	Day Count Fraction:	[]
20.	Dua	Currency Interest Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub- paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Rate of Exchange/method of calculating Rate of Exchange:	[give details]
	(b)	Calculation Agent, if any, responsible for calculating the interest payable:	[]
	(c)	Provisions applicable where calculation by reference to Rate of Exchange impossible or impracticable:	[]
	(d)	Person at whose option Specified Currency(ies) is/are payable:	[]
PRO	VISIO	INS RELATING TO REDEMPTION	

21. Issuer Call

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

- (a) Optional Redemption Date(s):
- (b) Optional Redemption Amount of each Note and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s):
- (c) If redeemable in part:
 - (i) Minimum Redemption Amount:
 - (ii) Maximum Redemption Amount:
- (d) Notice period (if other than as set out in the Conditions):

22. Investor Put

- (a) Optional Redemption Date(s):
- (b) Optional Redemption Amount of each Note and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s):
- (c) Notice period (if other than as set out in the Conditions):
- 23. Final Redemption Amount of each Note:
- 24. Early Redemption Amount of each Note payable on redemption for taxation reasons or on event of default and/or the method of calculating the same (if required or if different from that set out in Condition 7(e)):

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

25. Form of Notes:

[]

- [] per Note of [] Specified Denomination

[]

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[] per Note of [] Specified Denomination

[]

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent)

[[] per Note of [] Specified Denomination/specify other/see Appendix]

[]

[Bearer Notes:

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent Bearer Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on 60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

26.	Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
	special provisions relating to Payment
	Dates:

- 27. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be attached to Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates on which such Talons mature):
- 28. Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: amount of each payment comprising the Issue Price and date on which each payment is to be made and consequences of failure to pay, including any right of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest due on late payment:
- 29. Details relating to Instalment Notes:
 - [(b) Instalment Date(s):

[(a) Instalment Amount(s):

- 30. Redenomination applicable:
- 31. Other terms or special conditions:

DISTRIBUTION

- 32. (a) If syndicated, names of Managers:
 - (b) Stabilising Manager (if any):
- 33. If non-syndicated, name of relevant Dealer:
- 34. Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C rules applicable or TEFRA rules not applicable:

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on 60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]]

[Registered Notes:

[Regulation S Global Note ([] nominal amount) registered in the name of a nominee for [DTC/ a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg]/Rule 144A Global Note ([] nominal amount registered in the name of a nominee for [DTC/ a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg])/Definitive IAI Registered Notes (specify nominal amounts)]]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(Note that this item relates to the place of payment and not Interest Period end dates to which items 17(c)and 19(f) relate)

[Yes/No. If yes, give details]

[Not Applicable/give details. N.B. new forms of Global Note may be required for Partly Paid issues.]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

Redenomination [not] applicable (If Redenomination is applicable, specify the applicable Day Count Fraction and any provisions necessary to deal with floating rate interest calculation (including alternative reference rates))

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give names]

[Not Applicable/give name]

[]

[TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]

35.	Additional selling restrictions:	[Not Applicable/give details]
OPE	RATIONAL INFORMATION	
36.	Representative of the Noteholders:	[specify individual]
37.	Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear, and Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC and the relevant identification number(s):	[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
38.	Delivery:	Delivery [against/free of] payment
39.	Additional Paying Agent(s) (if any):	[]
	ISIN: Common Code: (insert here any other relevant codes such as ([] [] CUSIP and CINS codes)

SYNDICATE REGULATIONS

The regulations of the syndicate of the holders of the Notes are scheduled to the Agency Agreement dated 18th January, 2005 and relating to the Issuer's €20,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme.

LISTING APPLICATION

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required to list the issue of Notes described herein pursuant to the €20,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme of the Issuer.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:

Ву:	Ву:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies any modification to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes as described herein, it is envisaged that, to the extent that such modification relates only to Conditions 1, 4, 5, 6, 7 (except Condition 7(b)), 11,12,14 or 17, they will not necessitate the preparation of supplementary Listing Particulars. If the Terms and Conditions of the Notes of any Series are to be modified in any other respect, supplementary Listing Particulars will be prepared, if appropriate.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference into each Global Note (as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted by the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or attached thereto such Terms and Conditions. The applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to any Tranche of Notes may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions thereof) will be endorsed upon, or attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to "Form of the Notes" for a description of the content of Pricing Supplements which will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by the Issuer (the Issuer) named in the applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined below) pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined below).

References herein to the Notes shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

- (a) in relation to any Notes represented by a global Note (a Global Note), units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;
- (b) any Global Note; and
- (c) any definitive Notes in bearer form (Bearer Notes) issued in exchange for a Global Note in bearer form and in registered form (Registered Notes) (whether or not issued in exchange for a Global Note in registered form).

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an Agency Agreement (such Agency Agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the Agency Agreement) dated 18th January, 2005 and made between BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal, BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. (the Guarantor) as guarantor, Deutsche Bank AG as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank (the Principal Paying Agent, which expression shall include any successor principal paying agents, which expression shall include any successor exchange agent, which expression shall include any successor exchange agent) and as registrar (the Registrar, which expression shall include any successor registrar) and a transfer agent and the other transfer agents named therein (together with the Registrar, the Transfer Agents, which expression shall include any successor registrar) and a transfer agent and the other transfer agents named therein (together with the Registrar, the Transfer Agents, which expression shall include any successor registrar) and a transfer agent and the other transfer agents named therein (together with the Registrar, the Transfer Agents, which expression shall include any additional or successor transfer agents).

Interest bearing definitive Bearer Notes have interest coupons (Coupons) and, if indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, talons for further Coupons (Talons) attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive Bearer Notes repayable in instalments have receipts (Receipts) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) attached on issue. Registered Notes and Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or Talons attached on issue.

The Pricing Supplement for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or endorsed on this Note and supplements these Terms and Conditions and may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions, replace or modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the "applicable Pricing Supplement" are to the Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The payment of all amounts in respect of this Note have been guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to, if this is a Senior Note, a senior guarantee (the Senior Guarantee) or, if this is a Subordinated Note, a subordinated guarantee (the Subordinated Guarantee and, together with the Senior Guarantee, the Guarantees) each dated 18th January, 2005 and executed by the Guarantor. The original of the Guarantees are held by the Principal Paying Agent on behalf of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders at its specified office.

Any reference to Noteholders or holders in relation to any Notes shall mean (in the case of Bearer Notes) the holders of the Notes and (in the case of Registered Notes) the persons in whose name the Notes are registered and shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided below. Any reference herein to Receiptholders shall mean the holders of the Receipts and any reference herein to Couponholders shall mean the holders of the Coupons and shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons.

As used herein, Tranche means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and Series means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which are (a) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (b) identical in all respects (including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates and/or Issue Prices.

The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are entitled to the benefit of the Deed of Covenant (the Deed of Covenant) dated 18th January, 2005 and made by the Issuer. The original of the Deed of Covenant is held by the common depositary for Euroclear (as defined below) and Clearstream, Luxembourg (as defined below).

Copies of the Guarantee, a deed poll (the Deed Poll) dated 18th January, 2005 and made by, *inter alios*, the Issuer and the Guarantor, the Deed of Covenant and the Agency Agreement are available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar and the other Paying Agents and Transfer Agents (such Agents and the Registrar being together referred to as the Agents). Copies of the applicable Pricing Supplement are obtainable during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Agency Agreement, the Guarantees, the Deed Poll, the Deed of Covenant and the applicable Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them. The statements in the Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Agency Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Pricing Supplement shall have the same meanings where used in the Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement, the applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The Notes are in bearer form or in registered form as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the Specified Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination and Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes and vice versa.

This Note may be a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked Interest Note, a Dual Currency Interest Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

This Note may be an Index Linked Redemption Note, an Instalment Note, a Dual Currency Redemption Note, a Partly Paid Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Redemption/Payment Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

This Note may also be a Senior Note or a Subordinated Note, as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Definitive Bearer Notes are issued with Coupons attached, unless they are Zero Coupon Notes in which case references to Coupons and Couponholders in the Conditions are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery and title to the Registered Notes will pass upon registration of transfers in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement. The Issuer, the Guarantor and any Agent will (except as otherwise required by law) deem and treat the bearer of any Bearer Note, Receipt or Coupon and the registered holder of any Registered Note as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System (Euroclear) and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream, Luxembourg) and/or The Depository Trust Company (DTC) or its nominee, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg or of DTC as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes and, in the case of DTC or its nominee, voting, giving consents and making requests, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of the relevant Registered Global Note shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor and any Agent as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions Noteholder and holder of Notes and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

References to DTC, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or as may otherwise be approved by the Issuer and Principal Paying Agent.

2. TRANSFERS OF REGISTERED NOTES

(a) Transfers of interests in Registered Global Notes

Transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be effected by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, and, in turn, by other participants and, if appropriate, indirect participants in such clearing systems acting on behalf of beneficial transferors and transferees of such interests. A beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note will, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory restrictions, be transferable for Notes in definitive form or for a beneficial interest in another Registered Global Note only in the authorised denominations set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement and only in accordance with the rules and operating procedures for the time being of DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Agency Agreement. Transfers of a Registered Global Note, in whole but not in part, to a nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or such successor's nominee.

(b) Transfers of Registered Notes in definitive form

Subject as provided in paragraphs (e), (f) and (g) below, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement, a Registered Note in definitive form may be transferred in whole or in part (in the authorised denominations set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement). In order to effect any such transfer (i) the holder or holders must (A) surrender the Registered Note for registration of the transfer of the Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) at the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent, with the form of transfer thereon duly executed by the holder or holders thereof or his or their attorney or attorneys duly authorised in writing and (B) complete and deposit such other certifications as may be required by the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent and (ii) the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent must, after due and careful enquiry, be satisfied with the documents of title and the identity of the person making the request. Any such transfer will be subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Registrar may from time to time prescribe (the initial such regulations being set out in Schedule 10 to the Agency Agreement). Subject as provided above, the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent will, within three business days (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the specified office of the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent is located) of the request (or such longer period as may be required to comply with any applicable fiscal or other laws or regulations), authenticate and deliver, or procure the authentication and delivery of, at its specified office to the transferee or (at the risk of the transferee) send by uninsured mail, to such address as the transferee may request, a new Registered Note in definitive form of a like aggregate nominal amount to the Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) transferred. In the case of the transfer of part only of a Registered Note in definitive form, a new Registered Note in definitive form in respect of the balance of the Registered Note not transferred will be so authenticated and delivered or (at the risk of the transferor) sent to the transferor.

(c) Registration of transfer upon partial redemption

In the event of a partial redemption of Notes under Condition 7, the Issuer shall not be required to register the transfer of any Registered Note, or part of a Registered Note, called for partial redemption.

(d) Costs of registration

Noteholders will not be required to bear the costs and expenses of effecting any registration of transfer as provided above, except for any costs or expenses of delivery other than by regular uninsured mail and except that the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any stamp duty, tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the registration.

(e) Transfers of interests in Regulation S Global Notes

Prior to expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period, transfers by the holder of, or of a beneficial interest in, a Regulation S Global Note to a transferee in the United States or who is a U.S. person will only be made:

- (i) upon receipt by the Registrar of a written certification substantially in the form set out in the Agency Agreement, amended as appropriate (a Transfer Certificate), copies of which are available from the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent, from the transferor of the Note or beneficial interest therein to the effect that such transfer is being made:
 - (A) to a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A; or
 - (B) to a person who is an Institutional Accredited Investor, together with a duly executed investment letter from the relevant transferee substantially in the form set out in the Agency Agreement (an IAI Investment Letter); or

(ii) otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by the Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States,

and, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

In the case of (A) above, such transferee may take delivery through a Legended Note in global or definitive form and, in the case of (B) above, such transferee may take delivery only through a Legended Note in definitive form. After expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period (i) beneficial interests in Regulation S Global Notes registered in the name of a nominee for DTC may be held through DTC directly, by a participant in DTC, or indirectly through a participant in DTC and (ii) such certification requirements will no longer apply to such transfers.

(f) Transfers of interests in Legended Notes

Transfers of Legended Notes or beneficial interests therein may be made:

- (i) to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Regulation S Global Note, upon receipt by the Registrar of a duly completed Transfer Certificate from the transferor to the effect that such transfer is being made in accordance with Regulation S and that, in the case of a Regulation S Global Note registered in the name of a nominee for DTC if such transfer is being made prior to expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period, the interests in the Notes being transferred will be held immediately thereafter through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg; or
- (ii) to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Legended Note:
 - (A) where the transferee is a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, without certification; or
 - (B) where the transferee is an Institutional Accredited Investor, subject to delivery to the Registrar of a Transfer Certificate from the transferor to the effect that such transfer is being made to an Institutional Accredited Investor, together with a duly executed IAI Investment Letter from the relevant transferee; or
- (iii) otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by the Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States,

and, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

Notes transferred by Institutional Accredited Investors to QIBs pursuant to Rule 144A or outside the United States pursuant to Regulation S will be eligible to be held by such QIBs or non-U.S. investors through DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as appropriate, and the Registrar will arrange for any Notes which are the subject of such a transfer to be represented by the appropriate Registered Global Note, where applicable.

Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of Legended Notes, or upon specific request for removal of the Legend, the Registrar shall deliver only Legended Notes or refuse to remove the Legend, as the case may be, unless there is delivered to the Issuer such satisfactory evidence as may reasonably be required by the Issuer, which may include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that neither the Legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are required to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Securities Act.

(g) Exchanges and transfers of Registered Notes generally

Holders of Registered Notes in definitive form, other than Institutional Accredited Investors, may exchange such Notes for interests in a Registered Global Note of the same type at any time.

(h) **Definitions**

In the Conditions, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

Distribution Compliance Period means the period that ends 40 days after the completion of the distribution of each Tranche of Notes, as certified by the relevant Dealer (in the case of a non-syndicated issue) or the relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue);

Institutional Accredited Investor means "accredited investors" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) under the Securities Act that are institutions;

Legended Note means Registered Notes in definitive form that are issued to Institutional Accredited Investors and Registered Notes (whether in definitive form or represented by a Registered Global Note) sold in private transactions to QIBs in accordance with the requirements of Rule 144A;

QIB means a "qualified institutional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A;

Regulation S means Regulation S under the Securities Act;

Regulation S Global Note means a Registered Global Note representing Notes sold outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S;

Rule 144A means Rule 144A under the Securities Act;

Rule 144A Global Note means a Registered Global Note representing Notes sold in the United States or to QIBs; and

Securities Act means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

3. STATUS OF THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEES

The Insolvency Law came into force in Spain on 1st September, 2004. Certain provisions in the Insolvency Law could affect the ranking of certain Notes on an insolvency of the Issuer or the Guarantor, see "Spanish Insolvency Law".

In particular, from the entry into force of the Insolvency Law, and in accordance with the insolvency procedures regulated therein, creditors whose rights arise from a Spanish public document, including Noteholders, do not have a preference to enforce their rights and do not rank ahead of other creditors whose rights may be recognised by virtue of a document not so witnessed.

(a) Status of the Senior Notes

The Senior Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts will be direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank and will rank *pari passu*, without any preference among themselves, with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by applicable laws relating to creditors' rights.

In the event of insolvency (concurso) of the Issuer, under the Insolvency Law (as defined below), claims relating to Senior Notes (which are not related to the Issuer under article 93 of the Insolvency Law) will be ordinary credits (créditos ordinarios) as defined in the Insolvency Law. Ordinary credits rank below credits against the insolvency state (créditos contra la masa) and credits with a privilege (créditos privilegiados). Ordinary credits rank above subordinated credits and the rights of shareholders, see "Spanish Insolvency Law". It is not clear whether, as a result of the application of article 87.6 of the Insolvency Law the claims against the Issuer arising from the Senior Notes could be classified as subordinated credits of the Issuer. However, even if such claims were classified as subordinated credits, the payment obligations of the Guarantor under the Senior Guarantee will remain as ordinary unsubordinated credits.

(b) Status of the Subordinated Notes

The payment obligations of the Issuer under the Subordinated Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts whether on account of principal, interest or otherwise, constitute direct, unconditional and subordinated obligations of the Issuer and will at all times rank *pari passu* among themselves and *pari passu* with all other present and future subordinated obligations of the Issuer, except for certain subordinated obligations prescribed by law. In the event of the insolvency (*concurso*) of the Issuer under law 22/2003 of 9th July, 2004 (the Insolvency Law), claims relating to the Subordinated Notes will fall within the category of subordinated credits (as defined in the Insolvency Law).

After payment in full of unsubordinated claims, but before distributions to shareholders, under article 92 of the Insolvency Law, the Issuer will meet subordinated claims in the following order and prorata within each class: (i) late or incorrect claims; (ii) contractually subordinated debts (including the Subordinated Notes); (iii) interest (including accrued and unpaid interest due on the Notes at the commencement of the insolvency); (iv) fines; (v) claims of creditors which are related to the Issuer; and (vi) detrimental claims against the Issuer where a Spanish court has determined that the relevant creditor has acted in bad faith (rescisión concursal), see "Spanish Insolvency Law".

(c) Status of the Senior Guarantee

The payment of principal and interest in respect of the Senior Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts and all amounts due under the Deed of Covenant in respect of the Senior Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts has been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed (*solidariamente*) by the Guarantor pursuant to the Senior Guarantee.

The obligations of the Guarantor under the Senior Guarantee constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and rank and will rank *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor.

In the event of insolvency (concurso) of the Guarantor, under the Insolvency Law, claims from Senior Noteholders will fall within the category of ordinary credits (créditos ordinarios) as defined in the Insolvency Law. Ordinary credits will rank below credits against the insolvency state (créditos contra la masa) and privileged credits (créditos privilegiados) which shall be paid in full before ordinary credits. All creditors considered as "ordinary credits" will satisfy pro-rata its credits against the Guarantor in insolvency. Ordinary credits will rank above subordinated credits.

(d) Status of the Subordinated Guarantee

The payment of principal and interest in respect of the Subordinated Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts and all amounts due under the Deed of Covenant in respect of the Subordinated Notes and any relative Coupons and Receipts has been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed (solidariamente) by the Guarantor pursuant to the Subordinated Guarantee.

The payment obligations of the Guarantor under the Subordinated Guarantee constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Guarantor and will at all times rank *pari passu* among themselves and *pari passu* with all other present and future subordinated obligations of the Guarantor, except for certain subordinated obligations prescribed by law. In the event of insolvency (*concurso*) of the Guarantor under the Insolvency Law, claims by Subordinated Noteholders against the Guarantor will fall within the category of subordinated credits (as defined in the Insolvency Law).

After payment in full of all unsubordinated claims but before distributions to shareholders, under article 92 of the Insolvency Law, the Guarantor will meet subordinated claims in the following order

and pro rata within each class: (i) late or incorrect claims; (ii) contractually subordinated debt (including claims under the Guarantee); (iii) interest; (iv) fines; (v) claims of creditors which are related to the Guarantor; and (vi) detrimental claims against the Guarantor where a Spanish court has determined that the relevant creditor has acted in bad faith (rescisión concursal), see "Spanish Insolvency Law".

The Guarantor may apply to Banco de España for the subscription amount of the Notes to qualify as tier 2 capital for capital adequacy purposes in compliance with the provisions of Royal Decree 1343/1992, of 6th November implementing Law 13/1992, of 1st June on own funds and supervision of financial entities on a consolidated basis, Bank of Spain Circular 5/1993, of 26th March, and subsidiary regulations.

4. **REDENOMINATION**

(a) Redenomination

Where redenomination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the Issuer may, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders, on giving prior notice to the Principal Paying Agent, DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and at least 30 days' prior notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14, elect that, with effect from the Redenomination Date specified in the notice, the Notes shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

- (i) the Notes and the Receipts shall be deemed to be redenominated into euro in the denomination of euro 0.01 with a nominal amount for each Note and Receipt equal to the nominal amount of that Note or Receipt in the Specified Currency, converted into euro at the Established Rate, provided that, if the Issuer determines, with the agreement of the Principal Paying Agent, that the then market practice in respect of the redenomination into euro of internationally offered securities is different from the provisions specified above, such provisions shall be deemed to be amended so as to comply with such market practice and the Issuer shall promptly notify the Noteholders, the stock exchange on which the Notes may be listed and the Agents of such deemed amendments;
- (ii) save to the extent that an Exchange Notice has been given in accordance with paragraph (iv) below, the amount of interest due in respect of the Notes will be calculated by reference to the aggregate nominal amount of Notes presented (or, as the case may be, in respect of which Coupons are presented) for payment by the relevant holder and the amount of such payment shall be rounded down to the nearest euro 0.01;
- (iii) if definitive Notes are required to be issued after the Redenomination Date, they shall be issued at the expense of the Issuer in the denominations of euro 1,000, euro 10,000, euro 100,000 and (but only to the extent of any remaining amounts less than euro 1,000 or such smaller denominations as the Principal Paying Agent may approve) euro 0.01 and such other denominations as the Principal Paying Agent shall determine and notify to the Noteholders;
- (iv) if issued prior to the Redenomination Date, all unmatured Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency (whether or not attached to the Notes) will become void with effect from the date on which the Issuer gives notice (the Exchange Notice) that replacement eurodenominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons are available for exchange (provided that such securities are so available) and no payments will be made in respect of them. The payment obligations contained in any Notes and Receipts so issued will also become void on that date although those Notes and Receipts will continue to constitute valid exchange obligations of the Issuer. New euro-denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons will be issued in exchange for Notes, Receipts and Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency in such manner as the Principal Paying Agent may specify and as shall be notified to the Noteholders in the Exchange Notice. No Exchange Notice may be given less than 15 days prior to any date for payment of principal or interest on the Notes;

- (v) after the Redenomination Date, all payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons, other than payments of interest in respect of periods commencing before the Redenomination Date, will be made solely in euro as though references in the Notes to the Specified Currency were to euro. Payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque;
- (vi) if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an Interest Payment Date, it will be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such subunit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention; and
- (vii) if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement will specify any relevant changes to the provisions relating to interest.

(b) **Definitions**

In the Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings:

Established Rate means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency (including compliance with rules relating to roundings in accordance with applicable European Community regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 123 of the Treaty;

euro means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty;

Redenomination Date means (in the case of interest bearing Notes) any date for payment of interest under the Notes or (in the case of Zero Coupon Notes) any date, in each case specified by the Issuer in the notice given to the Noteholders pursuant to paragraph (a) above and which falls on or after the date on which the country of the Specified Currency first participates in the third stage of European economic and monetary union; and

Treaty means the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended.

5. INTEREST

(a) Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding) such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

As used in the Conditions, Fixed Interest Period means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period other than a Fixed Interest Period, such interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

Day Count Fraction means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest, in accordance with this Condition 5(a):

- (i) if "Actual/Actual (ISMA)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:
 - (A) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the Accrual Period) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (I) the number of days in such Determination Period and (II) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; or
 - (B) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:
 - I. the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and
 - II. the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and
- (ii) if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the relevant period from and including the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the relevant payment date divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);
- (iii) if "30/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the period from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days being calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360;
- (iv) if "30/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the relevant period from and including the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the relevant payment date divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (a) the last day of the interest period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the interest period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day a month, or (b) the last day of the interest period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month)).

In the Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings:

Determination Period means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date); and

sub-unit means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

(b) Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes

(i) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Index Linked Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

- (A) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; or
- (B) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, each date (each such date, together with each Specified Interest Payment Date, an Interest Payment Date) which falls the number of months or other period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Pricing Supplement after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in the Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x) if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

- I. in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5(b)(i)(B) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (a) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of (ii) below shall apply *mutatis mutandis* or (b) in the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (i) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (ii) each subsequent Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date occurred; or
- II. the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or
- III. the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or
- IV. the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

In the Conditions, Business Day means a day which is both:

- (A) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and
- (B) either (I) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency

deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than any Additional Business Centre and which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) or (II) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System (the TARGET System) is open.

(ii) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(A) ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this subparagraph (A), ISDA Rate for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Principal Paying Agent were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes (the ISDA Definitions) and under which:

- I. the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
- II. the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and
- III. the relevant Reset Date is either (a) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based on the London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) or on the Euro-zone inter-bank offered rate (EURIBOR), the first day of that Interest Period or (b) in any other case, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), Floating Rate, Calculation Agent, Floating Rate Option, Designated Maturity and Reset Date have the meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

- I. the offered quotation; or
- II. the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Principal Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of I. above, no such offered quotation appears or, in the case of II. above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in each case as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph.

If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(iii) Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (ii) above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (ii) above is greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

(iv) Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent, in the case of Floating Rate Notes, and the Calculation Agent, in the case of Index Linked Interest Notes, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period. In the case of Index Linked Interest Notes, the Calculation Agent will notify the Principal Paying Agent and the relevant Issuer of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after calculating the same.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the Interest Amount) payable on the Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes in respect of each Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

Day Count Fraction means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance with this Condition 5:

- (A) if "Actual/365" or "Actual/Actual" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (I) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (II) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);
- (B) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

- (C) if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year, 366;
- (D) if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360;
- (E) if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (I) the last day of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the Interest Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (II) the last day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30day month)); and
- (F) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of the final Interest Period, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).
- (v) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer and any stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and notice thereof to be published in accordance with Condition 14 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14. For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression London Business Day means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for general business in London.

(vi) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 5(b), whether by the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent, shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent (if applicable), the other Agents and all Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders shall attach to the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent in connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

(c) Interest on Dual Currency Interest Notes

The rate or amount of interest payable in respect of Dual Currency Interest Notes shall be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(d) Interest on Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes), interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(e) Accrual of interest

Each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such Note) will cease to bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation thereof, payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue until whichever is the earlier of:

- (i) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Note have been paid; and
- (ii) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Notes has been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, and notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

6. PAYMENTS

(a) Method of payment

Subject as provided below:

- (i) payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an account in the relevant Specified Currency (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese yen to a non-resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by the payee with, or, at the option of the payee, by a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively); and
- (ii) payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8.

(b) Presentation of definitive Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes, and payments of interest in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States (which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction)).

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of definitive Bearer Notes, other than the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of

the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Bearer Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Bearer Note to which it appertains. Receipts presented without the definitive Bearer Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Bearer Note becomes due and repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive bearer form (other than Dual Currency Notes, Index Linked Notes or Long Maturity Notes (as defined below)) should be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise have become void under Condition 9) or, if later, five years from the date on which such Coupon would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive bearer form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note, Dual Currency Note, Index Linked Note or Long Maturity Note in definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof. A Long Maturity Note is a Fixed Rate Note (other than a Fixed Rate Note which on issue had a Talon attached) whose nominal amount on issue is less than the aggregate interest payable thereon provided that such Note shall cease to be a Long Maturity Note on the Interest Payment Date on which the aggregate amount of interest remaining to be paid after that date is less than the nominal amount of such Note.

If the due date for redemption of any definitive Bearer Note is not an Interest Payment Date, interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender of the relevant definitive Bearer Note.

(c) Payments in respect of Bearer Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Global Note in bearer form will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Bearer Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Global Note against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States. A record of each payment made against presentation or surrender of any Global Note in bearer form, distinguishing between any payment of principal and any payment of interest, will be made on such Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it was presented and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

(d) Payments in respect of Registered Notes

Payments of principal (other than instalments of principal prior to the final instalment) in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the Registered Note at the specified office of the Registrar or any of the Paying Agents. Such payments will be made by transfer to the Designated Account (as defined below) of the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the register of holders of the Registered Notes maintained by the Registrar (the Register) at the close of business on the third business day (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located) before the relevant due date. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, if (i) a holder does not have a Designated Account or (ii) the principal amount of the Notes held by a holder is less than U.S.\$250,000 (or its approximate equivalent in any other Specified Currency), payment will instead be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank (as defined below). For these purposes, Designated Account means the account (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese yen to a non-resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by a holder with a Designated Bank and identified as such in the Register and Designated Bank means (in the case of payment in a Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) and (in the case of a payment in euro) any bank which processes payments in euro.

Payments of interest and payments of instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank and mailed by uninsured mail on the business day in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located immediately preceding the relevant due date to the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the Register at the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such fifteenth day is a business day) before the relevant due date (the Record Date) at his address shown in the Register on the Record Date and at his risk. Upon application of the holder to the specified office of the Registrar not less than three business days in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located before the due date for any payment of interest in respect of a Registered Note, the payment may be made by transfer on the due date in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph. Any such application for transfer shall be deemed to relate to all future payments of interest (other than interest due on redemption) and instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) in respect of the Registered Notes which become payable to the holder who has made the initial application until such time as the Registrar is notified in writing to the contrary by such holder. Payment of the interest due in respect of each Registered Note on redemption and the final instalment of principal will be made in the same manner as payment of the principal amount of such Registered Note.

Holders of Registered Notes will not be entitled to any interest or other payment for any delay in receiving any amount due in respect of any Registered Note as a result of a cheque posted in accordance with this Condition arriving after the due date for payment or being lost in the post. No commissions or expenses shall be charged to such holders by the Registrar in respect of any payments of principal or interest in respect of the Registered Notes.

All amounts payable to DTC or its nominee as registered holder of a Registered Global Note in respect of Notes denominated in a Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars shall be paid by transfer by the Registrar to an account in the relevant Specified Currency of the Exchange Agent on behalf of DTC or its nominee for conversion into and payment in U.S. dollars in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement.

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Agents will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

(e) General provisions applicable to payments

The holder of a Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of Notes represented by such Global Note and the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will be discharged by payment to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC as the beneficial holder of a particular nominal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, as the case may be, for his share of each payment so made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note. No person other than the holder of the relevant Global Note shall have any claim against the Issuer or the Guarantor in respect of any payments due in respect of such Global Note.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Condition, if any amount of principal and/or interest in respect of Bearer Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. dollar payments of principal and/or interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the United States if:

- the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of principal and interest on the Bearer Notes in the manner provided above when due;
- (ii) payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars; and
- (iii) such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer and the Guarantor, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

(f) Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay. For these purposes, Payment Day means any day which (subject to Condition 9) is:

- (i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in:
 - (A) the relevant place of presentation;
 - (B) any Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
- (ii) either (A) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than the place of presentation, any Additional Financial Centre and which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) or (B) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open; and
- (iii) in the case of any payment in respect of a Registered Global Note denominated in a Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars and registered in the name of DTC or its nominee and in respect of which an accountholder of DTC (with an interest in such Registered Global Note) has elected to receive any part of such payment in U.S. dollars, a day on which commercial banks are not authorised or required by law or regulation to be closed in New York City.

(g) Interpretation of principal and interest

Any reference in the Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable:

(i) any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8;

- (ii) the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes;
- (iii) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes;
- (iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Notes;
- (v) in relation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;
- (vi) in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7(e)); and
- (vii) any premium and any other amounts (other than interest) which may be payable by the Issuer under or in respect of the Notes.

Any reference in the Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest under Condition 8.

7. REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE

(a) Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below, each Note (including each Index Linked Redemption Note and Dual Currency Redemption Note) will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.

(b) Redemption for tax reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, subject in the case of Subordinated Notes which shall only be redeemed at any time on or after five years from the issue date in respect of such Subordinated Notes (or at any time prior to such date if so permitted by the applicable Spanish capital adequacy requirements then in force) subject to the prior consent of *Banco de España*, at any time (if this Note is neither a Floating Rate Note, an Index Linked Interest Note nor a Dual Currency Interest Note) or on any Interest Payment Date (if this Note is either a Floating Rate Note, an Index Linked Interest Note or a Dual Currency Interest Note), on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice to the Principal Paying Agent and, in accordance with Condition 14, the Noteholders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if:

- (i) on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 8 or the Guarantor would be unable for reasons outside its control to procure payment by the Issuer and in making payment itself would be required to pay such additional amounts, in each case as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of a Tax Jurisdiction (as defined in Condition 8) or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first Tranche of the Notes; and
- (ii) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor taking reasonable measures available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due.

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor shall deliver to the Principal Paying Agent a certificate signed by two Directors of the Issuer (or if at the time that such certification is to be given the Issuer has only one Director, such certificate may be signed by such Director) or, as the case may be, the Guarantor stating

that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or amendment and, in the case of Subordinated Notes, a copy of *Banco de España's* consent to redemption.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7(b) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption Amount referred to in paragraph (e) below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption.

(c) Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)

If Issuer Call is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Issuer may, subject in the case of Subordinated Notes which shall not be redeemed unless in compliance with the applicable capital adequacy regulations of *Banco de España* from time to time in force (and only on or after five years from the issue date in respect of such Subordinated Notes, or as otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) and then only with the prior consent of the *Banco de España*, having given (unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement):

- (i) not less than 7 nor more than 30 days' notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 or such lesser period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and
- (ii) not less than 5 days before the giving of the notice referred to in (i), notice to the Principal Paying Agent and, in the case of a redemption of Registered Notes, the Registrar or such lesser period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,

(which notices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or some only of the Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Redemption Date. In the event of a redemption of some only of the Notes such redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount and not more than the Maximum Redemption Amount, in each case as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed (Redeemed Notes) will be selected individually by lot in accordance with applicable Spanish law requirements, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, and in accordance with the rules of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (or such lesser period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) (such date of selection being hereinafter called the Selection Date). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be published in accordance with Condition 14 not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (or such lesser period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement). The aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes shall bear the same proportion to the aggregate nominal amount of all Redeemed Notes as the aggregate nominal amount of definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal amount of the Notes outstanding, in each case on the Selection Date, provided that, such first mentioned nominal amount shall, if necessary, be rounded downwards to the nearest integral multiple of the Specified Denomination, and the aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note shall be equal to the balance of the Redeemed Notes. No exchange of the relevant Global Note will be permitted during the period from (and including) the Selection Date to (and including) the date fixed for redemption pursuant to this paragraph (c) and notice to that effect shall be given by the Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 at least five days prior to the Selection Date.

(d) Redemption at the option of the Noteholders (Investor Put)

If Investor Put is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, upon the holder of any Note giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 14 not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice (or such lesser period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) (which notice shall be irrevocable) the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem in whole but not in part, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, such Note on the Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date. No such redemption option will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement relating to any Subordinated Notes without the prior consent of *Banco de España* or which provides for redemption prior to the fifth anniversary of the Issue Date of the relevant Note, except as permitted under *Banco de España's* requirements for such redemption.

To exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder of this Note must if this Note is in definitive form and held outside Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg deliver at the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) at any time during normal business hours of such Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar falling within the notice period, a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any specified office of any Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar (a Put Notice) and in which the holder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address) to which payment is to be made under this Condition and, in the case of Registered Notes, the nominal amount thereof to be redeemed. If this Note is in definitive bearer form, the Put Notice must be accompanied by this Note or evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent concerned that this Note will, following delivery of the Put Notice, be held to its order or under its control. If this Note is represented by a global Note or is in definitive form and held through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder of this Note must, within the notice period, give notice to the Principal Paying Agent of such exercise in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any common depositary for them to the Principal Paying Agent by electronic means) in a form acceptable to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg from time to time, and, if this Note is a Bearer Note represented by a global Note, at the same time present or procure the presentation of the relevant global Note to the Principal Paying Agent for notation accordingly.

Any Put Notice given by a holder of any Note pursuant to this paragraph shall be irrevocable except where prior to the due date of redemption an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing in which event such holder, at its option, may elect by notice to the Issuer to withdraw the notice given pursuant to this paragraph and instead to declare such Note forthwith due and payable pursuant to Condition 10.

(e) Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of paragraph (b) above and Condition 10, each Note will be redeemed at its Early Redemption Amount calculated as follows:

- (i) in the case of a Note with a Final Redemption Amount equal to the Issue Price, at the Final Redemption Amount thereof; or
- (ii) in the case of a Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note but including an Instalment Note and a Partly Paid Note) with a Final Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater than the Issue Price or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the Note is denominated, at the amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, at its nominal amount; or

(iii) in the case of a Zero Coupon Note, at an amount (the Amortised Face Amount) calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Early Redemption Amount = $RP \times (1 + AY)^{y}$

where:

RP means the Reference Price; and

AY means the Accrual Yield expressed as a decimal;

y is a fraction the numerator of which is equal to the number of days (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each) from (and including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and repayable and the denominator of which is 360,

or on such other calculation basis as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(f) Instalments

Instalment Notes will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates. In the case of early redemption, the Early Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to paragraph (e) above.

(g) Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(h) Purchases

The Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries may at any time purchase Senior Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith) at any price in the open market or otherwise. If purchases are made by tender, tenders must be available to all holders of Senior Notes alike. Senior Notes purchased as aforesaid may, at the option of the Guarantor, be held, reissued, resold or surrendered to any Paying Agent and/or the Registrar for cancellation except that all Senior Notes purchased by the Issuer must be surrendered for cancellation. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their respective consolidated subsidiaries may at any time purchase Subordinated Notes except in accordance with prevailing Spanish law and *Banco de España*'s requirements and any such Subordinated Notes so purchased must be surrendered to any Paying Agent and/or the Registrar for immediate cancellation.

(i) Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). All Notes so cancelled and any Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to paragraph (h) above (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shall be forwarded to the Principal Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold.

(j) Late payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such Zero Coupon Note pursuant to paragraph (a), (b), (c) or (d) above or upon its becoming due and repayable as provided in Condition 10 is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in paragraph (e)(iii) above as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes due and payable were replaced by references to the date which is the earlier of:

- (i) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid; and
- (ii) the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Zero Coupon Notes has been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar and notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

8. TAXATION

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by the Issuer or the Guarantor will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Kingdom of Spain or any political subdivision or authority thereof or therein having the power to tax (Spain) unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will pay such additional amounts as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, as the case may be, in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon:

- (a) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with Spain other than the mere holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or
- (b) presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to the extent that the holder thereof would have been entitled to an additional amount on presenting the same for payment on such thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a Payment Day (as defined in Condition 6(f)); or
- (c) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his residence in or connection with a country or territory considered as a tax haven pursuant to Spanish Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5th July, 1991; or
- (d) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder in respect of whom the Issuer or the Guarantor (or the Principal Paying Agent on its behalf) has not received all details concerning such holder's identity and tax residence as it requires in order to comply with Spanish Law 13/1985, of 25th May as amended by Law 19/2003 of 4th July, 2003, Spanish Royal Decree 2281/1998 of 23rd October, as amended by Royal Decree 1778/2004 of 30th July, 2004 and Spanish Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004 of 5th March, 2004 and Spanish Order of 22nd December, 1999, no later than 10.00 a.m. (CET) on the 10th calendar day of the month following the relevant Interest Payment Date (or if such date is not a day on which commercial banks are open for general business in Spain, the immediately preceding such date); or
- (e) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26th-27th November, 2000 on the taxation of savings income or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or
- (f) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who would be able to avoid such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Note, Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union.

In these Conditions, the Relevant Date means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

A list of the tax havens referred to in Condition 8(c) as at the date of this Offering Circular is set out under "Taxation" below.

See "Taxation – Disclosure of Noteholder Information in connection with Interest Payments" for a fuller description of certain tax considerations (particularly in relation to holders which are resident in Spain) relating to the Notes, the formalities which holders must follow in order to claim exemption from withholding tax and for a description of certain disclosure requirements imposed on the Guarantor relating to the identity and tax residence of holders of Notes. Holders should note that if certain required information is not supplied in a timely fashion, they will not receive the full amount of interest due but may be entitled to obtain a refund of amounts withheld. See "Taxation".

9. PRESCRIPTION

The Notes (whether in bearer or registered form), Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of 10 years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 6(b) or any Talon which would be void pursuant to Condition 6(b).

10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

(a) Events of Default relating to Senior Notes

This Condition 10(a) applies only to Senior Notes and references to "Notes" shall be construed accordingly.

If any of the following events (each an Event of Default) shall have occurred and be continuing:

- a default is made for more than 14 days in the payment of any principal due in respect of any of the Notes or 21 days or more in the payment of any interest due in respect of any of the Notes; or
- (ii) a default is made in the performance by the Issuer or the Guarantor of any other obligation under the provisions of the Notes or under the provisions of the Guarantee relating to the Notes and such default continues for more than 30 days following service by a Noteholder on the Issuer and the Guarantor of a notice requiring the same to be remedied; or
- (iii) any Capital Markets Indebtedness of the Issuer or the Guarantor where the principal amount of such indebtedness is in any case in excess of U.S.\$50,000,000 or its equivalent in another currency or other currencies or any guarantee by the Issuer or the Guarantor of any Capital Markets Indebtedness of any other person is not (in the case of Capital Markets Indebtedness) paid when due (after whichever is the longer of 30 days after the due date and any applicable grace period therefor) or becomes prematurely due and repayable following a default on the part of, or an event of default with reference to, the Issuer or the Guarantor, or (in the case of a guarantee) honoured when called upon (after whichever is the longer of 30 days after the due date and any applicable grace period therefor);
- (iv) an order of any competent court or administrative agency is made or any resolution is passed by the Issuer for the winding-up or dissolution of the Issuer (other than for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders); or

- (v) an order is made by any competent court commencing insolvency proceedings (procedimientos concursales) against the Guarantor or an order is made or a resolution is passed for the dissolution or winding up of the Guarantor (except (i) in any such case for the purpose of a reconstruction or a merger or amalgamation which has been previously approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders or (ii) where the entity resulting from any such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation is a Financial Institution (Entidad de Crédito according to article 1°-2 of Real Decreto Legislativo 1298/1986 dated 28th June, 1986, as amended and restated) and will have a rating for long-term senior debt assigned by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or Moody's Investors Services equivalent to or higher than the rating for long-term senior debt of the Guarantor immediately prior to such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation); or
- (vi) the Issuer or the Guarantor is adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent, or any order of any competent court or administrative agency is made for, or any resolution is passed by Issuer or the Guarantor to apply for, judicial composition proceedings with its creditors or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee or other similar official in insolvency proceedings in relation to the Issuer or the Guarantor or of a substantial part of the assets of either of them (unless in the case of an order for a temporary appointment, such appointment is discharged within 30 days); or
- (vii) the Issuer or the Guarantor stops payment of its debts generally; or
- (viii) the Issuer (except for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders) or the Guarantor (except (i) for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders or (ii) where the entity resulting from any such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation will have a rating for longterm senior debt assigned by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or Moody's Investor Services equivalent to or higher than the rating for long-term senior debt of the Guarantor immediately prior to such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation) ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the whole or substantially the whole of its business; or
- (ix) an encumbrancer takes possession of the whole or any substantial part of the assets or undertaking of the Issuer or the Guarantor or an application is made for the appointment of an administrative or other receiver, manager, administrator or similar official in relation to the Issuer or the Guarantor or in relation to the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking or assets of the Issuer or the Guarantor, or a distress or execution is levied or enforced upon or sued out against any substantial part of the undertaking or assets of the Issuer or the Guarantor and is not discharged within 30 days; or
- (x) the Senior Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be, in full force and effect,

then (i) the holder of any Note may declare such Note or (ii) the Representative, acting on the instructions of the Syndicate of Noteholders, may (if then permitted by applicable Spanish law) declare all the Notes, in each case by written notice to the Issuer at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, effective upon the date of receipt thereof by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, (in the case of paragraph (iv) and, in relation to the Issuer only, (vi) and (vii) above, only if then permitted by applicable Spanish Law) to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable at its Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 7(e)), together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment.

For the purpose of Condition 10(a) (vi), (viii) and (ix) a report by the auditors for the time being of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, as to whether any part of the undertaking, business or assets of the Issuer or the Guarantor is "substantial" shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive.

(b) Events of Default relating to Subordinated Notes

This Condition 10(b) shall apply only to Subordinated Notes and references to "Notes" shall be construed accordingly.

If any of the following events (each an Event of Default) shall have occurred and be continuing:

- a default is made for more than 14 days in the payment of any principal due in respect of any of the Notes or 21 days or more in the payment of any interest due in respect of any of the Notes;
- (ii) an order is made declaring the Issuer insolvent or an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (other than for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders of this Series); or
- (iii) an order is made by any competent court commencing insolvency proceedings (procedimientos concursales) against the Guarantor or an order is made or a resolution is passed for the dissolution or winding up of the Guarantor (except (i) in any such case for the purpose of a reconstruction or a merger or amalgamation which has been previously approved by the Syndicate of Noteholders or (ii) where the entity resulting from any such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation is a Financial Institution (as defined in Condition 10(a)) and will have a rating for long-term subordinated debt assigned by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or Moody's Investors Services equivalent to or higher than the rating for long-term subordinated debt of the Guarantor immediately prior to such reconstruction or merger or amalgamation),

then (i) the holder of any Note may declare such Note or (ii) the Representative, acting on the instructions of the Syndicate of Noteholders may (if then permitted by applicable Spanish law) declare all the Notes, in each case by written notice to the Issuer at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, effective upon receipt thereof by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, (in the case of paragraph (ii) above, only if then permitted by applicable Spanish Law) to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable at its Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 7(e)), together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment.

(c) As used herein:

Capital Markets Indebtedness means any loan or other indebtedness of any person (other than Project Finance Indebtedness) which is in the form of or represented by any bonds, notes, depositary receipts or other securities for the time being quoted or listed, with the agreement of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor, on any stock exchange; and

Project Finance Indebtedness means any present or future indebtedness incurred to finance the ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset, whether or not an asset of the Issuer or the Guarantor, in respect of which the person or persons to whom any such indebtedness is or may be owed by the relevant borrower (whether or not the Issuer or the Guarantor) is entitled to have recourse solely to such asset and revenues generated by the operation of, or loss or damage to, such asset.

The Insolvency Law came into force in Spain on 1st September, 2004. Among other things, the Insolvency Law provides: (i) that any claim not included in the company's accounts or otherwise reported to the insolvency administrators within one month from the last official publication of the court order declaring the insolvency may become subordinated, (ii) that provisions in a contract granting one party the right to terminate on the other's insolvency are not enforceable and (iii) for interest to cease to accrue from the date of declaration of the insolvency, see "Spanish Insolvency Law".

11. REPLACEMENT OF NOTES, RECEIPTS, COUPONS AND TALONS

Should any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or, so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Paying Agent in Luxembourg (in the case of Bearer Notes, Receipts or Coupons) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) upon payment by the claimant of such costs and expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

12. AGENTS

The names of the initial Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below.

The Issuer and the Guarantor are entitled to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent and/or appoint additional or other Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through which any Agent acts, provided that:

- (a) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent and a Registrar;
- (b) so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and/or any other stock exchange or admitted to listing by any other relevant authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) and a Transfer Agent (in the case of Registered Notes) with a specified office in Luxembourg and/or such other place as may be required by the rules and regulations of such other stock exchange or other relevant authority;
- (c) there will at all times be a Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union that will not be obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26th-27th November, 2000 or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; and
- (d) so long as any of the Registered Global Notes payable in a Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars are held through DTC or its nominee, there will at all times be an Exchange Agent with a specified office in New York City.

In addition, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New York City in the circumstances described in Condition 6(e). Any variation, termination, appointment or change shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor more than 45 days' prior notice thereof shall have been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 provided that no such variation, termination, appointment or changes shall take effect (except in the case of insolvency) within 7 days before any due date for the payment of any Note or any related Receipt or Coupon. Notice of all changes in the identities or specified offices of any Agent will be given promptly by the Issuer to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Guarantor and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of agency or trust with, any Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders. The Agency Agreement contains provisions permitting any entity into which any Agent is merged or converted or with which it is consolidated or to which it transfers all or substantially all of its assets to become the successor agent.

13. EXCHANGE OF TALONS

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including) the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 9.

14. NOTICES

All notices regarding the Bearer Notes will be deemed to be validly given if published in (i) one leading English language daily newspaper of general circulation in London (which is expected to be the *Financial Times*) and (ii) if and for so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange so require, in a daily newspaper of general circulation in Luxembourg (which is expected to be the *Luxemburger Wort* or the *Tageblatt*). The Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner which complies with the rules of any stock exchange or any other relevant authority on which the Bearer Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication or, where required to be published in more than one newspaper, on the date of the first publication in all required newspapers.

All notices regarding the Registered Notes will be deemed to be validly given if sent by first class mail or (if posted to an address overseas) by airmail to the holders (or the first named of joint holders) at their respective addresses recorded in the Register and will be deemed to have been given on the fourth day after mailing and, in addition, for so long as any Registered Notes are listed on a stock exchange or admitted to listing by another relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by those rules.

Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as any Global Notes representing the Notes are held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, be substituted for such publication in such newspaper(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC for communication by them to the holders of the Notes except that if the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange notice will in any event be published in accordance with the rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and, in addition, for so long as any Notes are listed on a stock exchange or admitted to listing by another relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by those rules. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the third day after the day on which the said notice was given to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC.

Copies of any notices given to Noteholders shall also be given in writing to the representative of Noteholders named in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together (in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes). Whilst any of the Notes are represented by a Global Note, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, in such manner as the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, may approve for this purpose.

15. MEETINGS OF NOTEHOLDERS

By purchasing this Note, the holder hereof is deemed to have agreed to the appointment of the representative for the Series of which this Note forms part named in the applicable Pricing Supplement (the Representative) and to become a member of the syndicate of Noteholders (the Syndicate) of that Series. The pro forma regulations of the Syndicate (the Regulations) are scheduled to the Agency Agreement.

The object of the Syndicate is to protect the legitimate interests of Noteholders as against the Issuer, in accordance with the applicable Spanish legislation. The address of the Syndicate is Paseo de la Castellana, 81, 28046 Madrid. The Syndicate shall exist until the Notes have been repaid and shall be automatically dissolved thereafter.

The Representative shall be the chairman and the legal representative of the Syndicate and shall take such action as it considers appropriate to protect the interests of the Noteholders.

16. MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

The Principal Paying Agent, the Issuer and the Guarantor may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to:

- (a) any modification (except as mentioned above) of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders; or
- (b) any modification of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Agency Agreement which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law in jurisdictions in which the Issuer or the Guarantor are incorporated provided that where such modification is prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders or is not solely of a formal, minor or technical nature the proposed modification shall only be made following prior notification to the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders in accordance with Condition 14.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders and any such modification shall, unless notified prior to the relevant modification, be notified to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 as soon as practicable thereafter.

17. FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as the Notes or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the outstanding Notes.

18. SUBSTITUTION

(a) Substitution of the Issuer

- (i) The Issuer may, without the consent of the Noteholders (and by subscribing any Notes, each Noteholder expressly consents to it) but, in the case of Subordinated Notes, subject to the prior consent of *Banco de España*, be replaced and substituted by the Guarantor or any other company of which 100 per cent. of the shares or other equity interests (as the case may be) carrying the right to vote are directly or indirectly owned by the Guarantor as principal debtor (in such capacity, the Substituted Debtor) in respect of the Notes provided that:
 - (A) a deed poll and such other documents (if any) shall be executed by the Substituted Debtor, the Representative, the Issuer and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor as may be necessary to give full effect to the substitution (together the Documents) and (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) pursuant to which the Substituted Debtor shall undertake in favour of each Noteholder to be bound by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the provisions of the Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant as fully as if the Substituted Debtor had been named in the Notes, the Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant as the principal debtor in respect of the Notes in place of the Issuer (or any previous substitute) and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) pursuant to which the Guarantor shall unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee (the New Guarantee) in favour of each

Noteholder the payment of all sums payable by the Substituted Debtor as such principal debtor on the same terms *mutatis mutandis* as the Senior Guarantee and/or the Subordinated Guarantee, as the case may be;

- **(B)** without prejudice to the generality of Condition 18(a)(i)(A), where the Substituted Debtor is incorporated, domiciled or resident for taxation purposes in a territory other than Spain, the Documents shall contain a covenant by the Substituted Debtor and/or such other provisions as may be necessary to ensure that each Noteholder has the benefit of a covenant in terms corresponding to the provisions of Condition 8 with the substitution for the references to Spain of references to the territory in which the Substituted Debtor is incorporated, domiciled and/or resident for taxation purposes. The Documents shall also contain a covenant by the Substituted Debtor and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor to indemnify and hold harmless each Noteholder against all taxes or duties which arise by reason of a law or regulation having legal effect or being in reasonable contemplation thereof on the date such substitution becomes effective, which may be incurred or levied against such holder as a result of any substitution pursuant to this Condition and which would not have been so incurred or levied had such substitution not been made (and, without limiting the foregoing, any and all taxes or duties which are imposed on any such Noteholder by any political sub-division or taxing authority of any country in which such Noteholder resides or is subject to any such tax or duty and which would not have been so imposed had such substitution not been made);
- (C) the Documents shall contain a warranty and representation by the Substituted Debtor and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor that the Substituted Debtor and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor have obtained all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents for such substitution and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) for the giving by the Guarantor of the New Guarantee in respect of the obligations of the Substituted Debtor on the same terms *mutatis mutandis* as the Senior Guarantee and/or the Subordinated Guarantee, as the case may be, that each of the Substituted Debtor and the Guarantor (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) has obtained all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents for the performance by each of the Substituted Debtor and the Guarantor (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) of its obligations under the Documents and that all such approvals and consents are in full force and effect;
- (D) each stock exchange which has the Notes listed thereon shall have confirmed that following the proposed substitution of the Substituted Debtor the Notes would continue to be listed on such stock exchange;
- (E) the Issuer shall have delivered or procured the delivery to the Representative, the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar a copy of a legal opinion addressed to the Issuer, the Substituted Debtor and the Guarantor from a leading firm of lawyers in the country of incorporation of the Substituted Debtor, to the effect that the Documents constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Substituted Debtor, such opinion(s) to be dated not more than seven days prior to the date of substitution of the Substituted Debtor for the Issuer and to be available for inspection by Noteholders at the specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar;
- (F) the Guarantor shall have delivered or procured the delivery to the Representative, the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar a copy of a legal opinion addressed to the Issuer, the Substituted Debtor and the Guarantor from a leading firm of Spanish lawyers acting for the Guarantor to the effect that in the case where the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor, the Documents (including the New Guarantee given by the Guarantor in respect of the Substituted Debtor) constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Guarantor, such opinion to be dated not more than seven days prior to the date of

substitution of the Substituted Debtor for the Issuer and to be available for inspection by Noteholders at the specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar;

- (G) the Guarantor shall have delivered or procured the delivery to the Representative, the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar a copy of a legal opinion addressed to the Issuer, the Substituted Debtor and the Guarantor from a leading firm of English lawyers to the effect that the Documents (including the New Guarantee given by the Guarantor in respect of the Substituted Debtor) constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the parties thereto under English law, such opinion to be dated not more than seven days prior to the date of substitution of the Substituted Debtor for the Issuer and to be available for inspection by Noteholders at the specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar;
- (H) the Substituted Debtor shall have appointed a process agent in England to receive service of process on its behalf in relation to any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Notes or the Documents;
- (I) there is no outstanding Event of Default in respect of the Notes;
- (J) any credit rating assigned to the Notes will remain the same or be improved when the Substituted Debtor replaces and substitutes the Issuer in respect of the Notes; and
- (K) the substitution complies with all applicable requirements established under Spanish law.
- (ii) Upon the execution of the Documents as referred to in Condition 18(a)(i) above, the Substituted Debtor shall be deemed to be named in the Notes as the principal debtor in place of the Issuer (or of any previous substitute under these provisions) and the Notes shall thereupon be deemed to be amended to give effect to the substitution. The execution of the Documents shall operate to release the Issuer (or such previous substitute as aforesaid) from all of its obligations in respect of the Notes.
- (iii) The Documents shall be deposited with and held by the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar for so long as any Note remains outstanding and for so long as any claim made against the Substituted Debtor or (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor by any Noteholder in relation to the Notes or the Documents shall not have been finally adjudicated, settled or discharged. The Substituted Debtor and (if the Substituted Debtor is not the Guarantor) the Guarantor shall acknowledge in the Documents the right of every Noteholder to the production of the Documents for the enforcement of any of the Notes or the Documents.
- (iv) Not later than 15 London Business Days after the execution of the Documents, the Substituted Debtor shall give notice thereof to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 and, if the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, a supplement to the Offering Circular relating to the Programme shall have been published and filed with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

(b) Substitution of the Guarantor

- (i) The Guarantor may, without the consent of the Noteholders (and by subscribing any Notes, each Noteholder expressly consents to it) but, in the case of Subordinated Notes, subject to the prior consent of *Banco de España*, be replaced and substituted by another company incorporated anywhere in the world as the guarantor (in such capacity, the Substituted Guarantor) in respect of the Notes provided that:
 - (A) a deed poll and such other documents (if any) shall be executed by the Guarantor and the Substituted Guarantor as may be necessary to give full effect to the substitution (together the Documents) and (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) pursuant to which the Substituted Guarantor shall undertake in favour of each Noteholder to be

bound by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the provisions of the Agency Agreement, and the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee, as the case may be, as fully as if the Substituted Guarantor had been named in the Notes, the Agency Agreement and the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee, as the case may be, as the guarantor in respect of the Notes in place of the Guarantor (or any previous substitute) and pursuant to which the Substituted Guarantor shall unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee (the New Guarantee) in favour of each Noteholder the payment of all sums payable by the Issuer as such principal debtor on the same terms *mutatis mutandis* as the Senior Guarantee and/or the Subordinated Guarantee, as the case may be;

- (B) the Documents shall also contain a covenant by the Substituted Guarantor to indemnify and hold harmless each Noteholder against all liabilities, costs, charges and expenses provided that insofar as the liabilities, costs, charges and expenses are taxes or duties, the same arise by reason of a law or regulation having legal effect or being in reasonable contemplation thereof on the date such substitution becomes effective, which may be incurred or levied against such holder as a result of any substitution pursuant to this Condition and which would not have been so incurred or levied had such substitution not been made (and, without limiting the foregoing, such liabilities, costs, charges and expenses shall include any and all taxes or duties which are imposed on any such Noteholder by any political sub-division or taxing authority of any country in which such Noteholder resides or is subject to any such tax or duty and which would not have been so imposed had such substitution not been made);
- (C) the Documents shall contain a warranty and representation by the Substituted Guarantor that the Substituted Guarantor has obtained all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents for such substitution and for the giving by the Substituted Guarantor of the New Guarantee, that the Substituted Guarantor has obtained all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents for the performance by the Substituted Guarantor of its obligations under the Documents and that all such approvals and consents are in full force and effect;
- (D) each stock exchange which has the Notes listed thereon shall have confirmed that following the proposed substitution of the Substituted Guarantor such Notes would continue to be listed on such stock exchange;
- (E) the Guarantor shall have delivered or procured the delivery to the Representative, the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar of a copy of a legal opinion addressed to the Guarantor, the Issuer and the Substituted Debtor from a leading firm of lawyers in the country of incorporation of the Substituted Guarantor to the effect that the Documents constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Substituted Guarantor, such opinion to be dated not more than seven days prior to the date of substitution of the Substituted Guarantor for the Guarantor and to be available for inspection by Noteholders at the specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar;
- (F) the Substituted Guarantor shall have delivered or procured the delivery to the Representative, the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar of a copy of a legal opinion addressed to the Guarantor, the Issuer and the Substituted Debtor from a leading firm of English lawyers to the effect that the Documents (including the New Guarantee given by the Substituted Guarantor) constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the parties thereto under English law, such opinion to be dated not more than seven days prior to the date of substitution of the Substituted Guarantor for the Guarantor and to be available for inspection by Noteholders at the specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar;

- (G) the Substituted Guarantor shall have appointed a process agent in England to receive service of process on its behalf in relation to any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Notes or the Documents;
- (H) there is no outstanding Event of Default in respect of the Notes;
- (I) the Substituted Guarantor has ratings for long-term senior and subordinated debt assigned by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. or Moody's Investors Service, Inc. which are the same as or higher than the credit rating for long-term senior and subordinated debt of the Guarantor or any previous Substituted Guarantor immediately prior to such substitution; and
- (J) the substitution complies with all applicable requirements established under Spanish law.
- (ii) Upon the execution of the Documents as referred to in Condition 18(b)(i) above, the Substituted Guarantor shall be deemed to be named in the Notes as the guarantor in place of the Guarantor (or of any previous substitute under these provisions) and the Notes shall thereupon be deemed to be amended to give effect to the substitution. The execution of the Documents shall operate to release the Guarantor (or such previous substitute as aforesaid) from all of its obligations in respect of the Notes and the Guarantees.
- (iii) The Documents shall be deposited with and held by the Principal Paying Agent and the Registrar for so long as any Note remains outstanding and for so long as any claim made against the Substituted Guarantor by any Noteholder in relation to the Notes or the Documents shall not have been finally adjudicated, settled or discharged. The Substituted Guarantor shall acknowledge in the Documents the right of every Noteholder to the production of the Documents for the enforcement of any of the Notes or the Documents.
- (iv) Not later than 15 London Business Days after the execution of the Documents, the Substituted Guarantor shall give notice thereof to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 and, if the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, a supplement to the Offering Circular relating to the Programme shall have been published and filed with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

19. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of the Notes, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available apart from that Act.

20. GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION

(a) Governing law

The Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant, the Deed Poll, the Notes (except for Condition 3), the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law. Condition 3 and the Guarantees are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Spanish law. In addition, the provisions of Condition 15 relating to appointment of the Representative and meetings of Noteholders are governed by Spanish law. The Notes are issued in accordance with the formalities prescribed by Spanish company law.

(b) Submission to jurisdiction

The Issuer agrees, for the benefit of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders, that the courts of England are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in connection with the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings (together referred to as **Proceedings**) arising out of or in connection with the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons may be brought in such courts. The Issuer hereby irrevocably waives any objection which it may have now or hereafter to the laying of the venue of any such Proceedings in any such court and any claim that any such Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum and hereby further irrevocably agrees that a judgment in any such Proceedings brought in the English courts shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in the courts of any other jurisdiction.

Nothing contained in this Condition shall limit any right to take Proceedings against the Issuer in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction, whether concurrently or not.

(c) Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer appoints the Guarantor at its registered office for the time being in England as its agent for service of process, and undertakes that, in the event of the Guarantor ceasing so to act or ceasing to be registered in England, it will appoint another person as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Proceedings. Nothing herein shall affect the right to serve proceedings in any other manner permitted by law.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will, in accordance with law 19/2003 of 4th July, 2003 on foreign capital movements and financial transactions and on certain measures to prevent money laundering which amends law 13/1985 of 25th May, 1985 on investment ratios, capital adequacy and information requirements for financial intermediaries, be deposited on a permanent basis with the Guarantor or with another credit entity (*entidad de crédito*) within the Group (as defined under "Description of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.") and will be used for the Group's general corporate purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF BBVA SENIOR FINANCE, S.A. UNIPERSONAL

Incorporation

BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal (BSF) was incorporated on 29th October, 2004 for an unlimited duration with limited liability under Spanish law. BSF's registered office is at Gran Vía, 1, Bilbao, Spain. BSF was registered at the Vizcaya Mercantile Registry (*Registro Mercantil de Vizcaya*) on 3rd November, 2004, Volume 4483, Book O, Page BI-40.901, Inscription 1.

Business

The exclusive objects for which BSF was established are, pursuant to Article 2 of its Bylaws, "the issue of preference securities and/or other financial instruments including any type of debt instrument, for placement in domestic or international markets".

Share Capital

BSF has an authorised share capital of EUR 60,102 divided into 10,017 ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of EUR 6.00 each. As of the date hereof, 10,017 ordinary shares with a par value of EUR 6.00 each had been issued and fully paid. BSF is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. and does not have any subsidiaries of its own.

Management

The Directors of BSF are as follows:

Name	Position at BSF	Present Principal Occupation Outside BSF
Carlos Pertejo Muñoz	Director/President	Director of Financial Management of BBVA
Jose Luis Domínguez de Posada de Miguel	Director	Director of Funding of BBVA
Ana Fernandez Manrique	Director	Director of Capital Management
Juan Carlos García Pérez	Independent Director	Manager of BBVA
Tomás Sanchez Zabala	Independent Director	Manager of BBVA
The husiness address of the Direc	store of BSF is Castellana	81 28046 Madrid

The business address of the Directors of BSF is Castellana, 81, 28046 Madrid.

CAPITALISATION OF BBVA SENIOR FINANCE S.A. **UNIPERSONAL**

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of BSF as at 31st October, 2004.

3	1st October, 2004 (Euros)
Assets Credit Entities	60,102
Liabilities Share capital ⁽¹⁾	60,102

Notes:

At 31st October, 2004, the authorised share capital of BSF consisted of EUR 60,102 divided into 10,017 ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of EUR 6.00 each. As of the date hereof, 10,017 ordinary shares with a par value of EUR 6.00 each had been issued and fully paid. (1)

As at the date of this Offering Circular, BSF has no loan capital outstanding or created but unissued, no term loans outstanding and no other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowing nor any contingent liabilities or guarantees. (2)

(3) There has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness, contingent liabilities and guarantees of BSF since 31st October, 2004.

DESCRIPTION OF BBVA SUBORDINATED CAPITAL, S.A. UNIPERSONAL

Incorporation

BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal (BSC) was incorporated on 29th October, 2004 for an unlimited duration with limited liability under Spanish law. BSC's registered office is at Gran Vía, 1, Bilbao, Spain. BSC was registered at the Vizcaya Mercantile Registry (*Registro Mercantil de Vizcaya*) on 3rd November, 2004, Volume 4483, Book O, Page BI-40.901, Inscription 1.

Business

The exclusive objects for which BSC was established are, pursuant to Article 2 of its Bylaws, "the issue of preference securities and/or other financial instruments including any type of debt instrument, for placement in domestic or international markets".

Share Capital

BSC has an authorised share capital of EUR 60,102 divided into 10,017 ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of EUR 6.00 each. As of the date hereof, 10,017 ordinary shares with a par value of EUR 6.00 each had been issued and fully paid. BSC is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. and does not have any subsidiaries of its own.

Management

The Directors of the BSC are as follows:

Name	Position at BSC	Present Principal Occupation Outside BSC		
Carlos Pertejo Muñoz	Director/President	Director of Financial Management of BBVA		
Jose Luis Domínguez de Posada de Miguel	Director	Director of Funding of BBVA		
Ana Fernandez Manrique	Director	Director of Capital Management		
Juan Carlos García Pérez	Independent Director	Manager of BBVA		
Tomás Sanchez Zabala	Independent Director	Manager of BBVA		
The business address of the Directors of BSC is Paseo de la Castellana 81, 28046, Madrid.				

CAPITALISATION OF BBVA SUBORDINATED CAPITAL, S.A. UNIPERSONAL

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of BSC as at 31st October, 2004.

31	st October, 2004 (Euros)
Assets Credit Entities	60,102
Liabilities Share capital	60,102

Notes:

(1) At 31st October, 2004, the authorised share capital of BSC consisted of EUR 60,102 divided into 10,017 ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of EUR 6.00 each. As of the date hereof, 10,017 ordinary shares with a par value of EUR 6.00 each had been issued and fully paid.

(2) As at the date of this Offering Circular, BSC has no loan capital outstanding or created but unissued, no term loans outstanding and no other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowing nor any contingent liabilities or guarantees.

(3) There has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness, contingent liabilities and guarantees of BSC since 31st October, 2004.

DESCRIPTION OF BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA, S.A.

BUSINESS

In this section, the terms BBVA and Group refer to Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. and its consolidated subsidiaries. The financial information contained in this section has been extracted from the 2003 Annual Report of BBVA.

BBVA is a highly-diversified international financial group, with strengths in the traditional banking businesses of retail banking, asset management and private banking and wholesale banking. It also has a portfolio of real estate and industrial holdings in some of Spain's leading companies. BBVA was incorporated for an unlimited term on 28th January, 2000. It is registered in the Mercantile Registry, in Companies Ledger 3,858, folio 1, inscription 1,035, Sheet number 17a.

Reorganisation in 2003

In 2003, BBVA reorganised its business areas to optimise the earnings and value-creation of each line of business and to more closely align the Group's organisational structure to the manner in which management has been setting business strategy and monitoring operating results. The principle features of the reorganisation were (i) the Retail Banking in Spain and Portugal area now includes asset management and private banking activities as well as retail banking (in 2002 these activities comprised a separate Asset Management and Private Banking in Spain and Portugal area), (ii) the Banking in America area now includes all Latin American, including Mexican operations with the exception of Argentinian and Brazilian operations (in 2002 Mexican operations were a separate business area), (iii) following the June 2003 sale of BBVA's interest in BBV Brasil, BBV Brazil is referenced in the Corporate Activities and Other area for the period January 2003 to June 2003 (under the equity method), and (iv) as a result of the special conditions which have affected BBVA's operations in Argentina, these operations also form part of the Corporate Activities and Other area and not the Banking in America area (as was the case prior to 2002). The Group's operations are separated into the following four areas:

- Retail Banking in Spain and Portugal: this area encompasses the Group's retail businesses in Spain and Portugal. It includes the residential customer and Small and Medium Entities (SME) segments in the domestic retail, asset management and private banking markets, the Finanzia group (which specialises in consumer financing and card distribution), the e-banking business through Uno-e Bank, BBVA Portugal domestic private banking, mutual and pension fund management and insurance businesses.
- Wholesale and Investment Banking: encompasses the Group's businesses with large companies and institutions through national and international corporate banking and institutional banking. In addition, it also includes the trading room businesses located in Spain, Europe and New York, equity distribution and origination business, the security deposit and custody service business and the real estate business.
- Banking in America: encompasses the operations of each of the Group's subsidiary banks in Latin America and their investee companies, including pension management and insurance companies and includes our international private banking business. This area does not include the results of BBVA's operations in Argentina or BBV Brazil's operations.
- Corporate Activities and Other: this encompasses the Group's financial and industrial holdings activities as well as the activities and results of the support units, such as the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee. In addition, this area includes the other operations or activities that, by their nature, cannot be assigned to any other business area, such as country risk provisions and amortisation of goodwill (except for the goodwill relating to the holdings of the Business and Real Estate Projects unit, which is included in the Wholesale and Investment Banking area). This area included the operations of BBV Brasil, until the closing of its sale in June 2003, and our operations in Argentina (both of them presented under the equity accounting heading).

Retail Banking in Spain and Portugal

The main focus of this business area was the implementation of the Financial Services Plan and the new business model launched by BBVA at the end of 2002. Significant progress was made in developing the three customer approach plans developed in this area, (i) the Personal Financial Services plan aimed at residential customers, (ii) the Commercial Financial Services plan aimed at SME's and businesses, and (iii) the Special Financial Services plan effected through Finanzia Banco de Crédito S.A. (Finanzia) and Uno-e Bank.

In the financial year 2003, this area achieved attributable profit of \notin 1,239 million euros, which represents 55.6 per cent. of the total income obtained by the Group and which gives a return on equity (ROE) of 30.9 per cent.

The business units included in the Retail Banking in Spain and Portugal business are:

Commercial Banking in Spain. The Commercial Banking unit makes the biggest contribution to Retail Banking in Spain and Portugal as it accounts for 73 per cent. of the area's ordinary revenue, 78 per cent. of customer funds and 71 per cent. of lending. In Spain, the Commercial Banking unit serves the residential, commercial and small business segments, providing specialist mortgage banking, personal banking and private banking, among other services.

Small and Medium Entities Banking. Small and Medium Entities (SME) Banking is the second-largest unit in the area in terms of both business volumes and contributions to net attributable profit, specialising in the management of the SME segment in Spain. As at 31st December, 2003, the unit managed 20.5 billion euros of loans and around \notin 7 billion euros of customer deposits, with year-on-year growth of 14.5 per cent. and 12.2 per cent., respectively.

Asset Management and Private Banking. This unit consists of eight subunits that can be grouped together, by business activity, in three blocks:

- Pensions, Asset Management, Global Administration and Savings Investment Services, which focus mainly on product generation;
- Personal Banking and BBVA Patrimonios, which have responsibility for the highest-income customer segment; and
- Control and Business Development, which are support subunits.

BBVA Portugal. With regards to the business in Portugal, in the financial year 2002 it was integrated with the Retail Banking in Spain. This means that the whole of the market in the Iberian peninsula is managed with the same strategy, which helps adapt products that have been a success in Spain to the Portuguese market.

Special Financial Services. This unit comprises Finanzia, the on-line bank Uno-e Bank (which in June 2003 was acquired by the consumer finance division of Finanzia) and Dinero Express.

Insurance Business in Europe unit engages in direct insurance and reinsurance and insurance broking in Spain and Portugal and markets its products mainly through BBVA's branches. In January 2004, BBVA entered into an agreement to sell to AXA Aurora Iberica, S.A. de Seguros y Reaseguros its 50 per cent. holding in Hilo Direct, S.A. de Seguros y Reaseguros, although BBVA's products will still be distributed through the BBVA network until mid 2007.

Wholesale and Investment Banking

The Wholesale and Investment Banking business area focuses on large corporate, governmental, non-governmental organisations and institutional investor clients.

Global Corporate Banking. This unit was created in 2003 to strengthen BBVA's relationship with its large Spanish and multi-national customers and take advantage of this customer segment's high growth potential. The Global Corporate Banking unit is further subdivided into the following four sub-units to manage its corporate banking activities: Corporate Banking Iberia, Corporate Banking Europe and Asia, Corporate Banking America and Global and Investment Banking. The Global Corporate Banking unit has branches in New York, London, Paris, Milan and Hong Kong.

Institutional Banking. This unit focuses on governmental and institutional clients, including the Spanish government, the governments of Spain's autonomous communities and private organizations, associations, foundations and insurance companies. This unit has a network of 42 branches in Spain, Portugal and Belgium.

The Institutional Banking unit operates in these markets under the BBVA brand name and through Banco de Crédito Local, a BBVA subsidiary that specializes in long-term financing.

In 2003, total lending managed by this unit increased by 9.3 per cent., enabling BBVA to regain its leadership in loans to public authorities in Spain, with a market share of over 38 per cent. of the banks and savings banks market.

Global Markets and Distribution. This unit focuses on a wide range of securities market-oriented activities. This business unit engages in treasury operations on behalf of BBVA and transactions for third-parties, which, as of 31st December, 2003, accounted for approximately 60 per cent. of the Global Markets and Distribution unit's net attributable profit.

Business and Real Estate Projects. This area manages the Group's portfolio of real estate holdings in Spain.

Global Transaction Services. This area was created in 2003 to manage BBVA's corporate and institutional transaction business, which is global in scope and offers a wide range of products and services, including domestic and international collections and payments, loans, trade bill discounting, factoring, confirming, credit cards, foreign trade, electronic banking, correspondent banking and cash pooling systems services.

Banking in America

Political and economic conditions in Argentina in the last several years have had a significant negative effect on the Argentinean banking sector and have consequently severely affected the operating results of BBVA's Argentinean subsidiaries. During 2002 and 2003, BBVA evaluated and managed its Argentinean operations as if they comprised a separate business area as opposed to a constituent part of the Banking in America business area where such operations would otherwise be included. Accordingly, BBVA's Argentinean subsidiaries' operations are discussed under the separate business area, "Argentina", and not as part of the Banking in America business area.

In addition, as a result of the 2003 internal reorganization of its business areas, BBVA's Banking in America business area now includes its Mexican operations, which had been included in a separate business area in 2002, and excludes its Brazilian operations, which were sold in June 2003. The operating results of its Brazilian operations have been included in the Corporate Activities and Other business area. Unless otherwise specified, information included below relating to macroeconomic data in the Latin American countries in which BBVA operates, such as gross domestic product (GDP) or inflation, has been drawn from BBVA's internal statistical studies based on information published by local governmental or regulatory authorities.

Economic conditions in the Latin American countries in which BBVA operates generally improved in 2003, with average growth in GDP, excluding Argentina, of 1.0 per cent., compared to 0.2 per cent. in 2002. In addition, the average rate of inflation in the region fell to 6.3 per cent. in 2003, compared to 8.0 per cent. in 2002. These positive macroeconomic developments, however, were offset by the sharp and widespread decrease in interest rates throughout Latin America and particularly in Mexico. In this context, BBVA sought to take advantage of rebounding economies by adapting its business strategies to the new interest rate levels, addressing each customer segment with individually tailored products and services, improving efficiency and reducing costs and intensifying overall risk management.

The Banking in America business area includes the banks, pension fund managers and insurance companies managed by BBVA in fourteen Latin American countries as well as BBVA's international private banking business, some of whose customers also come from this geographical area.

As of 31st December, 2003, this business area had total assets of €73,778 million, which represented 25.7 per cent. of BBVA's total assets, and, for the year ended 31st December, 2003, net attributable profit of €715 million, which represented 32 per cent. of BBVA's total net attributable profit.

BBVA's Banking in America business activities are carried out through its subsidiaries in Mexico, Colombia, Chile, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Puerto Rico, Uruguay and Venezuela. As at 31st December, 2003, BBVA had 2,950 branches in the region and employed 47,877 employees.

BBVA's Mexican operations form the core of its activities in Latin America and represented approximately two thirds of the Banking in America business area's total assets, operating profit and pre-tax profit as of 31st December, 2003. Operations in the three investment-grade countries in Latin America in which BBVA operates, Mexico, Chile and Puerto Rico, represented approximately 80 per cent. and 70 per cent. of the Banking in America business area's assets and net attributable profit, respectively, as at 31st December, 2003.

Mexico. BBVA's Mexican operations are conducted by Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A.de C.V (Bancomer), which includes a commercial bank, an investment bank, capital markets, insurance, pensions and other related operations. On 30th January, 2004, BBVA's Board of Directors adopted a resolution to launch a tender offer for the estimated 40.6 per cent. of the shares of Bancomer which were not already owned by BBVA. The tender offer was launched on 19th February, 2004 and expired on 19th March, 2004. As a result of the successful completion of the tender offer and subsequent purchases amounting to 0.56 per cent. of Bancomer's capital stock, at 31st March, 2004, BBVA owned 99.42 per cent. of Bancomer's issued share capital.

In 2003, Bancomer focused on improving productivity, reducing costs and expanding the range of products and services offered. In addition, an effort was made to decentralize many of the decisions previously made in Bancomer's central offices, decisions relating to the approval of certain loans, for example. Bancomer's total lending in 2003 increased by 4.8 per cent., from 2002, which was sufficient for Bancomer to maintain its position as the leading lender in the Mexican market, with a market share of 31.7 per cent. as at 31st December, 2003, compared to 32.2 per cent. in 2002 (source: *Sistema de Intercambio de Bancos*, December 2003). The fastest growing loan category in 2003 was the consumer loan and credit card segment, which grew by 24.9 per cent. compared to 2002. In addition, the Creditón Nómina consumer loan was also a strong performer in 2003, increasing by approximately 40 per cent. over 2002 in terms of total credits granted.

Bancomer also focused on increasing the number of its credit card clients and in 2003 launched several new cards, including the Mini Bancomer card and the Cash Back card. As of 31st December, 2003, Bancomer's clients had opened up approximately 3.5 million credit card accounts, an increase of approximately 900,000 accounts over 2002. Bancomer also launched the Business Card in 2003, which is marketed to small and medium sized corporate clients and allows them to access their credit lines through the Internet, cash dispensers, point of sale terminals in commercial establishments or Bancomer branches.

Bancomer's growth in lending was accompanied by its development of enhanced risk management mechanisms, such as a new system of credit scoring and fraud control, resulting in an improvement in overall loan quality. Bancomer's non-performing loan ratio decreased from 4.22 per cent. as at 31st December, 2002 to 3.95 per cent. as at 31st December 2003. As at 31st December, 2003 Bancomer's coverage ratio was 221.8 per cent.

Bancomer is the leader in Mexico in terms of customer deposits, with a market share of 32.7 per cent., compared to 31.8 per cent. as at 31st December, 2002 (source: Sistema de Intercambio de Bancos, December 2003). To increase customer deposits, Bancomer focused on increasing the volume of lower-cost deposits, such as current accounts and savings accounts, which rose 19.5 per cent. despite the relatively low level of economic growth in Mexico. Two specific products were the focus of Bancomer's drive to increase deposits; the "Libretón", a highly successful savings product, and time deposits, which took advantage of the interest rate spread between bank promissory notes and treasury securities. Overall, customer deposits grew 13.7 per cent. in 2003, compared to 2002.

Bancomer had nearly 900,000 on-line banking customers who performed an average of more than 22 million transactions per month, and more than 750,000 telephone banking customers who generated more than 3.5 million calls per month in 2003. Bancomer Transfer Services (BTS) performed approximately 15 million money transfer transactions in 2003, an increase of 18.8 per cent. over 2002, in the amount of approximately U.S.\$6 billion, which was an increase of 16.8 per cent. over 2002.

As at 31st December, 2003, Bancomer's pension fund affiliate, Afore BBVA Bancomer, had 4.3 million plan participants and €6,007 million in assets under management.

Chile. For BBVA Chile, 2003 was the second year of development and implementation of the "New Stage" strategic plan for the 2002-2005 period. The objective of this plan is to enhance BBVA Chile's innovation and, consequently, growth in all market segments.

Colombia. BBVA's Colombian affiliate, BBVA Colombia (formerly Banco Ganadero) had a strong 2003, due, in part, to the success of Plan Líder, under which BBVA Colombia focused on more profitable customer segments, improved the structure of its loans and deposits, cut back on its marginal low-profit businesses and increased the rate of recovery of past-due loans.

Panama. BBVA maintained lending at 2002 levels, but focused on improving its position in the retail banking sector, where it achieved lending growth of 42 per cent., compared to 2002. BBVA operates in the Panamanian pension fund sector through its 90 per cent. interest in BBVA Horizonte and its 25 per cent. interest in Progreso, which manages SIACAP's funds (the Government Employee Pension Capitalization and Savings System).

Paraguay. BBVA Paraguay continued to focus on lending in the agriculture sector, which is the most significant component of Paraguay's economy.

Peru. BBVA Banco Continental consolidated its position as the second-largest bank in Peru in terms of deposits and loans in 2003. BBVA operates in the Peruvian pension fund sector through AFP Horizonte.

Puerto Rico. BBVA Puerto Rico had a commercial network of 47 branches and 1,062 employees as at 31st December, 2003. Notable developments in BBVA Puerto Rico's operations in 2003 included a 7.1 per cent. increase in automobile financing and 19.2 per cent. increase in mortgage lending.

Uruguay. In light of the difficult and uncertain economic climate, BBVA Uruguay refocused its strategy on higher margin sectors, such as wholesale and VIP banking. BBVA Uruguay also reduced its branch network from 17 to 8 and the number of employees by a third to 151.

Venezuela. BBVA's Venezuelan affiliate, Banco Provincial, focused on five principal priorities: strict monitoring and control of risk, maintaining adequate liquidity levels, investing in certificates of deposit of the Central Bank rather than public debt securities, reducing costs and increasing customer segmentation in order to tailor products and services to individual customer needs.

Other countries. In Bolivia, as at 31st December, 2003, the pension fund manager BBVA Previsión de Bolivia had €1,227 million of assets under management. In 2003, a private pension system was created in the Dominican Republic and contributions were collected for the first time in June of that year. As at 31st December, 2003, BBVA Crecer, BBVA's Dominican Republic affiliate, was ranked third in terms of number of participants. In addition, in the last quarter of 2003, AFP Provida, our Chilean pension fund administrator affiliate, acquired Porvenir, a Dominican pension fund manager, which further strengthened BBVA's position in the Dominican Republic.

International Private Banking. This unit focuses on providing investment advice and asset management services to high net worth individuals through offices in Europe and America.

Corporate Activities and Other

The Corporate Activities and Other business area includes BBVA's portfolio of strategic and financial investments, the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) and other BBVA units that cannot be assigned to any other business area. As described above, the operating results of our Corporate Activities

and Other business area included the financial results of our interest in BBV Brasil from 1st January, 2004, to 9th June, 2004 and reflect the elimination of intra- and inter-business area transactions.

Assets and Liabilities Management Committee. The ALCO manages interest and exchange rate risks and wholesale financing and is responsible for overall supervision of BBVA's capital adequacy requirements. ALCO's management of exchange rate risk in 2003 was particularly important in light of BBVA's significant investments in Latin America and the sharp movements of Latin American currencies against the euro.

Large Industrial Corporations. This unit manages BBVA's strategic investments in certain large industrial companies in the Spanish telecommunications and energy sectors. In 2003, this unit undertook ≤ 257 million of investments and $\leq 1,433$ million of divestments, generating aggregate capital gains of ≤ 221 million. Most of the divestments in 2003 and early 2004 were intended to generate cash to finance part of the acquisition of the minority interest in Bancomer. The divestments also permitted the release of ≤ 615 million of regulatory capital. As at 31st December, 2003, the market value of BBVA's large industrial corporations portfolio amounted to $\leq 4,146$ million, with unrealized capital gains of ≤ 964 million.

Financial Holdings. This unit manages BBVA's financial investments. In the first half of 2003, BBVA sold its interest in Crédit Lyonnais in a tender offer by Crédit Agricole for all of Crédit Lyonnais's outstanding shares. This transaction gave rise to a capital gain of ≤ 342 million. As a result of BBVA's sale of its entire interest in its Brazilian affiliate, BBV Brasil, BBVA received a 4.44 per cent. interest in Bradesco, another Brazilian bank. This interest was subsequently increased to 5.0 per cent. In March, 2004, BBVA sold its 24.4 per cent. interest in Banco Atlántico in a tender offer by Banco Sabadell for all of Banco Atlántico's outstanding shares. The transaction gave rise to a ≤ 218 million capital gain.

Argentina. The political and economic conditions in Argentina in recent years have had a significant negative effect on the entire Argentinean banking sector and have consequently severely affected the operating results of BBVA's Argentinean banking, and, to a lesser extent, pension fund management operations during this period. Consequently, BBVA's management in 2003 and 2002 elected to separate the operating results of its Argentinean banking and pension fund management operations from the Banking in America and Asset Management and Private Banking areas, to which they were attributed in past years, and to manage them as part of a separate business area. BBVA operates in Argentina through its banking affiliate, BBVA Banco Francés, S.A. (Banco Francés), and its pension fund and insurance affiliate, Grupo Consolidar.

Administrative and Judicial Proceedings

On 22nd March, 2002, BBVA notified the supervisory authorities of the stock markets on which its shares are listed that the Bank of Spain had commenced proceedings against BBVA and 16 of its former directors and executives. These proceedings arose as a result of the existence of funds belonging to Banco Bilbao Vizcaya, S.A. that were not included in the entity's financial statements until they were voluntarily regularized by being recorded in the 2000 consolidated statement of income as extraordinary income, for which the related corporate income tax was recorded and paid. These funds totaled Ptas. 37,343 million (approximately \notin 225 million) and arose basically from the gains on the sale of shares of Banco de Vizcaya, S.A. and Banco Bilbao Vizcaya, S.A. from 1987 to 1992, and on the purchase and sale by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya, S.A. of shares of Argentaria, Caja Postal y Banco Hipotecario, S.A. in 1997 and 1998.

After dissolving the legal vehicles where the unrecorded funds were located and including the funds in its accounting records, BBVA notified the Bank of Spain of these matters on 19th January, 2001. The Bank of Spain's supervisory services commenced an investigation into the origin of the funds, their use and the persons involved, the findings of which were included in the supervisory services' report dated 11th March, 2002. On 15th March, 2002, the Bank of Spain notified BBVA of the commencement of a proceeding relating to these events.

On 9th April, 2002, the Central Examining Court Number 5 of the National Appellate Court ordered that these events be investigated in preliminary proceedings which are being conducted at the Court. Also, it required the Bank of Spain to stay the conduct of its proceeding until the criminal liability that may arise as a result of these events, if any, is determined.

On 22nd May, 2002, the Council of the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (CNMV) commenced proceedings against BBVA, S.A. for possible contravention of the Securities Market Law (under Article 99 ñ) thereof owing to the same events as those which gave rise to the Bank of Spain's proceedings and the legal proceedings. On 7th January, 2003, the CNMV stated that the proceedings were stayed until the final court decision on the criminal proceedings is handed down.

As of the date of this Offering Circular, none of the persons party to the proceedings or accused of the events referred to above is a member of the Board of Directors or the Management Committee or holds executive office at BBVA. Although the stayed proceedings, in which charges have not yet been brought, and the preliminary proceedings are at a very early stage, in view of the events and the surrounding circumstances, the Group's legal advisers do not expect them to have a material effect on BBVA.

Recent Developments

Tender offer for Bancomer. On 30th January, 2004, BBVA's Board of Directors adopted a resolution to launch a tender offer for the estimated 40.6 per cent. of the shares of Bancomer, BBVA's Mexican affiliate, which were not already owned by BBVA. The tender offer was launched on 19th February, and expired on 19th March, 2004. As a result of the successful completion of the tender offer and subsequent purchases amounting to 0.56 per cent. of Bancomer's capital stock, at 31st March, 2004, BBVA owned 99.42 per cent. of Bancomer's outstanding shares.

Increase of capital stock. On 5th February, 2004, to strengthen BBVA's capital ratios and finance a portion of the cost of the Bancomer tender offer, BBVA sold 195,000,000 of its newly-issued ordinary shares to institutional investors in Spain and abroad at the offer price of ≤ 10.25 per share.

Banco Francés. On 18th March, 2004, the Board of Directors of Banco Francés, BBVA's Argentine affiliate, resolved to implement a plan intended to improve Banco Francés's adjusted stockholders' equity and enable Banco Francés to comply with new minimum capital requirements established by the Argentine Central Bank. The plan provides for:

- (i) a capital increase of up to 385 million Argentinian pesos (approximately U.S.\$132.2 million (€108 million as of 31st March, 2004)), which will be submitted for approval at an ordinary and extraordinary stockholders' meeting and to the appropriate local authorities; and
- (ii) the sale of Banco Francés's entire interest in Banco Francés (Cayman) Limited, which has been approved by regulatory authorities of the Cayman Islands.

BBVA, as Banco Francés's largest shareholder, intends to participate in this plan by:

- (a) capitalising a loan granted by BBVA to Banco Francés in an amount up to U.S.\$77.7 million (€63.6 million as of 31st March, 2004) and
- (b) subscribing to a capital increase in an amount up to U.S.\$40 million (€32.7 million as of 31st March, 2004).

Furthermore, BBVA will acquire from Banco Francés its entire interest in Banco Francés (Cayman) Limited for a purchase price of U.S.\$238.5 million (€195 million as of 31st March, 2004), which is based on independent valuations of Banco Francés (Cayman) Limited provided by two independent valuation experts.

Due to the fact that (1) BBVA has made full provision for the loan referred to in (a) above, and (2) Banco Francés (Cayman) Limited is already fully consolidated by BBVA, BBVA believes the two transactions involving Banco Francés described above will not affect BBVA's consolidated operating results.

De-listing of BBVA shares listed on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange. As a result of BBVA's investment in Argentina, local authorities required BBVA's shares to be listed on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange (BASE). Currently, no shares are being traded on BASE. Therefore, in accordance with a shareholders' resolution BBVA applied on 1st April, 2004 for de-listing of BBVA shares currently then listed on BASE. On 15th June, 2004, de-listing was approved by BASE and the National Exchange Commission in Argentina.

Bancomer. In September 2004, Bancomer announced that it has reached an agreement to buy 100 per cent. of the mexican company HIPOTECARIA NACIONAL, the biggest privately-owned financial institution in Mexico specialising in the mortgage business. The total investment is U.S.\$375 million. In January 2005, having obtained all necessary authorisations, Bancomer completed the acquisition of 100 per cent. of HIPOTECARIA NACIONAL.

Sale of holding in VIDRALA, S.A. On 6th September, 2004 BBVA sold its 17.1 per cent. holding (representing 3,592,508 shares) in VIDRALA, S.A. to several investors at a price of \notin 12.25 per share, obtaining a surplus value of \notin 19.3 million. Following the sale, BBVA does not hold any permanent interest in VIDRALA, S.A.

Acquisition of LAREDO NATIONAL BANCSHARES Inc. (Laredo). On 21st September, 2004 BBVA announced that it had reached an agreement to buy 100 per cent. of Laredo, a financial group operating out of Texas (USA). The total investment is U.S.\$850 million. The agreement will be effective once the requisite administrative permits have been obtained.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES COMPOSING THE BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA GROUP

			Perce	ntage of Own	ership		Thousands	of Euros th	
Company	Location	Line of Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	Capital Stock as of 31/12/03	Reserves as of 31/12/03	Net Income (Loss) for 2003	Net Investment G.E.
ADMINISTRAD. DE FONDOS									
PARA EL RETIRO-BANCOMER, S.A DE C.V ADMINISTRADORA DE FONDOS	MEXICO	PENSIONS	17.50	82.50	100.00	11,063	66,283	77,509	354,414
DE PENSIONES PROVIDA (AFP PROVIDA)	CHILE	PENSIONS	12.70	51.62	64.32	112,809	93,401	41,063	180,423
AEROCER, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO EL SALVADOR	SERVICES PENSIONS	0.00 0.00	100.00 62.08	100.00 62.08	3,647 18,641	4,473 -204	-137 6,112	7,520 17,101
AFP GENESIS ADMINISTRADORA									-
DE FONDOS, S.A AFP HORIZONTE, S.A	ECUADOR PERU	PENSIONS PENSIONS	0.00 24.85	100.00 75.15	100.00 100.00	934 4,166	460 4,460	536 17,916	1,869 26,910
AFP PORVENIR S.A. REPUBLICA DOMINICANA AFP PREVISION BBV-ADM.DE	REPUBLICA DOMINICANA	PENSIONS	0.00	100.00	100.00	6,299	-1,513	-730	698
FONDOS DE PENSIONES S.A	BOLIVIA	PENSIONS	75.00	5.00	80.00	2,182	345	3,154	2,063
ALGORTA, S.A ALMACENES GENERALES DE	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	3,010	3,186	88	6,197
DEPOSITO, S.A.E. DE ALTURA MARKETS, A.V., S.A		PORTFOLIO SECURITIES	83.90 50.00	16.10 0.00	100.00 50.00	14,934 10,000	13,876 814	6,676 4,624	12,649 5,000
ANCLA INVESTMENTS, S.A.	PANAMA	DEALER PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	8	88,571	8,754	8,142
APOYO MERCANTIL S.A. DE C.V.	MEXICO	INSTRUM.	0.00	100.00	100.00	513	-484	-4	0
ARAGON CAPITAL, S.L.	SPAIN	REAL EST FINANCIAL SERVICES	99.90	0.00	99.90	4	26,077	-418	37,355
ARGENTARIA INTERNACIONAL DE PANAMA, S.A.	PANAMA	PENSIONS	0.00	100.00	100.00	998	59	159	1,254
ARGENTARIA SERVICIOS, S.A	CHILE	SERVICIOS	100.00	0.00	100.00	1,151	170	71	676
ARGENTARIA, S.A BANC INTERNACIONAL	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	60	-2	1	59
D'ANDORRA, S.A	ANDORRA	BANKING	0.00	\$1.00	51.00	42,407	239,361	71,119	15,528
BANC INTERNACIONAL OF ANDORRA (CAYMAN) LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,959	1,803	-18	3,989
BANCA MORA, S.A BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA	ANDORRA	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00 ⁽²⁾	30,060	0	0	0
(DEUTSCHLAND), A.G	GERMANY	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	256	6,122	-1,390	279
BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA (PANAMA), S.A	PANAMA	BANKING	53.96	44.81	98.77	22,724	75,488	18,610	20,099
BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA (PORTUGAL), S.A.	PORTUGAL	BANKING	9.52	90.48	100.00	125,000	53,761	5,481	183,916
BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA CHILE, S.A	CHILE	BANKING	59.35	6.92	66.27	204,937	113,899	34,780	263,476
BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA PUERTO RICO	PUERTO RICO	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	109,852	223,831	34,700	109,852
BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA URUGUAY, S.A	URUGUAY	BANKING	100.00	0.00	100.00	35,244	28,710	-19,571	42,693
BANCO CONTINENTAL, S.A	PERU	BANKING	0.00	92.01	92.01	181,935	46,844	43,925	246,833
BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL, S.A. BANCO DE PROMOCION DE	SPAIN	BANKING	100.00	0.00	100.00	151,043	118,345	58,320	509,597
NEGOCIOS, S.A BANCO DEPOSITARIO BBVA, S.A.	SPAIN SPAIN	BANKING BANKING	0.00 0.00	99.79 100.00	99.79 100.00	14,039 5,412	17,981 19,958	455 36,850	15,126 1,595
BANCO FRANCES (CAYMAN), LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS		0.00	100.00	100.00	65,150	226,590	107,536	386,469
BANCO INDUSTRIAL DE BILBAO, S.A.	SPAIN	BANKING	0.00	99.92	99.92	32.775	142,992	13,711	97.211
BANCO OCCIDENTAL, S.A	SPAIN	BANKING	49.43	\$0.57	100.00	11,630	3,007	329	14,953
BANCO PROVINCIAL OVERSEAS N.V.	DUTCH ANTILLES	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	23,753	331	5,768	26,895
BANCO PROVINCIAL S.A BANCO UNIVERSAL	VENEZUELA	BANKING	1.85	53.74	55.59	45,513	163,171	159,458	168,146
BANCO UNO-E BRASIL, S.A.	BRAZIL	BANKING	100.00	0.00	100.00	12,436	1,625	1,652	
BANCOMER ASSET MANAGEMENT INC	U.S.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	4	-2	0	2
BANCOMER FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.	U.S.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,704	-246	59	3,512
BANCOMER FOREIGN EXCHANGE INC	U.S.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,584	876	-149	2,328
BANCOMER PAYMENT SERVICES INC.	U.S.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	44	-10	-4	30
BANCOMER SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL, INC.	U.S.	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	2,699	484	2,534	5,453
BANCOMER TRANSFER		SERVICES							
SERVICE BANINBAO DE INVERSIONES, S.A.		FINANCIAL PORTFOLIO	0.00 0.00	100.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	2,375 734	13,305 783	11,022 25	25,559 1,541
BBV AMERICA FUND MANAGER									
LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	380	12,380	2,577	402
BBV AMERICA, S.L BBV BANCO DE	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	583,127	-134,005	-178,904	305,655
FINANCIACION S.A	SPAIN	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	58,298	8,941	658	64,200
BBV GESTION DE CAPITALES, S.A. S.G.C.	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	903	2,981	791	1,271
BBV PRIVANZA SERVICIOS PATRIMONIALES, S.L.	CDA INT	FINANCIAL	80.00	20.00	100.00	3	370	18	1
-		SERVICES							
BBV SECURITIES HOLDINGS, S.A.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	99.86	0.14	100.00	15,571	17,922	-1,445	32,049

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

.

			Perce	intage of Own	ership		Thousands	s of Euros ^m	
				· · ·		Capital	_	Net	
Company	Location	Line of Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	Stock as of 31/12/03	Reserves as of 31/12/03	Income (Loss) for 2003	Net Investment G.E.
	Location	business	Direct	manect	Iotai	51/12/05	31/12/03	107 2003	u.c.
BBVA & PARTNERS ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT A.V., S.A.	SPAIN	SECURITIES DEALER	70. 00	0.00	70.00	908	-15	301	967
BBVA ADMINISTRADORA GENERAL DE FONDOS S.A	CHILE	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	4,337	5,597	1,670	11,664
BBVA AREA INMOBILIARIA, S.L	SPAIN	SERVICES INSTRUM.	100.00	0.00	100.00	72,475	52,587	11,164	109,537
BBVA BANCO FRANCES, S.A	ARGENTINA	REAL EST BANKING	40.71	38.89	79.60	98,972	445,753	-82,647	56,641
BBVA BANCO GANADERO, S.A BBVA BANCOMER ASESORA DE	COLOMBIA	BANKING	76.15	19.22	95.37	21,555	114,338	17,883	119,745
FONDOS, S.A. DE C.V.		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	4	-1	0	3
BBVA BANCOMER CAPITAL TRUST I. BBVA BANCOMER GESTION.	0.3.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	12,244	0	0	12,251
S.A. DE C.V.	MEXICO	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	99.99	99.9 9	70	30	7,834	6,843
BBVA BANCOMER HOLDING CORPORATION	U.S .	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	2,130	742	2,27 9	4,915
BBVA BANCOMER SERVICIOS ADMINISTRATIVOS, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	4	94	86	172
BBVA BANCOMER SERVICIOS, S.A.	MEXICO	SERVICES BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	203,987	134,057	82,611	416,600
BBVA BANCOMER, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	269,792	2,612,271	502,311	3,317,839
BBVA CAPITAL FINANCE, S.A.	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	60	0	159	60
BBVA CAPITAL FUNDING, LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS		100.00	0.00	100.00	0	884	22,595	0
BBVA CAPITAL MARKETS OF PUERTO RICO, INC	PUERTO RICO		100.00	0.00	100.00	637	4,828	101	7,132
BBVA CARTERA DE INVERSION,		SERVICES							-
SIMCAV BBVA CEME INVERSIONES, S.A.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	60.16	0.00	60.16	69,732	99,064	2,916	46,876
S.I.M.C.A.V		PORTFOLIO	61.00	0.00	61.00	15,982	1,765	142	3,766
BBVA COMMERCIAL PAPER BV	NETHERLANDS	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	18	0	-10	18
BBVA COMMERCIAL PAPER, LIMITED	CAYMAN ISLANDS	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	8	25	11	8
BBVA CORREDORES DE BOLSA, S.A	CHILE	SECURITIES	0.00	100.00	100.00	8,707	2,781	1,928	13,456
BBVA CRECER AFP, S.A.	DOMINICAN REPUBLIC	DEALER FINANCIAL SERVICES	70.00	0.00	70.00	7,197	-357	-4,128	2,569
BBVA DINERO EXPRESS, S.A		FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	3,306	-336	-784	2,188
BBVA E-COMMERCE, S.A BBVA FACTORING E.E.C., S.A	SPAIN SPAIN	SERVICES FINANCIAL	100.00 0.00	0.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	60,000 26,874	-10,740 124,551	-11,040 7,817	38,221 126,447
BBVA FIDUCIARIA , S.A	COLOMBIA	SERVICES FINANCIAL	0.00	99.98	99.98	2,497	982	142	3,601
BBVA FINANCE (DELAWARE) INC.	U.S.	SERVICES FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	119	325	-17	119
BBVA FINANCE (UK), LTD.	U.K.	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,192	8,051	382	3,324
BBVA FINANCE SPA	ITALY	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	4,648	417	75	4,648
BBVA FUNDOS		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,000	3,460	917	998
BBVA GEST BBVA GESTION, SOCIEDAD	PORTUGAL	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,000	5,493	1,219	998
ANONIMA, SGIIC	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	17.00	83.00	100.00	2,140	79,024	48,230	11,436
BBVA GLOBAL FINANCE LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS		100.00	0.00	100.00	1	2,453	331	c
BBVA HOLDING BV BBVA HORIZONTE PENSIONES Y	NETHERLANDS	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	18	45	-27	64
CESANTIAS, S.A BBVA HORIZONTE, S.A	COLOMBIA PANAMA		78.52 90.00	1.76 0.00	80.28 90.00	9,893 3,959	10,120 0	6,720 299	20,941 3,563
BBVA IFC, S.A. (PORTUGAL)		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	21,903	-976	-4,789	32,737
BBVA INTERNATIONAL FINANCE BV	NETHERLANDS	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	18	0	0	18
BBVA INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION	PUERTO RICO		100.00	0.00	100.00	2,479,543	-117,474	-713	2,880,416
BBVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.	CAYMAN ISLANDS		100.00	0.00	100.00	1	3,041,087	185,623	1
BBVA IRELAND PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY	IREI ANT	SERVICES FINANCIAL	100.00	0.00	100.00	312	237,200	14,992	180,381
BBVA PARAGUAY, S.A.	PARAGUAY	SERVICES	99.99	0.00	99.99	5,327	5,884	7,608	180,381
BBVA PARTICIPACIONES INTERNACIONAL, S.L.		FINANCIAL	92.69	7.31	100.00	53,307	252,157	5,115	272,724
BBVA PENSIONES CHILE, S.A BBVA PENSIONES, SA, ENTIDAD	CHILE	SERVICES	32.23	67.77	100.00	204,556	56,255	15,565	274,215
GESTORA DE FONDOS DE PENSIONES	SPAIN	PENSIONS	100.00	0.00	100.00	12,922	13,016	58,70 9	12,922
BBVA PREFERRED CAPITAL	CAYMAN ISLANDS		100.00	0.00	100.00	1	208	16,575	1

			Perce	intage of Own	ership		Thousands	of Euros ^m	
			-			Capital		Net	
Company	Location	Line of Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	Stock as of 31/12/03	Reserves as of 31/12/03	income (Loss) for 2003	Net Investment G.E.
Company BBVA PRIVANZA BANK	LOCOLOGI	DUSINGSS			10(21	31/12/03	31/12/03	101 2003	<u> </u>
(JERSEY), LTD BBVA PRIVANZA GESTORA	CHANNEL ISLANDS	BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	9,232	77,941	1,785	20,610
SGIIC, S.A.	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	99.99	0.01	100.00	3,907	10,609	11,010	3,906
BBVA PRIVANZA INTERNATIONAL	CIDDALTAR	PANKONC	0.00	100.00	100.00	2 0 2 0	75 3/7	12 077	0 533
(GIBRALTAR), LTD BBVA PROMOCIONES, S.A BBVA REAL STATE 2003 S.I.I		BANKING PORTFOLIO FINANCIAL	0.00 0.00 100.00	100.00 100.00 0.00	100.00	2,838 285 9,018	75,267 98 0	13,077 248 0	8,523 354 9,018
BBVA RENTING, S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	47,118	17,001	10,430	20,897
BBVA SECURITIES HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED	11 K	SERVICES FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	26,389	-26,467	-158	0
BBVA SECURITIES INC.		SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	20,507	30,641	-1,785	29,248
BBVA SECURITIES LTD	U.K.	SERVICES FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	30,839	-27,401	36	2,578
BBVA SENIOR FINANCE BV	NETHERLANDS		0.00	100.00	100.00	100	0	-66	100
BBVA SOCIEDAD LEASING		SERVICES		07.40	07.40				6 (04
HABITACIONAL BHIF		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	97.48	97.48	2,433	2,853 0	333	5,491
BBVA SUBORDINATED CAPITAL BV BBVA SUIZA, S.A. (BBVA	NETHERLANDS	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	100	U	-65	100
SWITZERLAND) BBVA VALORES GANADERO, S.A.	SWITZERLAND	BANKING	39.72	60.28	100.00	46,537	111,813	22,073	54,789
COMISIONISTA DE BOLSA		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,106	1,038	160	2,287
BBVA, S.A BBVAPR HOLDING CORPORATION		PORTFOLIO PORTFOLIO	99.99 100.00	0.01 0.00	100.00 100.00	60 109,852	2 783	0 -27	60 275,876
BCL GLOBAL FUNDING BV	NETHERLANDS	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	60	0	-10	61
BCL INTNAL. FINC. LTD.	CAYMAN ISLANDS	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	0	277	133	0
BCL PARTICIPACIONES, S.L.		PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,350	5,744	-5,769	1,326
		FINANCIAL SERVICES PORTFOLIO	100.00 0.00	0.00 80.02	100.00 80.02	1 4,176	0 7,889	0 560	0
BEXCARTERA, S.I.M.C.A.V., S.A BHIF ASESORIAS Y SERVICIOS FINANCIEROS, S.A.		FINANCIAL	0.00	98.60	98.60	4,178	1,195	1,508	8,533
BI-BM GESTIO D'ACTIUS, S.A		SERVICES FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	301	1,476	7,681	301
BILBAO VIZCAYA AMERICA B.V	NETHERLANDS		0.00	100.00	100.00	17	373,041	-114,628	571,563
BILBAO VIZCAYA HOLDING, S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES PORTFOLIO	89.00	11.00	100.00	35,549	-1,022	3,073	34,771
BILBAO VIZCAYA INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMPANY	LUXEMBURG	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	75	8,640	1,055	77
BROOKLINE INVESTMENTS, S.L CANAL INTERNATIONAL	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	3	31,618	-553	33,969
HOLDING (NETHERLANDS) BV. CANAL INTERNATIONAL	NETHERLANDS	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	150	3,546	26	494
HOLDING, S.A CANAL REAL ESTATE, S.A	LUXEMBURG PANAMA	FINANCIAL	36.00 0.00	64.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	149,893 6,575	714,223 -1,713	-35,668 -173	255,843 6,575
CANAL TRUST COMPANY, LTD	CHANNEL ISLANDS	SERVICES FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	35	145	538	35
CARTERA E INVERSIONES S.A., CIA DE	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	132	102,408	76,794	60,541
CASA DE BOLSA BBV - PROBURSA, S.A. DE C.V		FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	29,579	15,439	8,222	52,093
CASA DE CAMBIO PROBURSA,		SERVICES							
S.A. DE C.V.	MEXICO	REAL EST.	0.00	89.56	89.56	6	7	0	12
CATYA INVESTMENTS LIMITED CIA. GLOBAL DE MANDATOS Y	CAYMAN ISLANDS	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	8	125	° 0	8
REPRESENTACIONES, S.A.	URUGUAY	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	2,922	-838	-2,016	356
CIDESSA DOS, S.L.		PORTFOLIO PORTFOLIO	0.00 0.00	100.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	72 60	9,346 32,119	837 47,655	10,255 4,754
CIERVANA, S.L.		PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	6,026	41,793	4,941	52,593
INVERSIONES, S.L.	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	3	169,402	-2,913	243,252
CONSOLIDAR A.F.J.P., S.A CONSULTORES DE PENSIONES	ARGENTINA	PENSIONS	46.11	53.89	100.00	948	59,712	4,676	62,992
BBV, S.A.	SPAIN		0.00	100.00	100.00	60	989	-50	175
NEGOCIOS, S.A. DE C.V. (EN LIQ.) CONTINENTAL BOLSA, SDAD.		SERVICES	0.00	96.00	96.00	0	5	-5	0
AGENTE DE BOLSA S.A.	PERU	SECURITIES DEALER SERVICES	0.00	100.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	1,265 640	106	72	1,376
CONTINENTAL S. TTTULIZADORA CONTINENTAL S.A. SOCIEDAD ADMINISTRADORA DE	PERU	SERVICES	0.00			64U		16	643
FONDOS	00017	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	2,258	128	276	2,551

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

•

			Perce	entage of Own	ership		Thousands	of Euros [®]	
		Line of				Capital Stock as of	Reserves as of	Net Income (Loss)	Net Investment
Company	Location	Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	31/12/03	31/12/03	for 2003	G.E.
CORPORACION AREA INMOBILIARIA BBVA, S.L CORPORACION DE	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	97,455	63,247	30,140	164,703
ALIMENTACIÓN Y BEBIDAS, S.A. CORPORACIÓN DE SERVICIÓS	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	54,090	92,445	-1,220	138,508
LOGISTICOS, S.A CORPORACION GENERAL	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	87. 6 4	12.36	100.00	2,009	-1,002	-21	986
FINANCIERA, S.A CORPORACION IBV PARTICIPACIONES	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100	0.00	100.00	149,152	830,466	95,323	541,251
EMPRESARIALES, S.A.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	\$0.00	50.00	228,446	29,126	136,362	137,385
Y TECNOLOGIAS, S.A.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	50.00	50.00	265,642	213,412	112,410	137,031
DE SERVICIOS, S.L.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	60	284	-126,338	1,251
FINANCIERA, S.A	ARGENTINA	FINANCIAL SERVICES	29.96	70.04	100.00	15,351	-3,836	-3,486	8,962
DESARROLLO OMEGA, S.A DESITEL TECNOLOGIA Y	PANAMA	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	8	486	111	8
SISTEMAS, S.A. DE C.V.	MEXICO	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	210	901	54	1,158
MOBILIARIA E-VENTURES CAPITAL	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,624	6,679	960	11,263
INTERNET, S.A.	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	50.00	50.00	3,012	11,600	-1,628	64,678
ELANCHOVE, S.A ESPANHOLA COMERCIAL E	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	1,204	1,312	1,035	1,500
SERVIÇOS, LTDA	BRAZIL	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	912	-865	78	0
EUROPEA DE TITULIZACION, S.A., SDAD.GEST.DE FDOS.DE	(B) (B)		~~~~				4 202	4 700	
		FINANCIAL SERVICES	82.97	0.00	82.97	1,803	1,292	1,772	1,506
FACTOR MULTIBA, S.A. DE C.V		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1,418	-1,397	0	0
FACTORAJE PROBURSA, S.A. DE C.V.	MEXICO	REAL EST	0.00	100.00	100.00	2,333	-1,760	0	572
FAMIARO, S.A.	PANAMA	REAL EST.	0.00	100.00	100.00	296	-105	-27	166
FINANCIERA ESPAÑOLA, S.A FINANZIA RENTING, S.A		PORTFOLIO FINANCIAL SERVICES	85.85 0.00	14.15 100.00	100.00 100.00	4,495 60	929 3,322	1,003 1,875	5,590 79
FINANZIA TRUCK, EFC, S.A	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	5,416	3,728	117	8,596
FINANZIA, BANCO DE CREDITO, S.A FINIDES SDAD. COMANDITARIA		BANKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	14,983	79,361	11,549	56,203
POR ACCIONES	FRANCE	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	8	1	389	360
DE INVERSIONES, S.A. G.F.C.INVERS	ARGENTINA	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	27	2,481	640	3,094
FRANCES VALORES SOCIEDAD DE BOLSA, S.A	ARGENTINA	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	430	1,209	395	1,993
FRECCIA HOLDING, S.A	PANAMA		0.00	100.00	100.00	8	-110	-99	-184
FRONARINA, S.A.	PANAMA		0.00	100.00	100.00	8	-107	-65	-150
GESTION DE PREVISION Y	(D. 1)	REAL EST.	8 0.00			40.000		4 (17	
PENSIONES, S.A GESTION Y ADMINISTRACION	SPAIN		70.00	0.00	70.00	12,600	4,891	1,627	8,830
DE RECIBOS, S.A. GFB SERVICIOS, S.A. DE C.V.	SPAIN MEXICO		0.00 0.00	100.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	150 621	112 870	166 3	150 1,495
GRAN JORGE JUAN, S.A GRELAR GALICIA, S.A.		REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO	100.00 0.00	0.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	13,222 3,089	-3,106 902	0 66	10,116 4,057
GRUPO FINANCIERO BBVA BANCOMER, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	FINANCIAL	8.40	\$1.03	59.43	71,921	3,708,796	626,659	2,865,161
HOLDING CONTINENTAL, S.A		SERVICES PORTFOLIO	50.00	0.00	50.00	242,164	7,791	30,326	111,735
INMOBILIARIA ASUDI, S.A	SPAIN	REAL EST	99.99	0.01	100.00	84	2,869	18	2,971
INMOBILIARIA BERNARDO, S.A	SPAIN	INSTRUM. REAL EST.	51.22	48.78	100.00	736	3,562	225	2,911
INMUEBLES Y RECUPERACIONES CONTINENTAL	PERU		0.00	100.00	100.00	39,186	-8,855	-5,328	25,525
INVERAHORRO, S.L.	SPAIN	REAL EST PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	61	401	7	467
INVERSIONES BANPRO INTERNATIONAL INC. N.V	DUTCH ANTILLES		48.01	0.00	48.01	26,920	486	5,796	10,289
INVERSIONES BAPROBA, C.A INVERSIONES MOBILIARIAS, S.L INVERSIONS I SERVEIS	VENEZUELA SPAIN	SERVICES SERVICES PORTFOLIO	100.00 100.00	0.00 0.00	100.00 100.00	752 489	321 144	232 14	1,222 648
INTERNACIONALS, S.A. COMPANYIA DE	ANDORRA	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,010	0	0	3,010
INVERSORA OTAR, S.A KANTARA LIMITED		PORTFOLIO	0.00	99.91 100.00	99.91 100.00	17 2	66,885 2,003	-11,989 -94	2 1,871
LEASIMO - SOCIEDADE DE LOCACAO FINANCEIRA, S.A	DODTICAT	FINANCIAL	0.00	100.00	100.00	7,500	8,615	726	11,576
LEHKA	PANAMA	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	236	-6	-21	236
MERCURY BANK & TRUST LTD	CAYMAN ISLANDS	REAL EST.	0.00	100.00	100.00		-6 751	-21 -160	3,921
MEACONT DAINN & TRUST LID	GALMAN ISLANDS	DAINKING	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,312	/31	-160	3,921

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

	Percent			entage of Own	ership		Thousands	of Euros ^m	
Company	Location	Lina of Business	Direct	indirect	Total	Capital Stock as of 31/12/03	Reserves as of 31/12/03	Net Income (Loss) for 2003	Net Investment G.E.
MILANO GESTIONI, SRL	ITALY	INSTRUM.	0.00	100.00	100.00	46	166	- 5	46
0.000		REAL EST.							
OCCIVAL, S.A.		PORTFOLIO	100.00 0.00	0.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	3,141	3,867	1,088	8,081
OLIMAR, S.A	MEXICO	PORTFOLIO INSTRUM.	0.00	100.00	100.00	619	1,681	50	2,324
OPCION VOLCAN, S.A	MEXICO	REAL EST.	0.00	100.00	100.00	18,272	32,035	8,051	57,237
PARTICIPACIONES ARENAL, S.L PARTIDES SDAD. COMANDITARIA	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	4,673	1,030	94	5,809
POR ACCIONES		PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	8	1	296	628
PILOT INVEST.SECS CORP PROMOCION EMPRESARIAL	CAYMAN ISLANDS		100.00	0.00	100.00	0	0	2,428	C
XX, S.A	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	100.00	0.00	100.00	1,599	329	23	1,522
PROMOCIONES INMOBILIARIAS	CDADI	THEFTOTAL	100.00	0.00	100.00	1 202	240	17	1 210
ARJONA, S.A	SPAIN	INSTRUM. REAL EST.,	100.00	0.00	100.00	1,202	240	17	1,210
PROMOTORA PROMEX, S.A.									
DE C.V. (EN LIQ.)		FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	39	-11	-3	25
PROVIDA INTERNACIONAL, S.A PROVINCIAL CORREDOR DE BOLSA DE PRODUCTOS	CHILE	PENSIONS	0.00	100.00	100.00	30,244	6,182	18,689	53,267
AGRICOLAS, C.A.	VENEZUELA	SECURITIES DEALER	0.00	100.00	100.00	25	-18	-5	2
PROVINCIAL DE VALORES CASA									
DE BOLSA	VENEZUELA	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	90.00	90.00	1,485	786	1,465	3,237
ENTIDADES DE INV.COLECTIVA,									
C.A	VENEZUELA	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	817	126	-69	889
PROVIVIENDA, ENTIDAD RECAUDADORA Y ADMIN.DE									
APORTES, S.A.	BOLIVIA	PENSIONS	0.00	100.00	100.00	109	71	-24	158
PROYECTOS INDUSTRIALES	BOLIVIA	FEINSIONS	0.00	100.00	100.00	109	71	-24	158
CONJUNTOS, S.A. DE PSA FINANCE ARGENTINA	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,005	352	50	3,148
COMPAÑIA FINANCIERA, S.A	ARGENTINA	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	50.00	50.00	4,840	2,344	-1,064	3,113
S.GESTORA FONDO									
PUBL.REGUL.MERCADO									
HIPOTECARIO, S.A	SPAIN	FINANCIAL SERVICES	77.20	0.00	77.20	150	29	-22	138
S.I.P.I.E.M.S.A. (EN LIO.)	MOROCCO	PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.264	-1,165	0	c
SCALDIS FINANCE, S.A.		PORTFOLIO	0.00	100.00	100.00	3,084	393	5	3,416
BANCOMER, S.A. DE C.V SERVICIOS EXTERNOS DE APOYO	MEXICO		0.00	100.00	100.00	4	202	18	220
EMPRESARIAL, S.A DE C.V.	MEXICO	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	535	611	36	1,177
Y ANALISIS FINANC.,S.A SOCIETAT GENERAL		PORTFOLIO	100.00	0.00	100.00	1,470	171,157	1,627	114,518
D'INVERSIONS, S.L SOCIETE HISPANO-MAROCAINE		PORTFOLIO PORTFOLIO	0.00 0.00	100.00 100.00	100.00 100.00	1	1 -185	59 0	t D
DE SERVICES, S.A. (EN LIQ.) SPORT CLUB 18, S.A.		PORTFOLIO	0.00 99.98	0.02	100.00	1,173 60	-185 -1,361	6,905	12,010
TRANSITORY CO	PANAMA		0.00	100	100.00	8	-1,361 -226	-558	-710
	SPAIN		34.35	32.65	67.00	80,317			

 Information on foreign companies at exchange rate on 12/31/03

 (1)
 Unaudited data

 (2)
 Consolidated with Bane Internacional D'Andorra, S.A.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON OWNERSHIP INTERESTS HELD BY THE BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA GROUP (Including the most significant companies which, taken as a whole, represent 98 per cent. of the total investment in this connection) (as of 31st December, 2003)

			Perce	ntage of Owne	rship	Thousands of Euros			
Сотралу	Location	Line of Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	Capital Stock	Reserves	Net Income (Loss)	Consoli- dated Cost
A. COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD LISTED COMPANIES									
ACERINOX, S.A.	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	0.99	5.01	6.00 ^{ch}	65,800	1,359,974	175,4650	109,478
BANCA NAZIONALE DEL LAVORO,								ŕ	
S.P.A	ITALY	BANKING	14.37	0.00	14.37	1,087,555	2,451,096	90,738°'	548,872
BANCO ATLANTICO, S.A	SPAIN	BANKING	24.37	0.00	24.37	125,568	385,648	52,574ª	147,87
BANCO BRADESCO, S.A	BRAZIL	BANKING	5.00	0.00	5.00	1,400,714	1,288,905	255,087 ^m	190,149
BRUNARA SIMCAV, S.A.	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.54	16.03	16.57	28,026	351,054	-55,011	29,642
CEMENTOS LEMONA, S.A	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	6.54	0.00	6.54	6,160	83,137	15,756ª	7,48
GAMESA CORPORATIVA, S.A	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	1.16	15.89	17.05 ^{a)}	40,550	215,751	135,610 ^{ch}	108,177
GAS NATURAL SDG, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	3,36	0,11	3,47**	444,776	2,739,108	805,865ª	162,63
IBERDROLA, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	2.91	5,31	8.22(5)	2,704,648	4,612,277	968,644 ^{cs}	850,116
IBERIA LINEAS AEREAS DE ESPAÑA,		021111020		0.01		2,00,000	.,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	7.48	0.00	7.48%	712,110	448,507	157,120 ^{ca}	138,282
REPSOL YPF Y EMPRESAS						·,			
VINCULADAS	SPAIN	SERVICES	6.10	0.00	6.107	1,220,863	10,596,000	1,952,000	977,95
SOGECABLE, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.16	3.88	4.04	194,048	158,573	-54,24043	22,25
TELEFONICA, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	1.81	4.28	6.09 ^m	4,860,661	17,712,140	-5,576,800	1,814,15
TUBOS REUNIDOS, S.A.	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	0.00	24.26	24.26	17,078	123,998	13,442 ⁽¹⁾	17,93
VIDRALA, S.A.	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	15.66	1.53	17.19	21,318	92,712	15,516 ^m	24,03
UNLISTED COMPANIES			10100			,			2,,00
AZERTIA, TECNOLOGIAS DE LA INFORMACION, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	50.00	\$0.00	36,132	1,440	-6,705	16,77
COMPAÑIA ESPAÑOLA DE FINANCIACION DEL DESARROLLO	JIMIY	SLAVICES	0.00	50.00	50.00	50,152	1,440	-0,705	10,772
S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES	21.82	0.00	21.82	39,396	6,278	450	10,063
CONCESION SABANA DE OCCIDENTE,									
S.A	COLOMBIA	SERVICES	0.00	47.20	47.20	5,224	8,699	2,463	7,96
CONSERVAS GARAVILLA, S.A.	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	0.00	41.17	41.17	8,270	40,771	-1,984 ^m	18,01
G.H. ELECTROTERMIA, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	39.25	39.25	1,641	12,196	1,514	6,38
GRUBARGES INVERSION HOTELERA, S.L	SPAIN	SERVICES	33.33	0.00	33.33	259,410	12,466	-8,529 ⁽¹⁾	88,13
HILO DIRECT SEGUROS Y									
REASEGUROS, S.A	SPAIN	INSURANCE	0.00	50.00	50.00	38,145	0	4,318	22,17
HOLDING DE PARTICIPACIONES									
INDUSTRIALES 2000, S.A	SPAIN	PORTFOLIO	0.00	50.00	50.00	41,469	4,022	-1,896	22,27
INENSUR BRUNETE, S.L.	SPAIN	REAL STATE	0.00	50.00	50.00	7,410	0	-39	9,58
LANDATA PAYMA, S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	\$0.00	50.00	15,380	44,180	11,096	31,09
ONEXA, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	FINANCIAL SERVICES	0.00	49.8	49.80	246,277	-172,501	-77,650 ^m	37,76
PROMOTORA METROVACESA, S.L	SPAIN	REAL STATE	0.00	\$0.00	50.00	18,278	1,718	77	10,02
TECNICAS REUNIDAS, S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	25.00	25.00	5,687	67,878	21,183ª	31,26
TELTRONIC, S.A.	SPAIN	INDUSTRIAL	0.00	50.00	50.00	247	15,553	3,389	9,63
URBAPLAN 2.001, S.A.	SPAIN	REAL STATE	0.00	33.33	33.33	18,030	-11	-258	6,07
OTHER COMPANIES									117,29
								TOTAL	5,593,22

Data taken from the latest financial statements approved as of the date of preparation of this annual report, generally relating to 2002.

In the case of foreign companies, the exchange rate as of the reference date is applied.

(1) Consolidated data

- (2) 5.01 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (3) 15.89 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (4) 3.24 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (5) 5.37 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (6) 7.25 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (7) 5.61 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (8) 3.87 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding
- (9) 5.17 per cent. of which relates to the long-term holding, including 1.82 per cent. which is not accounted for by the equity method because its market risk is hedged with derivatives.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON COMPANIES IN THE NON-CONSOLIDABLE GROUP OF THE BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA GROUP (Including the most significant companies which, taken as a whole, represent 91% of the total investment in this connection) (as of 31st December, 2003)

			Perce	ntage of Own	ership		Thousands	s of Euros	
Company	Location	Line of Business	Direct	Indirect	Total	Capital Stock	Reserves	Net Income (Loss)	Consoli- dated Cost
UNLISTED COMPANIES									
ASSEGURANCES PRINCIPAT, S.A AUTOMERCANTIL-COMERCIO E ALUGER DE VEICULOS AUTOM.,	ANDORRA	INSURANCE	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.503	1,622	848	4,229
LDA.	PORTUGAL	SERVICE	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.247	6.562	-4,401	13,400
BBVA CONSOLIDAR SEGUROS, S.A BBVA DESARROLLOS INMOBILIARIOS.	ARGENTINA	INSURANCE	87.78	12.22	100.00	1.166	5,391	251	9,605
S.L	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	100.00	100.00	35.976	7,594	855	110,145
BBVA SEGUROS DE VIDA, S.A BBVA SEGUROS GANADERO COMPAÑIA	CHILE	INSURANCE	0.00	100.00	100.00	4.008	294	164	13,385
DE SEGUROS DE VIDA, S.A	COLOMBIA	INSURANCE	94.00	6.00	100.00	6.306	256	990	7.53
BBVA SEGUROS, S.A.	SPAIN	INSURANCE	97.15	2.78	99.93	180.378	114,294	98,695	419,924
BBVA TRADE, S.A.	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.803	8,575	1,119	17,111
RIESGOS DEL TRABAJO, S.A	ARGENTINA	INSURANCE	87.50	12.50	100.00	933	27,127	-1,960	31,643
RETIRO, S.A	ARGENTINA	INSURANCE	33.33	66.67	100.00	777	11,553	-1,751	10,278
VIDA, S.A DESARROLLO URBANISTICO DE	ARGENTINA	INSURANCE	34.04	65.96	100.00	933	10,375	445	13,306
CHAMARTIN, S.A.	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	72.50	72.50	73.625	-767	142	20,084
EDIFICIO LINARES, S.L.	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	100.00	0.00	100.00	4.988	100	-592	4,592
EL ENCINAR METROPOLITANO, S.A	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	98.76	98.76	64	7,596	67	6,682
FINANZIA AUTORENTING, S.A	SPAIN	SERVICES	0.00	85.00	85.00	6.880	4,280	2,124	13,072
INMOBILIARIA BILBAO, S.A.	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.746	1,704	51	3,466
RURAL MEXIQUENSE, S.A DE C.V	MEXICO	REAL ESTATE	0.00	73.66	73.66	11.890	12,784	-837	8,499
LARRABEZUA INMOBILIARIA, S.L	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	100.00	100.00	3	4,073	222	46,35
PENSIONES BANCOMER, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	INSURANCE	0.00	100.00	100.00	10.420	19,191	16,660	53,024
SEGUROS BANCOMER, S.A. DE C.V	MEXICO	INSURANCE	24.99	75.01	100.00	16.386	45,458	25,989	89,647
SEGUROS PROVINCIAL, C.A SENORTE VIDA Y PENSIONES, S.A.	VENEZUELA	INSURANCE	0.00	100.00	100.00	1.307	1,560	2,750	6,008
CIA.DE SEGUROS Y REASEG.	SPAIN	INSURANCE	0.00	100.00	100.00	33.356	7,277	2,514	42,624
UNITARIA INMOBILIARIA, S.L	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	100.00	100.00	42.071	5,446	9,616	51,294
URBANIZADORA TINERFEÑA, S.A	SPAIN	REAL ESTATE	0.00	100.00	100.00	6.987	1,569	188	8,889
OTHER COMPANIES								TOTAL	91.793 1 ,054,869

Data taken from the latest financial statements approved as of the date of preparation of this annual report, generally relating to 2002.

In the case of foreign companies, the exchange rate as of the reference date is applied.

NOTIFICATION OF ACQUISITION OF INVESTEES (ART. 86 OF THE CORPORATIONS LAW AND ART. 53 OF SECURITIES MARKET LAW 24/1988) (as of 31st December, 2003)

		Percentage of	Ownership	
Investee		Net Percentage Acquired(Sold) in the Year	Percentage at Year-End	Date of Notification to Investors
Acquisitions in 2002				
ACERINOX, S.A.	INDUSTRIAL	-4.12	9.69	12.17.02
ACESA INFRAESTRUCTURAS, S,A.	SERVICES	-5.28	0.12	10.15.02
ARGENTARIA AHORRO, S.A., SIMCAV (1)	PORTFOLIO	-74.31	0.00	02.18.02
				and 01.17.03
BBV CEME MONETARIO, S.A., SIMCAV	PORTFOLIO	56.67	56.67	07.16.02
				and 01.17.03
BBV SAN IGNACIO, S.A. (2)	REAL ESTATE	-67.5	0.00	03.20.02
				and 04.16.02
BBV URDANIBIA, S.A.	REAL ESTATE	5.50	75.00	03.20.02
BBVA & PARTNERS ALTERNATIVE				
INVESTMENT A.V., S.A	SECURITIES D	EALER 6.16	70.00	08.16.02
BOLSAS Y MERCADOS ESPAÑOLES				
SDAD.HOLDING MERCAD.Y SIT.FIN.	FINANCIAL SI		10.45	12.16.02
ECUALITY E-COMMERCE QUALITY, S.A.	SERVICES	28.00	28.00	02.18.02
GLADIUS CONSULTING, S.L.	REAL ESTATE	10.00	36.00	01.10.03
METROVACESA, S.A.	REAL ESTATE	-28.28	0.58	07.17.02
PROYECTOS INDUSTRIALES CONJUNTOS,	DODTTOLIO	50.00	100.00	02 40 02
S.A. DE	PORTFOLIO REAL ESTATE	50.00	100.00	02.18.02
RESIDENCIAL O'DONNELL, S.A. (2)	REAL ESTATE	-75.00	0.00	04.16.02
Acquisitions in 2003				
ASISTENCIA EN GESTION TRIBUTARIA, S.A	SERVICES	15.00	100.00	06.11.03
				and 10.07.03
BBV URDANIBIA, S.A. ⁽³⁾	REAL ESTATE	25.00	0.00	04.10.03
BBVA CEME INVERSIONES, S.A. S.I.M.C.A.V	PORTFOLIO	4.33	61.00	07.10.03
BEXCARTERA, S.I.M.C.A.V., S.A.	PORTFOLIO	0.11	80.02	11.12.03
DESARROLLO INMOBILIARIO DE				
LANZAROTE S.A	REAL ESTATE	40.80	40.80	03.10.03
EDIFICACIONES NERVION, S.A.	REAL ESTATE	9.43	60.00	12.10.03
ELECTRONICA BASICA, S.A.	SERVICES	12.50	50.00	01.26.04
HISPANO INDONESIA DE PESCA, S.A.	FINANCIAL SE	ERVICES 50.00	50.00	09.12.03
INENSUR BRUNETE, S.L.	REAL ESTATE	50.00	50.00	07.10.03

(1) Company absorbed by BBV CEME Monetario, S.A., SIMCAV in December 2002

(2) Company absorbed by BBV URDANIBIA, S.A. in December 2002

(3) Company absorbed by BBVA Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L. in December 2003

-

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BBVA is managed by a board of directors which, in accordance with its current by-laws (*Estatutos*) as approved by the General Meeting of shareholders on 28th February, 2004, must consist of no less than 9 and no more than 16 members. All members of the board of directors are elected to serve five-year terms. One fifth of the members are subject to re-election every year by the shareholders at a general meeting. Directors are appointed to the Board of Directors by our shareholders.

The Board of Directors has created the Executive Committee, the Audit and Compliance Committee, the Appointments and Compensation Committee and the Risk Committee. All the Board of Directors Committees were formed on 28th June, 2002.

BBVA's Board of Directors is assisted in fulfilling its responsibilities by the Executive Committee (Comisión Delegada Permanente) of the Board of Directors, which, under BBVA's Regulations of the Board of Directors, must be comprised of at least half plus one independent director. The Board of Directors delegates all management functions, except those that it must retain due to legal or statutory requirements, to the Executive Committee.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of BBVA is currently comprised of 15 members. The business address of the Directors of BBVA is Paseo de la Castellana 81, 28046 Madrid.

The following table sets forth the names of the members of the Board of Directors as of the date of this Offering Circular, their date of appointment and re-election, if applicable, their current positions and their present principal outside occupation and five-year employment history.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

.

Name	Current Position	Date Nominated	Date Re-elected	Present Principal Outside Occupation and Five-Year Employment History ^(*)
Francisco González Rodríguez ⁽¹⁾	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer	18th December, 1999		Director, Empresa Nacional de Electricidad, S.A., October 1996 – October 2000; Chairman, Argentaria, May 1996 – January 2000; Chairman, Uno-e Bank, S.A., December 1999 – January 2000; Chairman, BBVA, since January 2000.
José Ignacio Goirigolzarri Tellaeche ⁽¹⁾	President and Chief Operating Officer	18th December, 2001	1st March, 2003	Director, Telefónica. S.A., April 2000- April 2003; Vice President, Repsol YPF, S.A., April 2002 – April 2003; Director, BBVA Bancomer Servicios, S.A.; Director, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer; Director, BBVA Bancomer, S.A.; Managing Director, Retail Banking, BBV, 1995 – 2000; Managing Director, Banking in America, BBVA, 2000 – 2001, President and Chief Operating Officer, BBVA, since 2001.
Juan Carlos Álvarez Mezquíriz ⁽¹⁾⁽³⁾	Independent Director	18th December, 1999	10th March, 2001	Managing Director, Grupo Eulen; Director, Bodegas Vega Sicilia, S.A.
Richard C. Breeden	Independent Director	29th October, 2002	28th February, 2004	Chairman, Richard C. Breeden & Co.; Chairman, President and CEO, Equivest Finance, Inc., 1996 – 2002; Bankruptcy Trustee, Bennett Funding Group, 1996- 2002.
Ramón Bustamante y de la Mora ¹²⁾⁽⁴⁾	Independent Director	18th December, 1999		Director, Ctra. Inmo. Urba. Vasco- Aragonesa, S.A.
José Antonio Fernández Rivero ⁽⁴⁾	Non- independent External Director	28th February, 2004		Appointed General Manager of BBVA Systems and Operations, 1999, Appointed Group General Manager, 2000, since 2003; Deputy Chairman of Telefónica and Member of its Audit and Regulation Committees, Member of the Board and Executive Committee of Iberdrola, Director of Banco de Crédito Local and Chairman of Adquira; Currently Director of Iberdrola S.A. and Vice-president of Telefonica S.A.
Ignacio Ferrero Jordi ⁽²⁾⁽³⁾	Independent Director	18th December, 1999		Chairman, Nutrexpa, S.A.
Román Knörr Borrás ⁽¹⁾	Independent Director	28th May, 2002	1st March, 2003	Chairman, Carbónicas Alavesas, S.A.; Director, Aguas de San Martín de Veri, S.A.; Director, Mediasal 2000, S.A.; Chairman, Confebask (Basque Business Confederation).
Ricardo Lacasa Suárez ⁽²⁾⁽⁴⁾	Independent Director	28th May, 2002	1st March, 2003	CEO, Banco Popular Español, S.A., until 1999.
Carlos Loring Martínez de Irujo ⁽²⁽³⁾	Independent Director	28th February, 2004		Partner, J&A Garrigues, since 1977; Director of the Department of Mergers and Acquisitions, of Banking and Capital Markets, Member of the Management Committee since 1985.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Name	Current	Date	Date	Present Principal Outside Occupation			
	Position	Nominated	Re-elected	and Five-Year Employment History ^(*)			
José Maldonado Ramos ⁽⁴⁾⁽³⁾	Director and General Secretary	18th December, 1999	28th February, 2004	Director, Telefónica S.A., February 1999 April 2003; Secretary of the Board of Directors and Director and Genera Secretary, Argentaria since May 1997-2000 Director and General Secretary, BBVA, sinc January 2000.			
Enrique Medina	Independent	18th December,	28th February,	Director and Secretary, Sigma Enviro, S.A.			
Fernández ⁽¹⁾⁽⁴⁾	Director	1999	2004				
Susana Rodríguez Vidarte ⁽²⁾	Independent Director	28th May, 2002	1st March, 2003	Dean of Deusto "La Comercial" University since 1996.			
José María San	Independent	18th December,	10th March,	Director and Managing Director,			
Martín Espinós ⁽¹⁾⁽³⁾	Director	1999	2001	Construcciones San Martín, S.A.			
Telefónica de España, S.A. ⁽⁶⁾	Non-independent External Director	1 /					

(*) Where no date is provided, positions are currently held.

(1) Member of the Executive Committee

(2) Member of the Audit and Compliance Committee

(3) Member of the Appointment and Compensation Committee

(4) Member of the Risk Committee

(5) Secretary of the Board of Directors

(6) Represented by Mr. Angel Vilá Boix

CAPITALISATION OF BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA, S.A.

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of BBVA as at 31st December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 and 30th September, 2004 extracted without material adjustment from its audited consolidated balance sheet at 31st December, 2002 and 31st December, 2003 and from its unaudited consolidated balance sheet at 30th September, 2004.

	E	uros (million)
31st December 2002	31st December 2003	30th September 2004
6,487	7,400	7,196
22,394	28,259	34,555
5,129	6,124	5,904
34,010	41,783	47,655
5,674	5,426	4,366
10,788	10,844	13,998
1,566	1,566	1,662
12,354	12,410	15,660
52,038	59,619	67,681
	December 2002 6,487 22,394 5,129 34,010 5,674 10,788 1,566 12,354	31st December 2002 31st December 2003 6,487 7,400 22,394 28,259 5,129 6,124 34,010 41,783 5,674 5,426 10,788 10,844 1,566 1,566 12,354 12,410

Notes:

(1) All indebtedness indicated under "Subordinated debt" and "Promissory notes" was as at 31st December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 and 30th September, 2004 unsecured. Indebtedness indicated under "Debentures and bonds" was as at 31st December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 and 30th September, 2004 unsecured, except for certain secured mortgage bonds (which are secured by mortgages which may at any given time be held by the issuer bank) of which the total outstanding face value amount at 31st December, 2002 was €8,777 million, at 31st December, 2003 was €11,741 million and at 30th September, 2004 was €16,229 million. None of the long term debt as at 31st December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 or 30th September, 2004 was guaranteed.

(2) The increase in total long-term debt of the Group of €5,872 million during the period from 1st January, 2004 to 30th September, 2004 was due to new issues of secured mortgage bonds, subordinated debt and other bonds, as well as changes in exchange rates, during such period. This increase was due to a decrease in "Subordinated debt" of €204 million, an increase in "Debentures and bonds" of €6,296 million (comprising an increase in mortgage bonds of €4,488 million and an increase in other bonds and debentures of €1,808 million) and a decrease in "Promissory notes" of €220 million.

(3) At 31st December, 2003, and 30th September, 2004 the share capital of BBVA consisted of 3,195,852,043 and 3,390,852,043 shares respectively of Common Stock of euro 0.49 face value each, all of which were issued and fully paid.

(4) The total amount of contingent liabilities and guarantees outstanding as at 31st December, 2003 was €16,652 million, of which contingent liabilities accounted for €3,063 million and guarantees outstanding accounted for €13,589 million. Since 31st December, 2003, the Guarantor has not guaranteed any Notes issued under its Euro Medium Term Note Programme.

(5) As at 30th September, 2004, the Guarantor had no outstanding convertible bonds or warrants.

(6) Save as disclosed in note 4 above, there has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness, contingent liabilities and guarantees of the Group since 30th September, 2004.

....

SUMMARY OF SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND STATISTICAL DATA

The consolidated balance sheet data set out below has been extracted without material adjustment from the audited financial statements of the Group as at 31st December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 and 30th September, 2004. The ratios have been calculated on the basis of the audited financial statements of the Group and the other statistical data has been derived from the Group's books and records and is unaudited.

Euros (million)

	31st December 2002	31st December 2003	30th September 2004
Total Assets	279,542	287,150	310,352
Total lending	146,413	153,271	170,067
Customer funds	180,570	182,830	195,899
Capital base (Bank of Spain regulations)	18,283	18,799	17,708
Consolidated ratios			
Capital ratios			
Average shareholders' equity to average total assets	4.33	4.32	4.63
Shareholders' equity to total assets	4.42	4.32	5.05
BIS Ratio	12.5	12.70	11.7
Tier I	8.4	8.50	7.8
Tier II	4.1	4.20	3.8
Profitability ratios			
Return on average shareholders' equity	13.7	18.40	19.7
Return on average total assets	0.85	1.04	1.04
Net interest margin ⁽¹⁾	2.7	2.42	2.32
Credit quality ratios			
Allowance for possible loan losses as a percentage of			
total loans and leases	3.5	2.90	2.65
Substandard loans as a percentage of total lending ⁽²⁾	2.37	1.74	1.05
Allowance for possible loans and losses as a percentage			
of substandard loans	146.8	166.3	235.8
Other statistical data			
Number of shareholders	1,179,074	1,158,887	1,117,771
Number of branches	7,504	6,924	6,936
Number of employees	93,093	86,197	84,617
	,	,	,

Notes:

(1) Net interest margin represents net interest income (not on a tax equivalent basis) as a percentage of average total assets.

(2) Substandard loans include (i) loans 90 days or more past due as to principal and interest and other doubtful loans and (ii) certain sovereign and cross-border risk of countries in difficulties.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

The following table sets out the consolidated profit and loss account of BBVA for the years ended 31st December, 2002 and 31st December, 2003 and for the nine month period ended 30th September, 2004, in each case extracted without material adjustment from the audited consolidated financial statements of BBVA for the years ended 31st December, 2002 and 31st December, 2003 and from the unaudited consolidated financial statements of BBVA for the three month period ended 30th September, 2004, respectively.

Euros (million)

	31st December 2002	31st December 2003	30th September 2004
Financial revenues	17,233	12,537	9,172
Financial expenses	(9,784)	(6,260)	(4,434)
Income from equities portfolio	358	464	523
Net interest income	7,807	6,742	5,261
Net fee income	3,668	3,263	2,523
Market operations	765	652	369
Net ordinary revenue	12,241	10,656	8,153
Personnel costs	(3,697)	(3,263)	(2,359)
of which: wages and salaries	(2,744)	(2,458)	(1,765)
employee welfare expenses	(624)	(571)	(594)
General expenses	(2,074)	(1,768)	(1,294)
General administrative expenses	(5,772)	(5,031)	(3,653)
Amortisation	(631)	(511)	(340)
Other operating revenues	34	17	16
Other operating expenses	(296)	(237)	(160)
Operating income	5,577	4,895	4,016
Net income from companies carried by the equity method	33	383	309
Amortisation of goodwill from consolidation	(679)	(639)	(496)
Net income on Group transactions	361	553	358
Net loan loss provisions	(1,743)	(1,277)	(714)
Net securities writedowns	3	0	0
Net extraordinary income	(433)	(103)	(240)
Income before taxes	3,119	3,812	3,233
Corporate income tax	(653)	(915)	(882)
Net income	2,466	2,897	2,351
Minority interests	(747)	(670)	(292)
Net attributable profit	1,719	2,227	2,059

BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg (together, the Clearing Systems) currently in effect. The Issuers and the Guarantor take responsibility for the correct extraction and reproduction of the information in this section concerning the Clearing Systems, but none of the Issuers, the Guarantor nor any Dealer takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof. Investors wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the continued applicability of the rules, regulations and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor nor any other party to the Agency Agreement will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the Notes held through the facilities of any Clearing System or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Book-entry Systems

DTC

DTC has advised the Issuers and the Guarantor that it is a limited purpose trust company organised under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organisation" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds securities that its participants (Participants) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Participants of securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic computerised bookentry changes in Participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organisations. DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc. and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC System is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (Indirect Participants).

Under the rules, regulations and procedures creating and affecting DTC and its operations (the Rules), DTC makes book-entry transfers of Registered Notes among Direct Participants on whose behalf it acts with respect to Notes accepted into DTC's book-entry settlement system (DTC Notes) as described below and receives and transmits distributions of principal and interest on DTC Notes. The Rules are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Direct Participants and Indirect Participants with which beneficial owners of DTC Notes (Owners) have accounts with respect to the DTC Notes similarly are required to make book-entry transfers and receive and transmit such payments on behalf of their respective Owners. Accordingly, although Owners who hold DTC Notes through Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will not possess Registered Notes, the Rules, by virtue of the requirements described above, provide a mechanism by which Direct Participants will receive payments and will be able to transfer their interest in respect of the DTC Notes.

Purchases of DTC Notes under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the DTC Notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each DTC Note (Beneficial Owner) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participant's records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the DTC Notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in DTC Notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the DTC Notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all DTC Notes deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of DTC Notes with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the DTC Notes; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such DTC Notes are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the DTC Notes within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to DTC Notes. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the relevant Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the DTC Notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the DTC Notes will be made to DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts on the due date for payment in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the due date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name", and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or the relevant Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to DTC is the responsibility of the relevant Issuer, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

Under certain circumstances, including if there is an Event of Default under the Notes, DTC will exchange the DTC Notes for definitive Registered Notes, which it will distribute to its Participants in accordance with their proportionate entitlements and which, if representing interests in a Rule 144A Global Note, will be legended as set forth under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions".

Since DTC may only act on behalf of Direct Participants, who in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants, any Owner desiring to pledge DTC Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in DTC, or otherwise take actions with respect to such DTC Notes, will be required to withdraw its Registered Notes from DTC as described below.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg each holds securities for its customers and facilitates the clearance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their respective account holders. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services including safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and securities lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg also deal with domestic securities markets in several countries through established depository and custodial relationships. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have established an electronic bridge between their two systems across which their respective participants may settle trades with each other.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg customers are world-wide financial institutions, including underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations. Indirect access to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg is available to other institutions that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with an account holder of either system. For further information on Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg relating to the Notes, please see "Taxation".

Book-entry Ownership of and Payments in respect of DTC Notes

The relevant Issuer may apply to DTC in order to have any Tranche of Notes represented by a Registered Global Note accepted in its book-entry settlement system. Upon the issue of any such Registered Global Note, DTC or its custodian will credit, on its internal book-entry system, the respective nominal amounts of the individual beneficial interests represented by such Registered Global Note to the accounts of persons who have accounts with DTC. Such accounts initially will be designated by or on behalf of the relevant Dealer. Ownership of beneficial interests in such a Registered Global Note will be limited to Direct Participants or Indirect Participants, including, in the case of a Regulation S Global Note, the respective depositaries of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Registered Global Note accepted by DTC will be shown on, and the transfer of such ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to the interests of Direct Participants) and the records of Direct Participants (with respect to interests of Indirect Participants).

Payments in U.S. dollars of principal and interest in respect of a Registered Global Note accepted by DTC will be made to the order of DTC or its nominee as the registered holder of such Note. In the case of any payment in a currency other than U.S. dollars, payment will be made to the Exchange Agent on behalf of DTC or its nominee and the Exchange Agent will (in accordance with instructions received by it) remit all or a portion of such payment for credit directly to the beneficial holders of interests in the Registered Global Note in the currency in which such payment was made and/or cause all or a portion of such payment to be converted into U.S. dollars and credited to the applicable Participants' account.

The relevant Issuer expects DTC to credit accounts of Direct Participants on the applicable payment date in accordance with their respective holdings as shown in the records of DTC unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on such payment date. The relevant Issuer also expects that payments by Participants to beneficial owners of Notes will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers, and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not the responsibility of DTC, the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar or the relevant Issuer. Payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, on Notes to DTC is the responsibility of the relevant Issuer.

Transfers of Notes Represented by Registered Global Notes

Transfers of any interests in Notes represented by a Registered Global Note within DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be effected in accordance with the customary rules and operating procedures of the relevant clearing system. The laws in some States within the United States require that certain persons take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. Consequently, the ability to transfer Notes represented by a Registered Global Note to such persons may depend upon the ability to exchange such Notes for Notes in definitive form. Similarly, because DTC can only act on behalf of Direct Participants in the DTC system who in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants, the ability of a person having an interest in Notes represented by a Registered Global Note accepted by DTC to pledge such Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system or otherwise to take action in respect of such Notes may depend upon the ability to exchange such Notes for Notes in definitive form. The ability of any holder of Notes represented by a Registered Global Note accepted by DTC to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer such Notes may be impaired if the proposed transferee of such Notes is not eligible to hold such Notes through a direct or indirect participant in the DTC system.

Subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions applicable to the Registered Notes described under "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions", cross-market transfers between DTC, on the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholders, on the other, will be effected by the relevant clearing system in accordance with its rules and through action taken by the Registrar, the Principal Paying Agent and any custodian (Custodian) with whom the relevant Registered Global Notes have been deposited.

On or after the Issue Date for any Series, transfers of Notes of such Series between accountholders in Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and transfers of Notes of such Series between participants in DTC will generally have a settlement date three business days after the trade date (T+3). The customary arrangements for delivery versus payment will apply to such transfers.

Cross-market transfers between accountholders in Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear and DTC participants will need to have an agreed settlement date between the parties to such transfer. Because there is no direct link between DTC, on the one hand, and Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, on the other, transfers of interests in the relevant Registered Global Notes will be effected through the Registrar, the Principal Paying Agent and the Custodian receiving instructions (and, where appropriate, certification) from the transferor and arranging for delivery of the interests being transferred to the credit of the designated account for the transferee. In the case of cross-market transfers, settlement between Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg accountholders and DTC participants cannot be made on a delivery versus payment basis. The securities will be delivered on a free delivery basis and arrangements for payment must be made separately.

DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have each published rules and operating procedures designed to facilitate transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes among participants and accountholders of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear. However, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued or changed at any time. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Agents or any Dealer will be responsible for any performance by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear or their respective direct or indirect participants or accountholders of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations and none of them will have any liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial interests in the Notes represented by Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

TAXATION

The following summary refers solely to certain Spanish tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Notes. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax consequences relating to the Notes and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which might be subject to special rules. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors as to the consequences under the tax laws of the country of which they are resident for tax purposes and the tax laws of Spain of acquiring, holding and disposing of Notes and receiving any payments under the Notes. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of this Offering Circular and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date. References in this section to Noteholders include the beneficial owners of the Notes.

Acquisition of the Notes

The issue of, subscription for, transfer and acquisition of the Notes is exempt from Transfer and Stamp Tax (Impuesto sobre Transmisiones Patrimoniales y Actos Jurídicos Documentados) and Value Added Tax (Impuesto sobre el Valor Añadido).

Taxation on the income and transfer of the Notes

The tax treatment of the acquisition, holding and subsequent transfer of the Notes is summarised below and is based on the tax regime applicable to the Notes pursuant to Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004 of 5th March, 2004 approving the consolidated text of the Corporate Income Tax Law (Impuesto sobre Sociedades), Royal Legislative Decree 3/2004 of 5th March, 2004 approving the consolidated text of the Individuals Income Tax Law (Impuesto sobre la Renta de las Personas Físicas) and Royal Legislative Decree 5/2004 of 5th March, 2004 approving the consolidated text of the Non-Resident Income Tax Law (Impuesto sobre la Renta de los no Residentes). Consideration has also been given to the rules for the implementation of such regulations (Royal Decree 1777/2004 of 30th July, 2004 approving the Corporate Income Tax Regulations, Royal Decree 1775/2004 of 30th July, 2004 approving the Individuals Income Tax Regulations and Royal Decree 1776/2004 of 30th July, 2004 approving the Individuals Income Tax Regulations).

On 6th July, 2003, new legislation came into force in Spain relating to, *inter alia*, the issuance of preferred securities and debt securities issued by Spanish financial and non-financial listed entities, either directly or through a subsidiary (Additional Provision Two of Law 13/1985 of 25th May, 1985 on investment ratios, own funds and information obligations of financial intermediaries, as promulgated by Law 19/2003 of 4th July, 2003). Consideration has also been given to Royal Decree 1778/2004 of 30th July, 2004 establishing information obligations in relation to preferred securities and other debt instruments and certain income obtained by individuals resident in the European Union and other tax rules.

Individuals or entities with tax residency in Spain

Individuals Income Tax

Income obtained by Noteholders who are Individuals Income Tax payers, both as interest and in connection with the transfer, redemption or repayment of the Notes, shall be considered income on investments obtained from the assignment of own capital to third parties, as defined in Section 23.2 of Individuals Income Tax Law (IRPF) and therefore will be taxed at the marginal rates set out in the IRPF (currently ranging between 15 per cent. and 45 per cent.).

In this sense, in the event of revenues derived from receipt of Notes, the aggregate income shall be determined by the amount of interest received, including the withholding tax made, as the case may be.

Furthermore, in the event of transfer, redemption or repayment of the Notes, the income on investment shall be deemed to be the difference between the transfer, redemption or repayment value (less properly supported ancillary disposal expenses) and the acquisition or subscription value (plus properly supported ancillary acquisition expenses). Expenses corresponding to discretionary or individual portfolio management are not computed for these purposes.

Both types of income received shall be subject to a 15 per cent. withholding tax on account of the individuals' final IRPF tax liability.

If the period during which such income is generated exceeds two years a reduction of 40 per cent. will be applied, for the effect of both withholding and inclusion in taxable income.

Corporate Income Tax

Income obtained both as interest and in connection with the transfer, redemption or repayment of the Notes by Corporate Income Tax payers, shall be computed as taxable income in accordance with the rules set out in Title IV of the Corporate Income Tax Law and will therefore be taxed at the current rate of 35 per cent.

The aforesaid income shall not be subject to withholding tax as provided by Section 59(s) of the Corporate Income Tax Regulations, to the extent that the Notes satisfy the requirements – as Notes issued under the Programme are expected to do – laid down by the reply to the consultation of the Directorate General for Taxation (Dirección General de Tributos), on 20th July, 2004, indicating that in the case of issues made by entities resident in Spain, as with the Issuer, application of the exemption requires that the Notes be placed outside Spain in another OECD country and traded on organised markets in OECD countries.

Individuals or entities with no tax residency in Spain

Income obtained by Noteholders who are Non-Resident Income Tax payers, both on interest and in connection with the transfer, repayment or redemption of the Notes, whether or not through a permanent establishment, shall be considered Spanish source income and therefore subject to taxation in Spain under Legislative Royal Decree 5/2004 of 5th March, 2004 approving the Consolidated Non-Resident Income Tax Law, without prejudice to the provisions contained in any applicable tax treaty for the avoidance of double taxation (DTT).

Income obtained through a permanent establishment in Spain

The holding of Notes by investors who are not resident for tax purposes in Spain will not in itself create the existence of a permanent establishment in Spain.

Income obtained by Non Spanish resident holders acting through a permanent establishment in Spain will be taxed under the rules provided by Chapter III of the Non-Resident Income Tax Law. These Noteholders will be subject to taxation substantially in the same manner as has been set out for Spanish Corporate Income Tax payers.

Income not obtained through a permanent establishment in Spain

Income obtained by Noteholders who are not tax resident in Spain acting for these purposes without a permanent establishment within Spain are exempt from such Non-Resident Income Tax, except if such income is obtained through countries or territories considered as Tax Havens pursuant to Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5th July, 1991 in which case such income will be subject to Non-Resident Income Tax in Spain at the rate of 15 per cent. to be withheld by the Issuer.

For these purposes it is necessary to fulfil certain disclosure obligations relating to the identity and tax residence of the Noteholders, as described below under "Disclosure of Noteholder information in connection with interest payments", in accordance with Section 12 of Royal Decree 2281/1998 as amended by Royal Decree 1778/2004. If these disclosure obligations are not complied with in the required manner, the Issuer will apply a withholding of 15 per cent. and neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor will, as a result, be under any obligation to pay additional amounts.

Wealth Tax

Spanish Wealth Tax (Impuesto sobre el Patrimonio) is levied on the net worth of an individual's assets at rates ranging between 0.2 per cent and 2.5 per cent. Individuals who are resident in Spain for tax purposes and who hold Notes at 31st December of each year would be subject to tax, taking into account the Notes for the purposes of calculating their tax liability.

Non-Spanish residents (other than those holding their Notes through a Tax Haven) whose income is exempt in regard to Non-Resident Income Tax, on the terms set forth above, shall be exempt from Wealth Tax on the Notes.

Legal entities are not subject to Wealth Tax.

Inheritance and Gift Tax

The transfer of the Notes to individuals by inheritance, legacy or donation shall be subject to the general rules of Inheritance and Gift Tax (Impuesto sobre Sucesiones y Donaciones) even if title passes outside Spain and neither the heir nor the beneficiary, as the case may be, is resident in Spain for tax purposes, without prejudice to the provisions of any DTT signed by Spain.

The applicable tax rates, after applying all relevant factors, range between 7.65 per cent and 81.6 per cent.

In the event that the beneficiary is an entity other than a natural person, the income obtained shall be subject to Corporate Income Tax or Non-Resident Income Tax, as the case may be, and without prejudice, in the latter event, to the provisions of any DTT that may apply.

Tax rules for payments made by the Guarantor

Payments which may be made by the Guarantor to Noteholders, if the Guarantee is enforced, will be subject to the same tax rules previously set out for payments made by the Issuers.

Tax Havens

Pursuant to Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5th July, 1991 the following are each considered to be a tax haven:

	ol 1-1 1	
Principality of Andorra,	Channel Islands	H
Netherlands Antilles,	(Jersey and Guernsey),	Re
Aruba,	Jamaica,	Re
Kingdom of Bahrain,	Republic of Malta,	Pr
Sultanate of Brunei,	Falkland Islands,	G
Republic of Cyprus,	Isle of Man,	
United Arab Emirates,	Marianas Islands,	
Gibraltar,	Mauritius,	
Hong-Kong,	Montserrat,	
The Island of Anguila,	Republic of Nauru,	
Islands of Antigua and Barbuda,	Solomon Islands,	
The Bahamas,	Saint Vincent & the Grenadines,	Μ
The Island of Barbados,	Saint Lucia,	Pr
The Bermuda Islands,	Republic of Trinidad	Su
Cayman Islands,	and Tobago,	R
The Cook Islands,	Turks and Caicos Islands,	R
The Republic of Dominica,	Republic of Vanuatu,	R
Grenada,	British Virgin Islands,	R
Fiji Islands,	Virgin Islands	
· · ·	(of the United States),	

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, epublic of Lebanon, epublic of Liberia, rincipality of Liechtenstein, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg Area (as regards the income received by the Companies referred to in paragraph 1 of Protocol annexed Avoidance of Double Taxation Treaty, dated 3rd June, 1986), lacao, rincipality of Monaco, ultanate of Oman, Republic of Panama, Republic of San Marino, Republic of Seychelles, Republic of Singapore

Disclosure of Noteholder Information in connection with Interest Payments

At the date of this Offering Circular, the European Clearing Systems are in discussions to harmonise the procedure for providing the records required by Spanish laws and regulations.

The procedure summarised below is subject to the outcome of these discussions as well as to further requirements of the Spanish tax authorities. Noteholders must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure correct tax treatment of their Notes. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers, the Paying Agents or the European Clearing Systems assume any responsibility therefore.

Therefore, each Noteholder is deemed to be aware of the obligations set out below regarding the disclosure of Noteholder information and the consequences of non-compliance. Specifically, Noteholders are deemed to be aware of the application of Spanish withholding tax if certain information is not provided in a timely manner.

Legal Entities with Tax Residence in Spain subject to Spanish Corporate Income Tax

The Principal Paying Agent must be provided with a list of those investors who are Spanish Corporate Income Tax payers together with their name, address, Tax Identification Number, ISIN code of the relevant Series, number of Notes of the relevant Series held at each interest payment date, gross income and amount withheld. All of the records mentioned should be provided in the form set out in Annex A below.

Individuals and Legal Entities which are Non Tax Residents in Spain

The information requirements to be complied with in order to apply the exemption are those established by Section 12 of the Royal Decree 2281/1998 (Section 12) as set out in Royal Decree 1778/2004, being the following:

The Guarantor must make a return on a yearly basis to the Spanish tax authorities enclosing the following information related to the Notes and the investors:

- The identity and country of residence of the recipient of the income. When the income is received on behalf of a third party, then the identity and country of residence of that third party must be provided too;
- The amount of income received; and
- Identification of the Notes involved.

In addition, the following supporting documentation drafted in Spanish must be obtained in respect of each payment of income evidencing the identity and residence of each Noteholder:

- (a) If the non-resident Noteholder (beneficial owner) acts on its behalf and is a Central Bank, or any other public law institution, an International Organisation, a bank or a credit or financial entity, including Collective Investment Institutions, Pension Funds and Insurance Entities, resident in an OECD country or in a country or territory having a double tax treaty with Spain (including an information exchange clause), the mentioned entity should certify its name and tax residence as is established by Annex I of the Ministerial Order of 16th September, 1991 (see Annex B below).
- (b) In the case of transactions in which any of the entities referred to in (a) above acts as an intermediary, it has to certify according to its own records, the name and tax residence of each Noteholder as is established by Annex II of the Ministerial Order of 16th September, 1991 (see Annex C below).
- (c) In the case of transactions channelled through a securities clearing and deposit entity recognised for these purposes by Spanish law or by one of an OECD country, the mentioned entity should, in accordance with the information contained in its own records, certify the name and tax residence of each Noteholder as is established by Annex II of the Order of 16th September, 1991 (see Annex C below).

(d) In other cases, the tax residence should be evidenced by submission of the certificate of tax residence issued by the tax authorities of the country of residence of the Noteholder. These certificates will be valid for one year from the date of issuance and shall be the original ones.

Further, for the purpose of applying the withholding tax exemption for non-resident investors when the specific information required by Section 12 is provided, the following procedure must also be followed:

• On each Interest Payment Date, the Issuer or the Paying Agent on its behalf must transfer the net amount (85 per cent. of the entitled amount) to the entities referred to in the above paragraphs (a), (b) and (c). If the above mentioned supporting documentation has been received prior to the Interest Payment Date, then the Issuer or the Paying Agent shall gross up the 15 per cent. withheld.

If a beneficial owner intends to benefit from a withholding tax exemption, the above supporting documentation should be provided to the Paying Agent following the procedures established in the Agency Agreement. Copies of the Agency Agreement may be obtained as set out under "General Information".

- If the Paying Agent does not receive complete supporting documentation in respect of a Noteholder by an Interest Payment Date, such holder may obtain a refund of the full amount of withholding tax by ensuring the supporting documentation described above has been received by the Paying Agent no later than 10:00 a.m. (Central European time) on the 10th calendar day of the month following the Interest Payment Date (or, if such date is not a business day, the business day immediately preceding such date) (the Refund Deadline).
- Noteholders entitled to a refund but in respect of whom relevant supporting documentation has not been provided to the Paying Agent on or before the Refund Deadline may apply for a full refund of the withholding tax directly to the Spanish tax authorities (by means of the standard refund procedure).

Set out below are Annexes A, B and C. Sections in English have been translated from the original Spanish for information purposes. In the event of any discrepancy, the Spanish version shall prevail.

Annex A

Modelo de certificación para hacer efectiva la exclusión de retención a los sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre Sociedades y a los establecimientos permanentes sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre la Renta de No Residentes

Certificate for application of the exemption on withholding to Spanish Corporate Income Tax payers and to permanent establishments of non-resident income tax taxpayers

(nombre) (name) (domicilio) (address)..... (NIF) (fiscal ID number) (en calidad de) , en nombre y representación de la Entidad abajo señalada a los efectos previstos en el artículo 59.s) del Real Decreto 1777/2004, (function), in the name and on behalf of the Entity indicated below, for the purposes of article 59.s) of Royal Decree 1777/2004, **CERTIFICO:** CERTIFY: Que el nombre o razón social de la Entidad que represento es: 1. that the name of the Entity I represent is: 2. Que su residencia fiscal es la siguiente: that its residence for tax purposes is: 3. Que la Entidad que represento está inscrita en el Registro de that the institution I represent is recorded in the Register of (pais, estado, ciudad), con el número (country, state, city), under number 4. Que la Entidad que represento está sometida a la supervisión de (Organo supervisor) en virtud de (normativa que lo regula) under(governing rules). 5. Que, a través de la Entidad que represento, los titulares incluidos en la relacion adjunta, sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre Sociedades y establecimientos permanentes en España de sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre la Renta de no Residentes, son perceptores de los rendimientos indicados. That, through the Entity I represent, the list of holders hereby attached, are Spanish Corporate Income Tax payers and permanent establishment in Spain of Non-Resident Income Tax taxpayers, and are recipients of the referred income. Que la Entidad que represento conserva, a disposición del emisor, fotocopia de la tarjeta acreditativa del número de 6. identificación fiscal de los titulares incluidos en la relación. That the Entity I represent keeps, at the disposal of the Issuer, a photocopy of the card evidencing the Fiscal Identification Number of the holders included in the attached list. Lo que certifico en de 20 de 20 **RELACION ADJUNTA** TO BE ATTACHED Identificación de los valores: Identification of the securities

Razón social / Domicilio / Número de identificación fiscal / Número de valores / Rendimientos brutos / Retención al 15% Name / Domicile / Fiscal Identification Number / Number of securities / Gross income / Amount withheld at 15%.

TAXATION

Annex B

Modelo de certificación en inversiones por cuenta propia Form of Certificate for Own Account Investments (nombre) (name) (domicilio) (address)..... (NIF) (fiscal ID number) (en calidad de) , en nombre y representación de la Entidad abajo señalada a los efectos previstos en el artículo 12.3.a) del Real Decreto 2281/1998, modificado por el Real Decreto 1778/2004 (function), in the name and on behalf of the Entity indicated below, for the purposes of article 12.3.a) of Royal Decree 2281/1998, as amended by Royal Decree 1778/2004 **CERTIFICO: CERTIFY:** Que el nombre o razón social de la Entidad que represento es: 1 that the name of the Entity I represent is: 2. Oue su residencia fiscal es la siguiente: that its residence for tax purposes is: Que la Entidad que represento está inscrita en el Registro de 3. that the institution I represent is recorded in the (pais, estado, ciudad), con el número (country, state, city), under number Que la Entidad que represento está sometida a la supervisión de (Organo supervisor) 4. that the institution I represent is supervised by (Supervision body) en virtud de (normativa que lo regula) under(governing rules). Todo ello en relación con: All the above in relation to: Identificación de los valores poseidos por cuenta propia Identification of securities held on own account: Importe de los rendimientos Amount of income Lo que certifico en de 20 de 20 I certify the above in of the of 20......

TAXATION

Annex C

Modelo de certificación en inversiones por cuenta ajena Form of Certificate for Third Party Investments (nombre) (name) (domicilio) (address)..... (NIF) (fiscal ID number) (en calidad de) , en nombre y representación de la Entidad abajo señalada a los efectos previstos en el artículo 12.3.b) y c) del Real Decreto 2281/1998, modificado por el Real Decreto 1778/2004 (function), in the name and on behalf of the Entity indicated below, for the purposes of article 12.3.b) and c) of Royal Decree 2281/1998, as amended by Royal Decree 1778/2004 **CERTIFICO: CERTIFY:** 1. Que el nombre o razón social de la Entidad que represento es: that the name of the Entity I represent is: Que su residencia fiscal es la siguiente: 2. that its residence for tax purposes is: Que la Entidad que represento está inscrita en el Registro de 3. that the institution I represent is recorded in the (pais, estado, ciudad), con el número (country, state, city), under number Que la Entidad que represento está sometida a la supervisión de 4. (Organo supervisor) en virtud de (normativa que lo regula) under(governing rules). 5. Que, de acuerdo con los registros de la Entidad que represento, la relación de titulares adjunta a la presente certificación,

comprensiva del nombre de cada uno de los titulares no residentes, su país de residencia y el importe de los correspondientes rendimientos, es exacta, y no incluye personas o Entidades residentes en España o en los países o territorios que tienen en España la consideración de paraíso fiscal de acuerdo con las normas reglamentarias en vigor. That, according to the records of the Entity I represent, the list of beneficial owners hereby attached, including the names of all the non-resident holders, their country of residence and the amounts of the corresponding income is accurate, and does not include person(s) or institution(s) resident either in Spain or in tax haven countries or territories as defined under Spanish applicable regulations.

RELACIÓN ADJUNTA A CUMPLIMENTAR: TO BE ATTACHED:

Identificación de los valores: Identification of the securities

Listado de titulares: List of beneficial owners:

Nombre / País de residencia / Importe de los rendimientos

Name / Country of residence / Amount of income

EU SAVINGS DIRECTIVE

On 3rd June, 2003, the European Council of Economics and Finance Ministers adopted a Directive on the taxation of savings income. Under the Directive Member States will (if equivalent measures have been introduced by certain non-EU countries) be required, from 1st July, 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period, Belgium, Luxembourg and Austria will instead be required (unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries).

SPANISH INSOLVENCY LAW

Since 1st September, 2004, Spain's Law 22/2003 of 9th July, 2003 on Insolvency Proceedings (the Insolvency Law) has been in full force and effect. The Insolvency Law applies to all Spanish insolvency proceedings commenced on or after 1st September, 2004.

An insolvency will be subject to the Insolvency Law provided that the debtor has its "centre of principal interests" in Spain (which is the case for each Issuer and the Guarantor). This centre is deemed to be where the debtor conducts the administration of its interests on a regular basis and is recognised as such by third parties.

Concept and petition for insolvency

Under the Insolvency Law a debtor is insolvent when it cannot comply with its due obligations on a regular basis. A petition for insolvency may be filed by the debtor, any creditor or any other interested third party.

The debtor must petition for insolvency within two months of the date when it becomes aware, or should have become aware, of its insolvency. A creditor can seek a declaration of insolvency for a debtor based on demonstration of:

- (a) an instrument on which the creditor had requested enforcement, establishing that the debtor has insufficient assets;
- (b) a general failure of the debtor to meet its current payment obligations;
- (c) enforced seizures of the debtor's assets;
- (d) a general liquidation of the debtor's assets at less than full value; or
- (e) a general failure by the debtor to comply with tax, social security, salary and other employment obligations during a given period.

Insolvency is considered mandatory (concurso necesario) if filed by a third party creditor and voluntary (concurso voluntario) if filed by the debtor.

As a general rule, the debtor in a voluntary insolvency retains all management and disposal powers over its assets, but is subject to the intervention (*intervención*) of the insolvency administrators. In the case of mandatory insolvency, the debtor's management is suspended, and management's power, including the power to dispose of assets, is conferred solely upon the insolvency administrators.

Voluntary insolvency can be current (*actual*) or imminent (*imminente*). Imminent insolvency arises when the insolvent company foresees that it will not be able to comply with its obligations regularly and in a timely manner.

Creditors are required to report their claims to the insolvency administrators within one month from the last official publication of the court order declaring the insolvency. Failure to do so may result in the claim being subordinated, see "Ranking of creditors" below.

Conclusion of insolvency: Proposal of agreement or liquidation

The Insolvency Law provides that insolvency concludes following either the implementation of an agreement between the creditors and the debtor (*convenio*) or on the liquidation of the debtor.

(a) Contents of convenio

As a general rule, a proposal may not: (i) include a reduction of more than 50 per cent. in the amount of the ordinary claims or a deferral for payment of claims for more than five years from the approval of the convenio; (ii) consist of an assignment of assets for the repayment of claims; (iii) consist of any form of global liquidation of the insolvent's estate; or (iv) entail a change in the mandatory ranking of creditors. A proposal must also be unconditional, although it may contain different repayment proposals for each class of creditors.

A proposal may be presented by the insolvent debtor or by creditors representing at least 20 per cent. of the aggregate of ordinary claims. A proposal cannot be presented if the debtor has requested liquidation. Any proposal must be accepted by the creditors and subsequently approved by the insolvency court.

(b) Approval of convenio

The Insolvency Law includes provisions regulating the level of consent required to approve the convenio at a meeting of creditors, as well as the procedure and parties that are entitled to contest the approval of the *convenio* by the insolvency court. It further provides grounds for challenging the insolvency court's approval of the convenio, as well as grounds for the insolvency court to deny the approval.

Generally speaking, creditors representing at least 50 per cent. of the ordinary claims would need to approve the composition (with a majority vote of ordinary creditors present at the meeting if the composition proposes payment of no less than 80 per cent. of ordinary claims or a delay in payment of no more than three years).

If a composition is not possible, the outcome of the insolvency proceedings will be liquidation.

(c) Liquidation

The debtor may request that it be liquidated instead of filing a proposal for agreement with its creditors. This request may be made if: (i) the debtor no longer supports its own proposal; or (ii) a creditor (or group of creditors) presents a competing proposal.

The debtor may also request liquidation while the convenio is in force if it is unable to comply with the terms thereof. A creditor may request liquidation of the debtor while the convenio is in force on the same grounds that entitle a creditor to file an application for insolvency.

The insolvency court may order liquidation of the debtor if: (i) there is no proposal for a convenio; (ii) no proposal for a convenio is agreed upon by the creditors' meeting; or (iii) there is a final judgement rejecting the convenio, declaring the convenio a nullity or declaring a breach of the convenio.

Certain effects of insolvency on contracts

(a) No Termination

Article 61 of the Insolvency Law establishes the general principle that all agreements remain effective (vigentes).

The declaration of insolvency of the debtor does not, by itself, alter the effectiveness of contracts with reciprocal outstanding obligations. The debtor's outstanding obligations must be satisfied out of the insolvency estate. However, the administrators may terminate the contract if this is in the interests of the debtor's estate.

Provisions in a contract that grant a party the right to terminate a contract upon insolvency of the debtor are not enforceable. It is nonetheless possible to terminate contracts as a result of a default in performance by the other party but then any claim against the debtor will be listed in the creditors list and classified accordingly. In this case, the insolvency judge can reinstate the agreement if it is in the benefit of the insolvency in which case the consideration payable by the debtor shall be paid out of the insolvency estate.

(b) Interest

From the date of declaration of the insolvency, interest ceases to accrue, except for interest or credits corresponding to credits secured with an *in rem* right up to the secured amount.

Notwithstanding the above, if the creditors agree to a convenio that does not imply a reduction of the insolvent's debt, they may agree to the payment of interest, whether totally or partially, accrued at the Spanish legal interest rate or at the conventional interest rate if lower. In case of liquidation, any moneys remaining after payment of the whole of the insolvency claims shall be applied to the payment of interest accrued at the conventional interest rate.

(c) Set-off

As a general rule, once insolvency is declared, set-off is prohibited unless the requirements for the setoff were satisfied prior to the declaration of insolvency. However, the declaration of insolvency will not affect a creditor's right to set-off its rights against a debtor if the law that governs the debtor's reciprocal claim allows such set-off upon insolvency.

(d) Detrimental Acts and Rescission

Under the Insolvency Law, once insolvency is declared, acts detrimental (*perjudiciales*) to the debtor's estate carried out during the two years prior to the date the insolvency is declared may be rescinded, regardless of fraudulent intention.

Article 71 contains an irrefutable presumption that the following acts are detrimental:

- (i) acts where no consideration is received for a disposed asset; and
- (ii) acts which result in the early repayment of obligations which would have become due after the declaration of insolvency.

In addition, unless the debtor or another affected party (such as a creditor) can prove otherwise to the court's satisfaction, the following acts are presumed to be detrimental:

- (i) a disposal made in favour of a related person or entity; and
- (ii) the creation of a security interest securing a pre-existing obligation or a new obligation that replaces an existing one.

In the case of actions not included in these two categories, the burden of proof is on the person bringing the action of rescission.

Qualification of the insolvency

If a "convenio" proposing a reduction in the amount of ordinary claims of more than one-third or a deferral of payments of more than 3 years is agreed by the creditors and in any liquidation, the insolvency judge must qualify the insolvency as "fortuitous" (*concurso fortuito*) or "guilty" (*concurso culpable*). A "*concurso culpable*" shall be declared in circumstances where the insolvent has acted in bad faith or by wilful misconduct.

In the case of a culpable insolvency, the persons affected (including, for example, directors and persons specially empowered to manage the insolvent's business and their accomplices) may be prohibited from managing third party's assets or representing or administering any third party rights for a period of between 2 to 15 years and may also lose any rights as creditors they may have against the insolvency estate. Such persons may also be required to reinstate any rights or assets unlawfully obtained from the insolvent's estate and to compensate it for damages. In the case of liquidation, the administrators or liquidators of the insolvent company (including former ones up to two years from the declaration of the insolvency) may be condemned to pay the insolvency creditors amounts not satisfied pursuant to the liquidation of the insolvency estate.

Ranking of creditors

Under Spanish Law the ranking of creditors is solely governed by the Insolvency Law.

Under the Insolvency Law, the mandatory ranking of creditors is as follows:

- (1) Claims against the insolvency estate, including, amongst others, claims for salaries relating to the 30 days prior to the declaration of insolvency in an amount that does not exceed twice the Spanish minimum statutory salary (salario mínimo interprofesional);
- (2) Credits with a special privilege, including, amongst others, those holding claims secured by a legal or voluntary mortgage, moveable mortgage or pledge without displacement of possession over the mortgaged or pledged assets; claims secured by securities; and claims secured by a possessory pledge executed in a public document over the goods or rights in possession of the creditor or a third party. In these cases, the privilege extends only to the secured asset;
- (3) Credits with a general privilege, including claims for salaries that do not have a special privilege, severance payments and indemnities for the termination of employment agreements, indemnities owed for labour accidents or sickness and surcharges on dues owed for unpaid labour health duties accrued prior to the declaration of insolvency; amounts relating to unpaid withholding taxes and social security contributions up to 50 per cent. of the aggregate amount; claims for non-contractual liabilities; and up to 25 per cent. of the aggregate amount of the unsubordinated claims of the creditor that has requested the insolvency declaration;
- (4) Credits (other than subordinated credits) which are not classified in any or the above categories, will rank pari-passu and be paid pro rata; and
- (5) Subordinated credits, including, amongst others, (i) late or incorrect claims; (ii) contractually subordinated claims (such as the Subordinated Notes); (iii) interest (such as accrued and unpaid interest due on the Notes at the commencement of the insolvency proceeding (concurso); (iv) fines; (v) claims of creditors which are related to the Issuer; and (v) detrimental claims against the Issuer where a Spanish court has determined that a relevant creditor has acted in bad faith (rescisión concursal). Subordinated credits shall be paid in the above-mentioned order and pro rata within each class.

SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE AND TRANSFER AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The Dealers have, in a programme agreement (the Programme Agreement) dated 18th January, 2005, agreed with each Issuer and the Guarantor a basis upon which they or any of them may from time to time agree to purchase Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters stated under "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes". In the Programme Agreement, the Issuers (failing which, the Guarantor) have agreed to reimburse the Dealers for certain of their expenses in connection with the establishment and any future update of the Programme and the issue of Notes under the Programme and to indemnify the Dealers against certain liabilities incurred by them in connection therewith.

In order to facilitate the offering of any Tranche of the Notes, certain persons participating in the offering of the Tranche may engage in transactions that stabilise, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the relevant Notes during and after the offering of the Tranche. Specifically such persons may over-allot or create a short position in the Notes for their own account by selling more Notes than have been sold to them by the relevant Issuer. Such persons may also elect to cover any such short position by purchasing Notes in the open market. In addition, such persons may stabilise or maintain the price of the Notes by bidding for or purchasing Notes in the open market and may impose penalty bids, under which selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other broker-dealers participating in the offering of the Notes are reclaimed if Notes previously distributed in the offering are repurchased in connection with stabilisation transactions or otherwise. The effect of these transactions may be to stabilise or maintain the market price of the Notes at a level above that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period after the Issue Date. The imposition of a penalty bid may also affect the price of the Notes to the extent that it discourages resales thereof. No representation is made as to the magnitude or effect of any such stabilising or other transactions. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time and must be brought to an end after a limited period. Under UK laws and regulations stabilising activities may only be carried on by the Stabilising Manager named in the applicable Pricing Supplement and may only continue for a period of 30 days following the Issue Date (or, if the ending day would be earlier, 60 days after the date of allotment) of the relevant Tranche of Notes.

Transfer Restrictions

As a result of the following restrictions, purchasers of Notes in the United States are advised to consult legal counsel prior to making any purchase, offer, sale, resale or other transfer of such Notes.

Each purchaser of Registered Notes (other than a person purchasing an interest in a Registered Global Note with a view to holding it in the form of an interest in the same Global Note) or person wishing to transfer an interest from one Registered Global Note to another or from global to definitive form or vice versa, will be required to acknowledge, represent and agree as follows (terms used in this paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A or in Regulation S are used herein as defined therein):

- (a) that: (i) it is a QIB, purchasing (or holding) the Notes for its own account or for the account of one or more QIBs and it is aware that any sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A, (ii) it is an Institutional Accredited Investor which has delivered an IAI Investment Letter or (iii) it is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person;
- (b) that the Notes are being offered and sold in a transaction not involving a public offering in the United States within the meaning of the Securities Act, and that the Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any other applicable U.S. State securities laws and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except as set forth below;
- (c) that, unless it holds an interest in a Regulation S Global Note and either is a person located outside the United States or is not a U.S. person, if in the future it decides to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Notes or any beneficial interests in the Notes, it will do so, prior to the date which is two years after the later of the last Issue Date for the Series and the last date on which the relevant Issuer

or an affiliate of the relevant Issuer was the owner of such Notes, only (i) to the relevant Issuer or any affiliate thereof, (ii) inside the United States to a person whom the seller reasonably believes is a QIB purchasing for its own account or for the account of a QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, (iii) outside the United States in compliance with Rule 903 or Rule 904 under the Securities Act, (iv) pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if available) or (v) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, in each case in accordance with all applicable U.S. State securities laws;

- (d) that it will, and will require each subsequent holder to, notify any purchaser of the Notes from it of the resale restrictions referred to in paragraph (c) above, if then applicable;
- (e) that Notes initially offered in the United States to QIBs will be represented by one or more Rule 144A Global Notes, that Notes offered to Institutional Accredited Investors will be in the form of Definitive IAI Registered Notes and that Notes offered outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S will be represented by one or more Regulation S Global Notes;
- (f) that the Notes, other than the Regulation S Global Notes, will bear a legend to the following effect unless otherwise agreed to by the Issuer:

"NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE GUARANTEE HEREOF HAS BEEN OR WILL BE **REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES** ACT), OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER: (A) REPRESENTS THAT (1) IT IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (RULE 144A)) PURCHASING THE SECURITIES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS OR (2) IT IS AN INSTITUTIONAL "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" (AS DEFINED IN RULE 501(A)(1), (2), (3) OR (7) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) (AN INSTITUTIONAL ACCREDITED INVESTOR); (B) AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT RESELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THE SECURITIES EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGENCY AGREEMENT AND, PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE LATER OF THE LAST ISSUE DATE FOR THE SERIES AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH THE ISSUER OR AN AFFILIATE OF THE ISSUER WAS THE OWNER OF SUCH SECURITIES OTHER THAN (1) TO THE ISSUER OR ANY AFFILIATE THEREOF, (2) INSIDE THE UNITED STATES TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (3) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (4) PURSUANT TO THE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED BY RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (IF AVAILABLE) OR (5) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND ANY OTHER JURISDICTION; AND (C) IT AGREES THAT IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

THIS SECURITY AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE AGENCY AGREEMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN) MAY BE AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED FROM TIME TO TIME, WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF, BUT UPON NOTICE TO, THE HOLDERS OF SUCH SECURITIES SENT TO THEIR REGISTERED ADDRESSES, TO MODIFY THE RESTRICTIONS ON AND PROCEDURES FOR RESALES AND OTHER TRANSFERS OF THIS SECURITY TO REFLECT ANY CHANGE IN APPLICABLE LAW OR REGULATION (OR THE INTERPRETATION THEREOF) OR IN PRACTICES RELATING TO RESALES OR OTHER TRANSFERS OF RESTRICTED SECURITIES GENERALLY. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY SHALL BE DEEMED, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE OR PURCHASE HEREOF, TO HAVE AGREED TO ANY SUCH AMENDMENT OR SUPPLEMENT (EACH OF WHICH SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE AND BINDING ON THE HOLDER HEREOF AND ALL FUTURE HOLDERS OF THIS SECURITY AND ANY SECURITIES ISSUED IN EXCHANGE OR SUBSTITUTION THEREFOR, WHETHER OR NOT ANY NOTATION THEREOF IS MADE HEREON).";

(g) if it is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person, that if it should resell or otherwise transfer the Notes prior to the expiration of the distribution compliance period (defined as 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering and the closing date with respect to the original issuance of the Notes), it will do so only (i) (A) outside the United States in compliance with Rule 903 or 904 under the Securities Act or (B) to a QIB in compliance with Rule 144A and (ii) in accordance with all applicable U.S. State securities laws; and it acknowledges that the Regulation S Global Notes will bear a legend to the following effect unless otherwise agreed to by the Issuer:

"NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE GUARANTEE HEREOF HAS BEEN OR WILL BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGENCY AGREEMENT AND PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE **REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. UNTIL THE EXPIRY OF THE** PERIOD OF 40 DAYS AFTER THE COMPLETION OF THE DISTRIBUTION, AS DETERMINED AND CERTIFIED BY THE RELEVANT DEALER OR, IN THE CASE OF AN ISSUE OF NOTES ON A SYNDICATED BASIS, THE RELEVANT LEAD MANAGER, OF ALL THE NOTES OF THE TRANCHE OF WHICH THIS NOTE FORMS PART, SALES MAY NOT BE MADE IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO U.S. PERSONS UNLESS MADE (I) PURSUANT TO RULE 903 OR 904 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (II) TO QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS AS DEFINED IN, AND IN TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO, RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT."; and

(h) that the relevant Issuer and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements and agrees that if any of such acknowledgements, representations or agreements made by it are no longer accurate, it shall promptly notify the relevant Issuer; and if it is acquiring any Notes as a fiduciary or agent for one or more accounts it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements on behalf of each such account.

Institutional Accredited Investors who purchase Registered Notes in definitive form offered and sold in the United States in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Regulation D of the Securities Act are required to execute and deliver to the Registrar an IAI Investment Letter. Upon execution and delivery of an IAI Investment Letter by an Institutional Accredited Investor, Notes will be issued in definitive registered form, see "Form of the Notes".

The IAI Investment Letter will state, among other things, the following:

- (a) that the Institutional Accredited Investor has received a copy of the Offering Circular and such other information as it deems necessary in order to make its investment decision;
- (b) that the Institutional Accredited Investor understands that any subsequent transfer of the Notes is subject to certain restrictions and conditions set forth in the Offering Circular and the Notes (including those set out above) and that it agrees to be bound by, and not to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Notes except in compliance with, such restrictions and conditions and the Securities Act;
- (c) that, in the normal course of its business, the Institutional Accredited Investor invests in or purchases securities similar to the Notes;

- (d) that the Institutional Accredited Investor is an Institutional Accredited Investor within the meaning of Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D under the Securities Act and has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Notes, and it and any accounts for which it is acting are each able to bear the economic risk of its or any such accounts' investment for an indefinite period of time;
- (e) that the Institutional Accredited Investor is acquiring the Notes purchased by it for its own account or for one or more accounts (each of which is an Institutional Accredited Investor) as to each of which it exercises sole investment discretion and not with a view to any distribution of the Notes, subject, nevertheless, to the understanding that the disposition of its property shall at all times be and remain within its control; and

(f) that, in the event that the Institutional Accredited Investor purchases Notes, it will acquire Notes having a minimum purchase price of at least U.S.\$500,000 (or the approximate equivalent in another Specified Currency).

No sale of Legended Notes in the United States to any one purchaser will be for less than U.S.\$100,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) principal amount or, in the case of sales to Institutional Accredited Investors, U.S.\$500,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) principal amount and no Legended Note will be issued in connection with such a sale in a smaller principal amount. If the purchaser is a non-bank fiduciary acting on behalf of others, each person for whom it is acting must purchase at least U.S.\$100,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) or, in the case of sales to Institutional Accredited Investors, U.S.\$500,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) or, in the case of sales to Institutional Accredited Investors, U.S.\$500,000 (or its foreign currency equivalent) principal amount of Registered Notes.

Selling Restrictions

United States

Neither the Notes nor the Guarantee have been or will be registered under the Securities Act and the Notes may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.

The Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that, in connection with any Notes which are offered or sold outside the United States in reliance on an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided under Regulation S (Regulation S Notes), it will not offer, sell or deliver such Regulation S Notes (a) as part of their distribution at any time or (b) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution, as determined and certified by the relevant Dealer or, in the case of an issue of Notes on a syndicated basis, the relevant lead manager, of all Notes of the Tranche of which such Regulation S Notes are a part, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. Each Dealer has further agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree, that it will send to each dealer to which it sells any Regulation S Notes during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Regulation S Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons.

Until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of any Series of Notes, an offer or sale of such Notes within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Dealers may arrange for the resale of Notes to QIBs pursuant to Rule 144A and each such purchaser of Notes is hereby notified that the Dealers may be relying on the exemption from the registration

requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A. The minimum aggregate principal amount of Notes which may be purchased by a QIB pursuant to Rule 144A is U.S.100,000 (or the approximate equivalent thereof in any other currency). To the extent that an Issuer is not subject to or does not comply with the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act or the information furnishing requirements of Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder, the relevant Issuer has agreed to furnish to holders of Notes and to prospective purchasers designated by such holders, upon request, such information as may be required by Rule 144A(d)(4).

Each issuance of Index Linked Notes or Dual Currency Notes shall be subject to such additional U.S. selling restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the issuance and purchase of such Notes, which additional selling restrictions shall be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree that:

- (a) in relation to Notes which have a maturity of one year or more and which are to be admitted to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes to persons in the United Kingdom prior to admission of such Notes to listing in accordance with Part VI of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the FSMA) except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended) or the FSMA;
- (b) in relation to Notes which have a maturity of one year or more and which are not to be admitted to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of the period of six months from the issue date of such Notes, will not offer or sell any such Notes to persons in the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended);
- (c) in relation to any having a maturity of less than one year, (i) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Notes would otherwise constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the relevant Issuer;
- (d) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue of any Notes in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not or, in the case of the Guarantor, would not if it was not an authorised person, apply to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor; and
- (e) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the Securities and Exchange Law) and each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan

or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan), or to others for reoffering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Securities and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

Spain

Each Dealer has acknowledged and each other Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to acknowledge that the Notes must not be offered, distributed or sold in Spain in the primary market. No publicity of any kind shall be made in Spain.

General

Each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with all applicable securities laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or possesses or distributes this Offering Circular and will obtain any consent, approval or permission required by it for the purchase, offer, sale or delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is subject or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and neither the Issuers, the Guarantor nor any of the other Dealers shall have any responsibility therefor.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers represents that Notes may at any time lawfully be sold in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any exemption available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to each Tranche, the relevant Dealer will be required to comply with such other restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer shall agree and as shall be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation

The establishment of the Programme and the issue of Notes have been duly authorised by a resolution of the shareholders' meeting and of the Board of Directors of BSF dated 21st December, 2004 and a resolution of the shareholders' meeting and of the Board of Directors of BSC dated 21st December, 2004 and the giving of the Guarantees has been duly authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Guarantor dated 26th November, 2004.

Issues of Notes under the Programme are required to comply with certain formalities contained in the Spanish Companies Act of 1989, as amended, including registration of the issue in the Registro Mercantil, the appointment of a Representative and the constitution of a Syndicate.

Details of each issue under the Programme must also be published in the Corporate Registry Gazzette (Boletin Oficial del Registro Mercantil) (the BORME), and be evidenced in a public deed of issue (Escritura de Emisión).

Listing of Notes

The admission of Notes to the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal amount (excluding accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche of Notes which is to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange will be admitted separately as and when issued, subject only to the issue of a Global Note or Notes initially representing the Notes of such Tranche. The listing of the Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or before 24th January, 2005.

Application has also been made to list the Notes issued under the Programme on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. A legal notice relating to the Programme and the constitutional documents of the Issuers are being lodged with the Luxembourg trade and companies register (*Registre de commerce et des sociétés, Luxembourg*) where such documents may be examined and copies obtained. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange has allocated the number 13077 to the Programme for listing purposes.

Documents Available

So long as Notes are capable of being issued under the Programme, copies of the following documents will, when published, be available from the registered office of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor and from the specified office of the Paying Agent for the time being in London and the specified office of the Luxembourg Listing Agent in Luxembourg:

- (a) the constitutional documents (with an English translation thereof) of each Issuer and the constitutional documents (with an English translation thereof) of the Guarantor;
- (b) the consolidated and non-consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor in respect of the financial years ended 2002 and 2003 (with an English translation thereof). The Issuers intend to prepare audited accounts on an annual basis. The Guarantor currently prepares audited consolidated and non-consolidated accounts on an annual basis;
- (c) the most recently published audited annual financial statements of the Issuers and the Guarantor and the most recently published unaudited interim financial statements (if any) of the Issuers and the Guarantor (in each case with an English translation thereof). It is anticipated that the audited accounts of the Issuers for the year ended 31st December, 2004 will be published no later than 30th June, 2005. The Issuers do not intend to prepare unaudited interim accounts. The Guarantor currently prepares unaudited consolidated interim accounts on a quarterly basis;
- (d) the Programme Agreement, the Agency Agreement, the Guarantees, the Deeds of Covenant, the Deed Poll and the forms of the Global Notes, the Notes in definitive form, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons;

- (e) a copy of this Offering Circular;
- (f) any future offering circulars, prospectuses, information memoranda and supplements including Pricing Supplements to this Offering Circular and any other documents incorporated herein or therein by reference; and
- (g) in the case of each issue of listed Notes subscribed pursuant to a subscription agreement, the subscription agreement (or equivalent document).

Clearing Systems

The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The appropriate Common Code and ISIN for each Tranche of Bearer Notes allocated by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. In addition, the relevant Issuer may make an application for any Notes in registered form to be accepted for trading in book-entry form by DTC. The CUSIP and/or CINS numbers for each Tranche of Registered Notes, together with the relevant ISIN and common code, will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. If the Notes are to clear through an additional or alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Significant or Material Change

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position and no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuers since their date of incorporation.

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 30th June, 2004 and there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Group since 31st December, 2003.

Litigation

Neither of the Issuers nor the Guarantor is or has been involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuers or the Guarantor are aware) which may have or have had in the 12 months preceding the date of this document a significant effect on the financial position of the Issuer or the Group.

Auditors

The auditors of the Issuers are Deloitte, S.L., who have audited the Issuers' accounts which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Spain for the period from 3rd November, 2004 until 31st December, 2004.

The auditors of the Guarantor are Deloitte, S.L. (registered as auditors on the Registro Oficial de Auditores de Cuentas), who have audited the Guarantor's accounts which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Spain for the financial years ended 31st December, 2002 and 2003. Arthur Andersen y Cía.S.Com (at the relevant times registered as auditors on the Registro Oficial de Auditores de Cuentas) have audited the accounts of the Guarantor which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Spain for the financial year ended 31st December, 2001. The annual accounts for the financial years ended 31st December, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were issued without qualification.

ISSUERS

BBVA Senior Finance, S.A. Unipersonal Gran Vía, 1 Bilbao BBVA Subordinated Capital, S.A. Unipersonal Gran Vía, 1 Bilbao

GUARANTOR

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Plaza de San Nicolas, 4 48005 Bilbao

PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT

Deutsche Bank AG Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB

REGISTRAR, EXCHANGE AGENT AND TRANSFER AGENT

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas 60 Wall Street New York New York 10005

OTHER PAYING AGENT AND TRANSFER AGENT

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg SA 2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer L-1115 Luxembourg

LEGAL ADVISERS

To the Issuers and the Guarantor as to the laws of England and Wales

> Allen & Overy LLP One New Change London EC4M 9QQ

To the Issuers and the Guarantor as to the laws of Spain

> GARRIGUES, Abogados y Asesores Tributarios Jose Abascal, 45 28003 Madrid

To the Dealers as to the laws of England and Wales Clifford Chance Limited Liability Partnership 10 Upper Bank Street London E14 5JJ To the Dealers as to the laws of Spain Clifford Chance SL Paseo de la Castellana 110 28046 Madrid

AUDITORS

To the Issuers and the Guarantor Deloitte, S.L. Raimundo Fernandez Villaverde, 65 28003 Madrid

DEALERS

ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 250 Bishopsgate London EC2M 4AA

Barclays Bank PLC 5 The North Colonnade Canary Wharf London E14 4BB

Citigroup Global Markets Limited Citigroup Centre Canada Square Canary Wharf London E14 5LB

Deutsche Bank AG London Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB

Goldman Sachs International Peterborough Court 133 Fleet Street London EC4A 2BB

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. 125 London Wall London EC2Y 5AJ

Merrill Lynch International Merrill Lynch Financial Centre 2 King Edward Street London EC1A 1HQ

Nomura International plc Nomura House 1 St Martin's-le-Grand London EC1A 4NP Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Alcalá, 16 28014 Madrid

> BNP PARIBAS 10 Harewood Avenue London NW1 6AA

Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited One Cabot Square London E14 4QJ

> Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft Jürgen-Ponto-Platz 1 60301 Frankfurt am Main

> > HSBC Bank plc 8 Canada Square London E14 5HQ

Lehman Brothers International (Europe) 25 Bank Street London E14 5LE

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited 25 Cabot Square Canary Wharf London E14 4QA

> UBS Limited 1 Finsbury Avenue London EC2M 2PP

AUTHORISED ADVISER

UBS Limited 1 Finsbury Avenue London EC2M 2PP

LUXEMBOURG LISTING AGENT

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. 2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer L-1115 Luxembourg

printed by **eprint***financial.com* tel: + 44 (0) 20 7613 1800 document number 3056